

OFFERING MEMORANDUM

Date:	October 10, 2017
The Issuer	
Name:	RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation (the "Corporation")
Head Office:	Unit 28 - 360 Highway 7 East Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7
Phone No.	1-844-667-3726
E-mail address:	info@rescomic.com
Website:	www.rescomic.com
Fax No.	905-889-4155
Currently listed or quoted?	These securities do not trade on any exchange or market.
Reporting Issuer?	No
SEDAR filer?	No
The Offering	
Securities Offered:	Class "B" preferred shares (the "Preferred Shares")
Price per Security:	\$10.00 per Preferred Share
Minimum Offering:	50,000 Preferred Shares (\$500,000). The minimum offering was completed in March 2014.
Maximum Offering;	5,000,000 Preferred Shares (\$50,000,000)
	Funds available under the Offering may not be sufficient to accomplish our proposed objectives.
Minimum Subscription Amount:	The minimum amount a Subscriber must invest is \$10,000 with a maximum amount per Subscriber only in limits as permitted pursuant to the Tax Act (as defined herein); the minimum subsequent investment amount per Subscriber is restricted to 500 Preferred Shares (\$5,000).
Payment Terms:	Direct deposit, certified cheque, money order or bank draft payable to "RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation"
Proposed Closing Date:	Closings will take place periodically at the Corporation's discretion.
Income Tax Consequences:	There are important tax consequences to these securities. See Item 6 - "Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility".
Calling Agents	Ver See Hann 7 "Commensation proid to Sellers and Finders"

Selling Agent: Yes. See Item 7 – "Compensation paid to Sellers and Finders".

Resale Restrictions

You will be restricted from selling your securities for an indefinite period. See Item 10 - "Resale Restrictions".

Purchaser's Rights

You have two (2) business days to cancel your agreement to purchase these securities. If there is a misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, you have the right to sue either for damages or to cancel the agreement. See Item 11 - "Purchasers' Rights". The Preferred Shares are offered for sale within the Provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, Ontario, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Island pursuant to exemptions from the prospectus requirements contained in NI 45-106 and the *Securities Act* (Ontario). No securities regulatory authority or regulator has assessed the merits of these securities or reviewed this Offering Memorandum. Any representation to the contrary is an offence. This is a risky investment. See Item 8 - "Risk Factors".

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT	THIS OFFERING MEMORANDUM	4 -
RISKY I	NVESTMENT	4 -
CONFID	ENTIALITY	4 -
APPEND	DICES	5 -
MARKE	TING MATERIALS	5 -
NOTE R	EGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	5 -
GLOSSA	RY OF TERMS	7 -
PURPOS	E OF THE OFFERING	8 -
ITEM 1	USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS	9 -
1.1	Funds	9 -
1.2	Use of Available Funds	9 -
1.3	Reallocation	10 -
ITEM 2	BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION	10 -
2.1	Structure	10 -
2.2	Our Business	10 -
2.3	Development of Business	22 -
2.4	Long Term Objectives	23 -
2.5	Short Term Objectives and How We Intend to Achieve Them	24 -
2.6	Insufficient Funds	24 -
2.7	Material Agreements	24 -
2.8	Conflicts of Interest	30 -
ITEM 3	INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MANAGEMENT, PROMOTERS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS	31 -
3.1	Compensation and Securities Held	31 -
3.2	Management Experience	33 -
3.3	Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy	35 -
3.4	Loans	35 -
ITEM 4	CAPITAL STRUCTURE	35 -
4.1	Share Capital	35 -
4.2	Long Term Debt Securities	35 -
4.3	Prior Sales	35 -
ITEM 5	SECURITIES OFFERED	36 -
5.1	Terms of Securities	36 -
5.2	Subscription Procedure	40 -
ITEM 6	INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES AND RRSP ELIGIBILITY	42 -
6.1	Status of the Corporation	42 -
6.2	Taxation of the Corporation	43 -
6.3	Taxation of Shareholders	44 -
6.4	Taxation of Registered Plans	46 -
ITEM 7	COMPENSATION PAID TO SELLERS AND FINDERS	46 -

ITEM 8	RISK FACTORS	- 47 -
ITEM 9	REPORTING OBLIGATIONS	- 53 -
ITEM 10	RESALE RESTRICTIONS	- 53 -
10.1	General Statement	- 53 -
10.2 Scotia, a	Restricted Period – For trades in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Ontario, New Brunswick, Nova and Prince Edward Island	- 53 -
10.3	Restricted Period – For trades in Manitoba	- 53 -
ITEM 11	PURCHASER'S RIGHTS	- 54 -
11.1	Two Day Cancellation Right	- 54 -
11.2	Statutory Rights of Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation	- 54 -
11.3	Investors in Alberta	- 54 -
11.4	Investors in British Columbia	- 55 -
11.5	Investors in Manitoba	- 56 -
11.6	Investors in New Brunswick	- 57 -
11.7	Investors in Nova Scotia	- 58 -
11.8	Investors in Ontario	- 59 -
11.9	Investors in Prince Edward Island	- 60 -
11.10	Investors in Saskatchewan	- 61 -
ITEM 12	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	- 63 -
ITEM 13	DATE AND CERTIFICATE	56

ABOUT THIS OFFERING MEMORANDUM

No action has been or will be taken to permit a public offering of the Preferred Shares in any jurisdiction where action would be required to be taken for such purpose. Accordingly, the distribution or circulation of this Offering Memorandum and the offering and sale of the Preferred Shares may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. This Offering Memorandum does not constitute, and may not be used for or in conjunction with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. Persons into whose possession this Offering Memorandum may come are directed to inform themselves of and observe such restrictions and all legal requirements of their respective jurisdictions of residence in respect of the acquisition, holding and disposition of the Preferred Shares.

The Preferred Shares will be issued only on the basis of information contained in this Offering Memorandum, including any Marketing Materials, and provided by the Corporation, and no other information or representation has been authorized or may be relied upon as having been authorized by the Corporation. Any subscription for the Preferred Shares made by any person on the basis of statements or representations not contained in this Offering Memorandum or so provided, or inconsistent with the information contained herein or therein, shall be solely at the risk of such person. Neither the delivery of this Offering Memorandum at any time nor any sale of any of the Preferred Shares made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that there has been no change in the business and affairs of the Corporation since the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof.

Prospective investors should thoroughly review this Offering Memorandum and are advised to consult with their own legal, investment, accounting, and tax advisors concerning this investment.

All references to "dollars" or "\$" herein, unless otherwise stated, refer to Canadian currency.

RISKY INVESTMENT

There is not or may not be a market for you to sell your investment and there is no assurance that you will be able to find a buyer for this investment at a later date.

This investment is speculative and involves a high degree of risk. Investors should be aware that this investment has not only the usual risks associated with the financial ability of the Issuer to make cash distributions but also risks associated with purchasing, developing and selling of real estate.

There is a risk that this investment will be lost entirely or in part. Only investors who do not require immediate liquidity of their investment and who can afford the loss of their entire investment should consider this investment.

CONFIDENTIALITY

This Offering Memorandum is confidential and has been prepared solely for delivery to and review by selected prospective purchasers of the Preferred Shares. This copy of the Offering Memorandum is personal to the person to whom it is delivered and does not constitute an offer to any other person or to the public generally to subscribe for or otherwise acquire any of the Preferred Shares. Distribution of this Offering Memorandum to any person other than the person to whom it is delivered and those persons, if any, retained to advise such person with respect hereto is unauthorized, and any disclosure of any of its contents without the prior written consent of the Corporation is prohibited. Each prospective purchaser, by accepting delivery of this Offering Memorandum, agrees to the foregoing and undertakes to make no photocopies of or to otherwise reproduce, in whole or in part, this Offering Memorandum or any documents relating thereto and, if such prospective purchaser does not purchase any of the Preferred Shares or the Offering is terminated, to return promptly this Offering Memorandum and all such documents to the Corporation, if so requested by the Corporation.

The following appendices are attached to and form part of this Offering Memorandum:

Appendix "1" – Form of Subscription Agreement

MARKETING MATERIALS

All marketing materials related to each distribution under this Offering Memorandum which are delivered or made reasonably available to a prospective purchaser before the termination of the distribution ("**Marketing Materials**") are incorporated into and form part of this Offering Memorandum.

NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain information in this Offering Memorandum is "forward-looking information" within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Often, but not always, forward-looking information can be identified by the use of words or phrases such as: "expects", "does not expect" or "is expected", "anticipates" or "does not anticipate", "plans" or "planned", "estimates" or "estimated", "projects" or "projected", "forecasts" or "forecasted", "believes", "intends", "likely", "possible", "probable", "scheduled", "positioned", "goal", "objective" or states that certain actions, events or results "may", "could", "would", "might" or "will" be taken, occur or be achieved. In particular, this Offering Memorandum contains forward-looking information pertaining to the following:

- estimated Offering costs and commissions payable;
- the Corporation's use of proceeds from the Offering;
- business development plans and estimated timing;
- business strategy, plans, and investment policies;
- other expectations, beliefs, plans, goals, objectives, assumptions, information;
- statements about possible future events, conditions, results of operations or performance;
- the payment of dividends on the Preferred Shares;
- ability to exercise redemption and retraction rights associated with the Preferred Shares;
- ability to pay the Management Fees and expenses of the Corporation from revenue produced by the Corporation's investments;
- the Corporation's status as a MIC under the Tax Act;
- the Manager's status under applicable Mortgage Broker Legislation;
- eligibility of the Preferred Shares for investment in Deferred Plans;

The forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Memorandum are based on a number of assumptions, including without limitation those relating to: the completion of the Offering; the ability of the Corporation to acquire and maintain a mortgage portfolio capable of generating the necessary annual yield or returns to enable the Corporation to achieve its investment objectives; expectations regarding the composition of the mortgage portfolio; the ability of the Corporation to establish and maintain relationships and agreements with key strategic partners; assumptions about the lending practices of large financial institutions in Canada; interest rates; the ability of mortgageors to service their obligations under the mortgages underwritten by the Corporation; maintenance by the Manager and Administrator of applicable licenses and registrations; and general economic

conditions. Although the forward-looking information contained in this Offering Memorandum is based upon assumptions which management of the Corporation believes to be reasonable, the Corporation cannot assure investors that actual results will be consistent with this forward-looking information.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve numerous assumptions, inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, that contribute to the possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and various future events will not occur. A number of factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation, could cause actual results to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking information. Material risk factors include, but are not limited to: the risks of the competition within the Corporation's business; the risk of international, national and regional economic conditions; the uncertainty of estimates and projections relating to the real estate industry; fluctuations in interest rates; uncertainties as to the availability and cost of financing and changes in capital markets; changes in general economic and business conditions; the possibility that government policies or laws may change or governmental approvals may be delayed or withheld; uncertainties with respect to the Corporation's classification under the Tax Act; and the Corporation's ability to implement its business strategy. Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of risk factors is not exhaustive. Additional information on these and other factors that could affect the Corporation's operations or financial results are included under the heading "Risk Factors" in this Offering Memorandum.

Although the Corporation has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements contained herein are made as of the date of this Offering Memorandum, and the Corporation disclaims any obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements, except as required by law.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Memorandum are expressly qualified by the foregoing cautionary statements. Prospective investors should thoroughly review this Offering Memorandum and are advised to consult with their own legal and tax advisors concerning this investment.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In this Offering Memorandum (including the face page hereof), unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and terms and abbreviations have the following meanings:

"Administrator" means 5C Capital Inc.

"Administration Agreement" means the agreement between the Corporation, the Manager, and the Administrator, dated effective November 21, 2013.

"Administration Fee" means 0.5% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation payable by the Manager to the Administrator pursuant to the Administration Agreement;

"Board" means the board of directors of the Corporation.

"Business Day" means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario;

"CBCA" means the Canada Business Corporations Act, RSC 1985, c C-44, as amended.

"CRA" means the Canada Revenue Agency.

"Closing" or "Close" means completion of an Offering pursuant to this Offering Memorandum. The Corporation may have more than one closing, at the Corporation's sole discretion.

"Common Shares" means the class "A" common shares of the Corporation.

"Corporation" means RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation, a corporation incorporated and existing under the CBCA.

"Credit Committee" means the Credit Committee of the Board.

"Deferred Plan" means a RRSP, RRIF, TFSA, RESP, RDSP, or DPSP;

"Dividend Share" has the meaning given to such term in Item 5 – "Securities Offered – Terms of Securities – Dividend Policy and Reinvestment Plan".

"DPSP" means a deferred profit sharing plan.

"Exempt Market Dealer" means a person or company registered as an exempt market dealer pursuant to NI 31-103;

"**Finder Fee**" means a finder fee paid to a finder in connection a referral of a Subscriber to this Offering. See "Item 7 - Compensation Paid to Sellers and Finders".

"FSCO" means the Financial Service Commission of Ontario;

"LTV" means a loan-to-value ratio;

"Manager" means Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc.

"Management Agreement" means the management agreement between the Corporation and the Manager dated effective November 21, 2013.

"Management Fee" means up to 1.50% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation, payable by the corporation to the Manager pursuant to the Management Agreement.

"MIC" means a Mortgage Investment Corporation as defined under the Tax Act.

"Mortgage Broker Legislation" means the MBLAA, and other similar legislation in other provinces and territories of Canada where the Corporation carries on business in force from time to time.

"MBLAA" means the Mortgage Brokerage, Lenders and Administrators Act (Ontario), SO 2006, c 29, as amended.

"**NI 31-103**" means National Instrument 31-103 – "*Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations*";

"NI 45-106" means National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions.

"Offering" means the offering of the Preferred Shares by this Offering Memorandum.

"Offering Memorandum" means this offering memorandum of the Corporation dated October 10, 2017, as the same may be amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time;

"Preferred Shares" means the class "B" preferred shares in the capital of the Corporation.

"**Registered Dealer**" means a person or company registered as an investment dealer or exempt market dealer under applicable Canadian securities laws.

"Regulation" means a regulation promulgated pursuant to the Tax Act.

"RDSP" means a Registered Disability Services Plan.

"RESP" means a Registered Educational Savings Plan.

"RRIF" means a Registered Retirement Income Fund.

"RRSP" means a Registered Retirement Savings Plan.

"Shareholders" means at any time the persons who are the holders of record at that time of one or more Preferred Shares, as shown on the registers of such holders maintained by the Corporation.

"Subscriber" means a person who subscribes for Preferred Shares pursuant to the Offering.

"Subscription Agreement" means a subscription agreement to be executed by each investor providing for the purchase by such investor of Preferred Shares.

"Tax Act" means the *Income Tax Act* (Canada), R.S.C. 1985, c.1 (5th Supp.), as amended, and the regulation thereunder.

"**Tax Proposals**" means all specific proposals to amend the Tax Act that have been publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date hereof.

"TFSA" means a Tax Free Savings Account.

PURPOSE OF THE OFFERING

The purpose of this offering is to provide investors with the opportunity to subscribe for Preferred Shares. The Corporation is a "mortgage investment corporation" for purposes of the Tax Act. The Corporation will, in computing its taxable income, generally be entitled to deduct the full amount of all taxable dividends (other than capital gains dividends) which it pays during the year or within 90 days after the end of the year to the extent that such dividends were not deductible by the Corporation in computing its income for the preceding year. Dividends other than capital gains dividends, which are paid by the Corporation on the Preferred Shares to Shareholders will be included in Shareholders' incomes as interest.

The Preferred Shares will be qualified investments for a trust governed by a RRSP, RRIF, TFSA, RESP, RDSP, or a DPSP (collectively, "**Deferred Plans**"), at a particular time, if the Corporation qualifies as a MIC under the Tax Act and meets such other requirements as are described in Item 6 - "Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility".

ITEM 1 USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS

1.1 Funds

The following table discloses the net proceeds of the Offering and the funds that will be available to the Corporation after the Offering.

		Assuming min. offering ⁽¹⁾	Assuming max. offering ⁽²⁾
Α	Amount to be raised by this Offering	\$500,000	\$50,000,000
В	Selling commissions and fees ⁽³⁾	\$35,000	\$3,500,000
С	Estimated offering costs (e.g., legal, accounting,	\$55,000	\$75,000
	audit)		
D	Available funds: $D = A - (B + C)$	\$410,000	\$46,425,000
Е	Additional sources of funding required	\$0	\$0
F	Working capital deficiency	\$0	\$0
G	Total: $G = (D + E) - F$	\$410,000	\$46,425,000

Notes:

- (1) The Minimum Offering is 50,000 Preferred Shares (completed in March 2014).
- (2) The Maximum Offering is 5,000,000 Preferred Shares.
- (3) Assumes aggregate selling commissions of 7% are paid on all Preferred Shares sold. The Corporation may pay cash commissions or referral fees of up to 7% in the aggregate to any one of, or a combination of, Registered Dealers and qualified finders who refer Subscribers to the Corporation. See "Item 7 Compensation Paid to Sellers and Finders".

1.2 Use of Available Funds

Based on its present plans and present business conditions, the Corporation expects to use the available funds as follows:

Description of intended use of available funds listed in order of priority	Assuming Minimum Offering	Assuming Maximum Offering
Invest in mortgages as described under Item 2 - "Business of the Corporation"	\$401,250	\$45,550,000
Estimated Fees payable to the Manager pursuant to Management Agreement as described under Item 2.7 – "Material Agreements" ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	\$7,500	\$750,000
Estimated general and administrative expenses ⁽³⁾	\$1,250	\$125,000
Total	\$410,000	\$46,425,000

Notes:

(1) The Corporation will pay to the Manager a Management Fee of up to 1.50% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation, calculated and paid monthly. See Item 2.7 – "Material Agreements – Management Agreement". The Corporation expects to pay the Management Fee from revenue generated by from investments in mortgages. However, the Corporation may use the available funds from the Offering to pay the Management Fee if such revenues are insufficient.

Certain directors, officers, and principal shareholders of the Corporation are the directors, officers, and principal shareholders of the Manager. See "Item 3 – Interests of Directors, Management, Promoters and Principal Holders".

- (2) The Manager will pay to the Administrator an Administration Fee of 0.50% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation, calculated and paid monthly. See "Item 2.7 "Material Agreements Administration Agreement". Certain directors, officers, and principal shareholders of the Corporation are the directors, officers, and principal shareholders of Directors, Management, Promoters and Principal Holders".
- (3) The Corporation estimates that its general and administrative expenses will be 0.25% per annum of the gross assets of the Corporation. The Corporation expects to pay its general and administrative expenses from revenue generated from investing in mortgages. However, the Corporation may use the available funds from the Offering to pay its general and administrative expenses if such revenues are insufficient.

1.3 Reallocation

The Corporation intends to spend the available funds as stated. However, there may be circumstances where a reallocation of funds may be necessary. Funds will only be reallocated for sound business reasons related to the business activities of a MIC as defined under the Tax Act.

ITEM 2 BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

2.1 Structure

The Corporation

The Corporation was incorporated under the name "RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation" on November 21, 2013 under the CBCA. The Corporation has no subsidiaries. The Corporation's head office is located at Unit 28 - 360 Highway 7 East, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7 and its registered office is located at Suite 300, 14505 Bannister Road SE, Calgary, Alberta T2X 3J3.

Manager

The Manager, Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc., is an Ontario corporation, with its head office located at Unit 28 - 360 Highway 7 East, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7. The Manager is licensed as a mortgage broker in Ontario. The Corporation has appointed the Manager to act as the Corporation's mortgage broker, and to manage the investments of the Corporation pursuant to the Management Agreement. See "Item 2.7 - Material Contracts".

Administrator

The Administrator, 5C Capital Inc., is an Ontario corporation, with its head office located at Unit 28 - 360 Highway 7 East, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7. The Administrator is licensed as a mortgage administrator in Ontario, and a mortgage broker in Alberta and Manitoba. The Corporation and the Manager have engaged the Administrator to provide mortgage administration services in respect of its mortgage portfolio.

2.2 Our Business

The Corporation intends to carry on business as a "Mortgage Investment Corporation" within the meaning of the Tax Act by investing primarily in a portfolio of residential and other Mortgages on real estate properties located in Ontario, Manitoba, Alberta and British Columbia. To the extent of that available funds are not invested in Mortgages, such funds will generally be invested in short-term deposits, savings accounts or government guaranteed investment certificates. The Corporation's investments will be made in accordance with its investment policies from time to time. See "– Types of Mortgages", "– Investments of the Corporation", "– Mortgage Selection Process", and "– Investment Restrictions, Policies and Guidelines" below.

General

The Corporation has been created to acquire and maintain a portfolio of mortgages that preserves capital and generates sustainable and stable returns for individual and institutional shareholders. To achieve these investment objectives, the Corporation will use the net proceeds of the Offering to make prudent investments in loans secured by real property in Canada in accordance with the Corporation's investment guidelines.

Management believes that MICs are better positioned to provide tailored solutions to borrowers than most traditional lenders because they are not subject to the strict lending guidelines generally associated with chartered banks and other traditional lenders. In management's experience, this allows MICs to complete the structuring, due diligence and funding of loans within a shorter timeframe than most chartered banks and traditional lenders. The demand for private mortgages has recently increased due to federal regulatory changes aimed at tightening mortgage lending rules for major financial institutions. Management believes that this creates an opportunity for the Corporation to underwrite mortgage loans with a targeted yield, net of the Corporation's fees and expenses, of 8% per annum to holders of Preferred Shares.

The Corporation does not employ resources to actively seek or originate mortgages for investment, and it relies exclusively on the expertise of the Manager to provide mortgage investment opportunities, and the Administrator for the day-to-day management and administration of its mortgage portfolio. To the extent that the Corporation's funds are not invested in its mortgage portfolio, such funds will be held an interest-bearing account at a Schedule I bank so that the Corporation maintains a level of working capital for its ongoing operations considered acceptable by the directors of the Corporation. See "Item 2.2 – Our Business – Investment Restrictions, Policies and Guidelines".

The Manager will work to develop and implement all aspects of the Corporation's marketing and distribution strategies, will manage the ongoing business and administration of the Company and will monitor the investment portfolio of the Corporation. The terms and conditions of the Management Contract set out this relationship and require the Manager to observe and comply with the Corporation's investment policies and criteria and all laws that apply to the Corporation, its investments and its securities.

The Manager and Administrator have a combined experience of more than 80 years in real estate development, mortgage lending, risk protection, financial planning and banking industry related matters. The Corporation is confident that this wealth of experience and qualifications make the Manager and the Administrator suitable candidates for managing and administering the Corporation effectively by identifying suitable investment opportunities, managing and minimizing risk while at the same time providing favourable and consistent rates of return for holders of Preferred Shares.

Regulatory Regime and Licensing

Each province in Canada has enacted legislation to govern the mortgage broker industry. In each province, individuals, corporations, partnerships and sole proprietorships that deal, trade in, or act as administrators of mortgages are required to register under applicable mortgage brokerage legislation. The Corporation is not licensed as a mortgage broker or administrator under Mortgage Brokerage Legislation in any other province. Accordingly, the Corporation conducts its business under contract with licensed mortgage brokers and administrators, such as the Manager and the Administrator. A mortgage brokerage and its principal broker must obtain a brokerage and a broker license, respectively, issued under provincial Mortgage Brokerage Legislation by the applicable provincial regulatory body. The Manager, which performs mortgage servicing and administrative services pursuant to the Administrator, which performs mortgage servicing and administrative services pursuant to the Administration Agreement, either hold a valid license with each applicable provincial regulatory body to permit it to carry on the activities contemplated in the Management Agreement and Administration Agreement, respectively, or carry such activities under contract with third parties that are duly licensed under applicable Mortgage Brokerage Legislation.

Each provincial regulatory body with which the Manager and the Administrator are licensed has broad authority over the mortgage brokerage and administration industry, including the power to grant, renew, revoke, and attach conditions to licenses, to investigate complaints made regarding the conduct of registered mortgage brokerages, brokers, agents and administrators, and to impose penalties. Under the applicable Mortgage Brokerage Legislation of each province, there are several requirements a mortgage brokerage, broker, agent or administrator must meet in order to obtain or renew a license. The Mortgage Brokerage Legislation of each province also imposes a continuing obligation on a registered mortgage broker and agent to remain in compliance with applicable legislation, failing which the applicable provincial regulatory body may revoke a license.

business. In addition, a license will not be granted or renewed if the past conduct of the applicant is such that it provides reasonable grounds for the applicable provincial regulatory body to believe that the mortgage brokerage or administrator will not conduct business legally and with integrity and honesty. In the case of a corporate mortgage brokerage or administrator, the applicable provincial regulatory body will look to the past conduct of the directors and officers of the corporation.

The Tax Act's MIC Criteria

The Corporation qualifies as a "mortgage investment corporation" or "MIC" for the purposes of the Tax Act. Under the Tax Act, a MIC is allowed to deduct dividends that are paid from income. The Corporation intends to pay out all of its income and net realized capital gains as dividends within the time period specified in the Tax Act and as a result does not anticipate paying any income tax.

Section 130.1 of the Tax Act sets out the criteria governing a MIC, and in summary says that in order to qualify as a MIC for a taxation year, a company must have met the following criteria throughout the taxation year:

- (a) Its only undertaking was the investing of its funds and it did not manage or develop any real estate.
- (b) It did not invest in:
 - (i) mortgages or property outside Canada;
 - (ii) shares of companies not resident in Canada; or
 - (iii) real property or leasehold interests outside Canada
- (c) It had at least 20 shareholders, and no one shareholder together with related parties to that shareholder held between them more than 25% of the issued shares of any class of shares of the company.
- (d) At least 50% of the cost amount of company's assets must be comprised of:
 - (i) loans secured on houses or on property included in a housing project, as those terms are defined in the *National Housing Act* (Canada);
 - (ii) deposits insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation (CDIC) (or Quebec DIC);
 - (iii) deposits in a credit union; or
 - (iv) cash.
- (e) No more than 25% of the cost amount of the company's assets consisted of real property (excluding any real property acquired by foreclosure).
- (f) The company did not exceed, generally speaking, a 3:1 debt-equity ratio, or a 5:1 ratio if more than two-thirds or more of the company's property consists of residential mortgages and/or deposits secured by the CDIC (or Quebec DIC) or in a credit union.

See "Item 6 - Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility".

Types of Mortgages

The Corporation's mortgage portfolio consists mainly of loans secured by first or second mortgages, and in exceptional cases, third mortgages. The Corporation may also invest in commercial mortgages, construction financing as well as land development loans and demand loans such as bridge loans and term loans that are secured by real property, including the financing of new home construction. However, these are not the Corporation's primary investment focus.

The following lists the types of properties that the Corporation intends to target for investment:

- 1. Residential detached and semi-detached homes;
- 2. Residential townhouse or high-rise condominiums;
- 3. Properties where funds will be used to renovate an existing building or construct a new building;
- 4. Multi-family residential;
- 5. Mixed-use properties;
- 6. Industrial and commercial properties including condominium properties; and
- 7. Serviced and un-serviced land, acreage and building lots.

The following lists the type of properties that the Corporation considers unacceptable as security:

- 1. Laneway homes;
- 2. Cottages and resort properties;
- 3. Co-operative Housing;
- 4. Mobile Homes; and
- 5. Leased Land.

Investments of the Corporation

To maintain a stable yield on its mortgage portfolio, the Corporation will manage risk through maintenance of a diversified mortgage portfolio, conservative underwriting and diligent mortgage servicing.

Mortgage Investments

The Corporation, through the Manager, or its nominee, will invest primarily in first or second mortgages, and such mortgages will typically fall into the following major loan categories:

- (a) <u>Residential Mortgages</u> means mortgages principally secured by mortgage registrations on residential property titles. This can either be conventional (80% loan to value ratio) or high ratio mortgages. High ratio mortgages will not exceed 85% of the appraised value at the time of the loan application. This style of loan is usually advanced to borrowers to assist with the purchase or refinancing of a residential property.
- (b) <u>Equity or Equity Take-out Mortgages</u> means mortgages used to take out the equity that the home owner has built up over the years in a property. It can be used for various purposes such as investments, renovations, down payment for a different property, etc. In most cases, these are usually second or third position mortgages.

- (c) <u>Construction Loans</u> means short term (less than 2 years) real estate financing secured by mortgages on the property being financed. This type of loan is meant to cover the cost of land development and building construction, and is disbursed (i) as needed, (ii) as each stage is completed, (iii) according to the pre-arranged schedule or (iv) when certain condition are met.
- (d) <u>Land Development Loans</u> means an advance of funds, secured by a mortgage, to finance the making, installing, or constructing of the improvements necessary to convert raw land into construction-ready building sites. It might involve zoning, subdividing, leveling, grading, building roads and bringing sewer, water and power to the site. The minimum cash down payment required for a land developer to purchase a piece of land is 50%.
- (e) <u>Commercial Loans</u> means mortgages that are principally secured by multi-family housing projects, residential land developments and income-producing properties that have retail, commercial, service, office and/or industrial uses;

Mortgages generate income through a rate of interest, which is typically payable periodically through the terms of the mortgages, and through one-time fees ("Lender Fees") paid by a borrower to the Manager in return for obtaining a mortgage financing. The interest rates applicable to the Corporation's mortgages are not tied to the prime lending rate of the Bank of Canada. Interest is often being set based on the overall risk profile of the mortgage application and the demand of private mortgages. In general, the Corporation invests in mortgages that bear interest at a rate of 12% to 15% per annum, have a one or two-year term, and which require monthly interest-only mortgage payments, with the principal amount due upon maturity. Interest is often set at a fixed rate or at a floating rate based on a margin over the prime lending rate of the Corporation's bank, sometimes with a minimum specified rate. In general, the Manager charges a Lender Fee of approximately 3% for arranging a mortgage financing commitment from the Corporation. Such Lender Fees are determined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and are generally retained by the Manager as its sole property, except under limited circumstances described in "– Syndicated Mortgages" below.

Syndicated Mortgages

The Corporation may purchase interests in syndicated mortgages in which it will participate with one or more lenders. Syndication may be on a *pari passu* basis or on a subordinated basis. Participating in syndicated mortgages reduces the Corporation's investment and corresponding exposure in any one mortgage investment. It will also enable the Corporation to participate in the financing of larger real estate projects than would otherwise be possible.

In some cases, the Corporation may participate in syndicated mortgages that bear lower interest rates than typical mortgages in the Corporation's portfolio, but which are subject to a higher Lender Fee. The Manager may agree to pay a portion of the Lender Fees received in connection with such mortgages to the Corporation. Conversely, the Corporation may participate in mortgages at interest rates higher than those ordinarily charged by the Manager, but subject to a lower Lender Fee. The Corporation may pay a portion of the interest payments that it receives from the borrower in connection with such mortgages to the Manager.

Non-Mortgage Investments

In order to qualify as a MIC under the Tax Act, during any tax year, the cost amount for tax purposes to the Corporation of its property represented by debts secured on "houses" or on property included within a "housing project" (as those terms are defined in the *National Housing Act* (Canada)), together with cash on hand and deposits with a bank or any other corporation whose deposits are insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation or a credit union, must have constituted at least 50% of the cost amount to the Corporation of all of its property during that tax year. See "Item 6 - Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility". Accordingly, the Corporation is permitted to invest in instruments other than mortgages, such as including but not limited to promissory notes, debentures or other such securities. These non-mortgage investments may or may not be secured and may carry a greater risk than investing in mortgages. The Corporation does not hold, and does not intend to invest in, any such non-mortgage investments.

Mortgage Selection Process

The Corporation invests in a mortgage based upon the assessment of the Manager that it is suitable and meets its investment policies and guidelines. See "Investment Restrictions, Policies and Guidelines" below. All properties will be evaluated on the basis of certain factors, including but not limited to, the location, quality and prospects for capital appreciation and, in the case of commercial mortgages, on prospects for income. In addition, the credit of the borrower will also be reviewed and, where appropriate, personal covenants will be obtained.

In considering a mortgage proposal the Manager will adhere to strict underwriting policies which include:

- 1. Obtaining a credit application from all potential borrowers;
- 2. Obtaining a credit report on both the borrowers and any guarantor(s);
- 3. Obtaining an appraisal prepared by an accredited appraiser with the designation of C.R.A. or A.A.C.I. or their successors, or in the alternative from time to time the Administrator and the Manager may rely upon an opinion of value furnished by a reputable realtor who may be equally or better equipped to provide an accurate evaluation of a particular property as a consequence of specialized expertise relating to that particular type of property or with respect to the particular geographic area in which the subject property is located;
- 4. For commercial mortgages the Corporation may require at least a Phase I Environmental Audit of the property in addition to an independent appraisal completed by a certified appraiser with the designation of A.A.C.I.; and
- 5. When applicable, the Corporation will obtain a PURVIEW report for lenders by Teranet which confirms property ownership, checks for potential suspicious or fraudulent activity and provides an equity estimate that shows all mortgages including institution name, and date issued on all unamortized loans on title.

As part of approving each mortgage, the Manager will consider the proposed loan terms and complete a preliminary analysis based on information received from the prospective borrower. If the preliminary analysis is positive, the Manager will complete due diligence, including credit checks, financial statements and personal net worth statements of the prospective borrower(s) and any guarantor(s); internet searches; third party reports (such as valuation appraisals, environmental, building condition assessment and geotechnical appraisals, and quantity surveyor reports); rent rolls, leases, and estoppel certificates, and other documents. Management of the Manager will review the results of due diligence, and make a lending decision.

Upon approval by the Manager of a mortgage opportunity, the Corporation's legal counsel will prepare legal documents, obtain title insurance, and conduct the required enquiries and searches. The Manager may obtain advice from an insurance consultant whether the current and/or proposed insurance coverage is adequate. The Manager may also obtain reliance letters from various consultants who provided reports concerning the transaction. The Administrator then advances funds for the mortgage to legal counsel on behalf of the Corporation. Legal counsel registers the mortgage and other security documents and ensures all conditions are satisfied before releasing funds to the borrower. After the mortgage funds are advanced, the Administrator assumes day-to-day administration of the mortgage.

New mortgage investments are approved by the Manager following the procedures summarized above. The Manager will determine whether the mortgage investment opportunity is suitable for the Corporation, having regard to the Corporation's investment objectives, strategies and restrictions. The composition of the Corporation's mortgage portfolio might vary from time to time depending upon market conditions and the general Canadian economic outlook. The Manager invests on behalf of the Corporation in mortgages across Ontario, Manitoba, Alberta and British Columbia, with a view to maintaining a portfolio that is diversified from a geographical, market and product type perspective. The Manager will re-balance the investment mix in response to market conditions and opportunities.

Investment Restrictions, Policies and Guidelines

The Corporation has engaged the Manager to build a mortgage portfolio which follows the guidelines and policies below in assessing individual mortgage investment opportunities which will result in the minimization of risk. Subject to the right of the Corporation, in consultation and upon notice to the Manager, to revise the following restrictions from time to time, the Corporation has established certain restrictions on investments that may be made by it as follows:

- 1. The Corporation's only undertaking will be to invest the Corporation's funds in accordance with its investment objectives, strategies and restrictions, all in compliance with the requirements of the Tax Act applicable to a MIC;
- 2. it will not make any investment or conduct any activity that would result in the Corporation failing to qualify as a "mortgage investment corporation" within the meaning of the Tax Act;
- 3. Up to 95% of the Corporation's invested capital is to be invested in first and second mortgages to be registered against real property located in Canada; no more than 5% of the funds will be invested in third mortgages;
- 4. No more than 20% of the Corporation's capital is to be invested with any one borrower;
- 5. No more than 20% of the Corporation's capital is to be invested in any single mortgage investment; and
- 6. No more than 30% of the mortgages may be held in commercial loans or mixed use properties and no more than 15% of the mortgages may be held in land development loans.

Mortgages will be syndicated when it is deemed appropriate to minimize risk. By limiting the Corporation's loan portfolio participation in large individual investments, the Corporation will have the benefits of increased portfolio diversification.

The following conditions will apply to loans made by the Corporation or by the Manager on its behalf:

- 1. The maximum loan-to-value ratio ("**LTV**") for any particular mortgage investment will vary depending on a number of factors including the location and marketability of the property and the condition of the property. In any event, the Corporation will lend up to a certain percentage of the value of a particular property as established by an appraisal or an opinion of value.
- 2. For residential properties the Corporation will make loans in amounts up to 85% of the fair market value of the mortgaged property. Any loan advances representing in excess of 80% LTV shall be on select real estate in select locations.
- 3. For commercial, mixed-use and construction mortgages, the Corporation will lend up to 75% of the fair market value of the property.
- 4. For land development loans the Corporation will only lend up to 50% of the appraised or purchase price of the land.
- 5. Construction and major rehabilitation loans are funded after receipt and review of an appraisal based on the "as-is" and "completed value" of the property. The loan is advanced in progressive draws as predetermined by the Manager and agreed to by the borrower. Prior to each loan advance, the property is re-inspected by an appraiser who will provide a written detailed progress report. In addition, all construction loans will be funded in compliance with the *Construction Lien Act*, RSO 1990, c C.30 of Ontario or similar legislation in other provinces in Canada.
- 6. When not invested in mortgages, excess funds will be placed in CDIC insured investments including investments guaranteed by the Government of Canada, a province or territory of

Canada, or interest-bearing cash deposits, deposit notes, certificates of deposit notes, certificates of deposit acceptance notes or other similar instrument issued, endorsed or guaranteed by a schedule 1 or schedule 2 Canadian chartered bank; targets holding a cash or near cash position equal to less than 5% of its total assets, all in compliance with the provisions of the Tax Act.

- 7. Loan repayment schedules will consist primarily of interest only monthly payments. From time to time, the Corporation will issue mortgages with repayment schedules of principal and interest, payable monthly and amortized over 15 to 35 years.
- 8. Although the term of any single mortgage may be longer, mortgages will generally be written for terms of two years or less.
- 9. Mortgage investments will be denominated in Canadian Dollars.
- 10. Following funding, all of the Corporation's mortgages will be registered on title to the subject property in the name of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation, or a nominee bare trustee on behalf of the Corporation.
- 11. In order to renew or extend a mortgage loan, the Corporation may increase the loan amount to cover, among other items, renewal fees, extension fees, or legal fees, so long as any increase in the amount of the loan does not result in the total loan amount exceeding 85% of the most recent valuation of the property.
- 12. Mortgages in which the Corporation invests may contain clauses permitting the mortgagor, when not in default, to renew the mortgage for additional terms at the sole discretion of the Manager.
- 13. Notwithstanding any loan-to-value limits stated herein or other general underwriting criteria outlined above, for risk management purposes only, the Corporation may increase a given investment of the Corporation's capital in order to remedy the default by a borrower of its obligations in respect of a prior ranking security, or to satisfy the indebtedness secured by a prior ranking security, or for any other reason if such action is required to protect the Corporation's security position in a particular investment provided such proposed increases in the Corporation's investment are approved by the Manager.
- 14. The Corporation will not invest for the purpose of exercising control over management of any company or other entity.
- 15. The Corporation will not make short sales of securities or maintain a short position in any securities.

In order to remedy a default by a borrower of a mortgage, within the Corporation's portfolio, the investment policies and practices may change upon taking into consideration certain factors, including but not limited to, the following:

- 1. where the change assists the borrower to remedy a default on a mortgage which may result in an improved position for the Corporation and/or avoiding foreclosure or bankruptcy. This may involve the Corporation receiving additional collateral, lengthening the term of the loan, providing additional lending necessary to sell the property at its best price, rescheduling repayments, or any number of negotiated terms and conditions; and
- 2. where the change assists in mitigating losses that may occur in the foreclosure process as a consequence of selling real property, which is in the best interest of the Corporation, resulting in a new mortgage for the Corporation with a new borrower to finance the purchase of the real property with flexible terms at the fair market price.

The Corporation's investment policies and practices set out above may be amended, supplemented, replaced or waived from time to time or in respect to specific mortgages on a case-by-case basis by the Credit Committee. See "– Board of Directors" below.

Risk Mitigation

The Corporation's mortgage portfolio primarily contains loans secured by first or second mortgages on residential properties. To mitigate the concentration risk, the Corporation invests in a greater number of smaller mortgages, as opposed to fewer mortgages for larger amounts. This helps to minimize the potential impact of a default under any particular mortgage. To mitigate the risks associated with market trends in any particular geographic area, the Corporation maintains a geographically diversified portfolio. The Corporation's portfolio currently includes mortgages in Alberta, Manitoba and Ontario. Within Ontario, the Corporation has made mortgage loans in markets across Southwestern Ontario, including the Greater Toronto Area, Guelph, Kitchener, Waterloo, and London.

As an equity lender, the Corporation's lending practice is based more on the marketability and value of the property rather than the income of the borrower. However, from time to time the Corporation may request that borrowers to provide a copy of their notice of assessment, six-month bank statements, and pay stubs, etc. in order to evaluate their capacity to afford their mortgage payments.

The Corporation's capacity to recover its loan investment in the event of a borrower's default depends on the value of the mortgaged property securing that loan. One of the key factors that lenders assess the risks associated with mortgage applications is to calculate the LTV ratio. The LTV ratio is calculated as the amount of the mortgage lien divided by the appraised value of the property, expressed as a percentage. The higher the LTV ratio, the greater the risk for the lender. In order to establish an accurate LTV ratio, the Corporation requires each applicant for a mortgage to provide an appraisal report on the property to be mortgaged. Appraisals may not be more than 90 days old, and must have been completed by appraiser from a list of approved appraisers determined by the Corporation. To further validate the value of the appraisals to ensure the value is not overstated, the Corporation will obtain a Purview for Lenders report by TERANET, and will cross reference the estimated value from the report to the appraised value.

The Corporation practices conservative underwriting, especially during recent hot real estate markets in the Greater Toronto Area, where the Corporation makes a significant proportion of its mortgage loans. While the Corporation will make loans in amounts up to 85% of the fair market value of the mortgaged property, the Corporation has recently decreased the portfolio by approving loans with lower LTV ratios. As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, the Corporation's average LTV ratio for residential mortgages is in the low 70s.

To further minimize risk, the majority of the Corporation's approved mortgages are short-term, between six months to one year, allowing quick and precise adjustments to changing market conditions. A shorter term reduces the overall exposure to rate changes and other factors, making it a better credit risk than long-term loans. As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, 100% of the Corporation's residential mortgage portfolio have a maturity term of one year or less.

Capital Resources

The Corporation intends to finance its activities primarily through the issuance of Preferred Shares pursuant to the Offering, and from revenues derived from its investments in mortgages.

As at the date of this Offering Memorandum, the Corporation does not have any long term debt. The Corporation may, however, in the future fund its investments through equity financings and the Corporation may employ leverage, as permitted by applicable legislation (namely the Tax Act), by issuing debt obligations up to a maximum of five times the net book value of its assets. The Corporation might utilize leverage from time to time through a credit facility such as line of credit arranged with an arm's length financial institution or Canadian Chartered Bank. The lender might require the Corporation to provide a security interest in favour of the lender in the assets of the Corporation to secure such borrowings. The Corporation intends to borrow to the extent that the directors are satisfied that such borrowing and additional investments will increase the overall profitability of the Corporation which in turn will benefit its Shareholders.

From time to time, a small portion of the Corporation's funds may not be invested in mortgages, instead they will be held in cash deposited with a Canadian chartered bank or will be invested in short term deposits, saving

accounts or government guaranteed income certificates so that the Corporation maintains a level of working capital for its ongoing operations considered acceptable by the Directors of the Corporation, all in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act.

Section 130.1 of the Income Tax Act authorizes a MIC to borrow funds and leverage its capital in certain ratios related to the type of assets held. Provided one-half of the MIC's assets comprise a combination of residential mortgages and/or CDIC insured investments, the MIC is authorized to borrow up to a maximum of three times the amount of its equity. Provided two-thirds of the MIC's assets comprise a combination of residential mortgages and/or CDIC insured investments, the MIC is authorized to borrow up to a maximum of three times the amount of its equity. Provided two-thirds of the MIC's assets comprise a combination of residential mortgages and/or CDIC insured investments, the MIC is authorized to borrow up to a maximum of five times the amount of its equity. The Preferred Shares are considered equity for these purposes (as they are classified as a liability on the balance sheet).

The Corporation will borrow funds whenever funds are available provided it is economical and prudent to do so. These borrowings may take the form of lines of credit from banks and other lending institutions and/or promissory notes and other types of debt contracts with individuals and companies, as the case may be. It is probable that debt instruments will form part of a floating charge against the assets and equity of the Corporation, and in the event of liquidation or wind-up, will rank in priority to the outstanding shares of the Corporation. See Item 8(b)(v) under Item 8 -"Risk Factors".

Management Fees and Expenses

Expenses

The Corporation pays for all expenses it incurs, and that the Manager and Administrator incur on its behalf, in connection with the operation and management of the Corporation. These expenses will include, without limitation: (a) financial reporting costs, mailing and printing expenses for periodic reports to Shareholders and other Shareholders communications including marketing and advertising expenses; (b) any taxes payable by the Corporation; (c) costs and fees payable to any agent, legal counsel, accountant or other third party service provider; (d) ongoing regulatory filing fees, licence fees, as applicable, (e) any expenses incurred in connection with any legal proceedings in which the Manager participates on behalf of the Corporation or any other acts of the Manager or any other agent of the Corporation, including, without limitation, costs associated with the enforcement of mortgages; (f) any fees, expenses or indemnity payable to, and expenses incurred by, independent directors of the Corporation; and (g) any additional fees payable to the Manager or the Administrator for performance of extraordinary services on behalf of the Corporation. The costs of extending a mortgage loan (for example, legal expenses, third party consultants, insurance, administrative fees, etc.) are generally paid by the borrower in the loan transaction.

Management Fee

In consideration for providing mortgage brokerage, portfolio management, and general management and administrative services to the Corporation, the Manager shall receive from the Corporation a management fee (the "**Management Fee**") of up to 1.50% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation, calculated and paid monthly. In addition to the Management Fee, the Manager is entitled to retain all charges, origination fees, brokers fees, Lender Fees, commitment fees, extension fees, renewal fees, and similar other fees to borrowers with respect to mortgages in the mortgage portfolio. In general, such fees shall be and remain the sole property of the Manager. However, in some instances where the Corporation participates in a loan which has a low interest rate but bears a higher Lender Fee, the Manager may pay a portion of the Lender Fees that it receives to the Corporation. In some instances where the Corporation participates in a loan which has a low Lender Fee, the Corporation may pay a portion of the interest earned in connection with such loans to the Manager in addition to the Management Fee. See "Item 2 – Business of the Corporation – Our Business – Investments of the Corporation" and "– Material Agreements – Management Agreement". Under the Management Agreement, the Manager is responsible for all of its costs and operating expenses.

Administration Fee

In consideration for the administration services provided by the Administrator to the Corporation, the Manager pays to the Administrator a fee (the "Administration Fee") equal to 0.5% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation. In addition to the Administration Fee, the Administrator is entitled to retain all NSF fees, advance fees, discharge fees, late payment fees, and other administration fees. Under the Administration Agreement, the Administrator is responsible for all of its costs and operating expenses.

Dividends

The Corporation aims to pay dividends on the Preferred Shares equal to 8% per annum, calculated and payable monthly. Dividends are paid out of the net profits of the Corporation. Any dividend payment is at the discretion of the Board, and dividends will only be declared by the Board from time to time where the Board has determined, in its sole discretion, that the profits and available cash of the Corporation can support such dividend payment. See Item 5 – "Securities Offered – Terms of Securities – Dividend Policy and Reinvestment Plan".

The Corporation's primary source of revenue is interest payments from mortgage investments. As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, 100% of the Corporation's portfolio is invested into residential mortgages, primarily second mortgages, which generally bear interest at between 12% and 15% per annum. Since incorporation, the net profits of the Corporation, generally the revenue generated from mortgage investments after deducting fees and operating expenses, have consistently been sufficient the Corporation to pay dividends equal to 8% per annum to investors in Preferred Shares. Net profits in excess of the amount required for payment of an 8% dividend to the holders of Preferred Shares are held in a reserve fund. The Corporation uses this reserve to fund consistent distributions to investors at times in months where the net profits from the Corporation's investments are insufficient to pay an 8% dividend, and to cover any potential credit losses arising from loan defaults to protect investors' investment principal.

Since the Corporation funds dividends through revenues earned on its mortgage investments. Consequently, the Corporation's financial performance, and consequently, its ability to pay dividends is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties affecting mortgage investments and the mortgage investment industry. See Item 2.3 - "Development of the Business - Trends" and Item 8 - "Risk Factors".

Board of Directors

The mandate of the board of directors of the Corporation is to supervise the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation with a view to the best interests of the Corporation and its Shareholders generally. The board of the Corporation (the "**Board**") consists of five directors and two independent directors. The Board approves all policies of the Corporation and has final approval on all individual mortgages recommended by the Manager. In addition to the professional qualifications and experience they have individually, the Board receives ongoing education on corporate governance and industry policies from its professional advisors.

The Board meets as a whole at least monthly to review the reports from the Manager and the Administrator on the Corporation's investment portfolio and operations.

Credit Committee

The Board has established a Credit Committee consisting of at least three persons. The Credit Committee of the Board is responsible for setting the investment objectives and policies of the Corporation, and reviewing the investments in mortgages made by the Manager on behalf of the Corporation in order to confirm that such investments comply with such objectives and policies. The members of the Credit Committee are currently Chris M. K. Cheng, Phoebe M. K. Lam, and Vince Tarantino.

Conflicts Committee

The Board has established a Conflicts Committee consisting of the independent directors of the Corporation. The Conflicts Committee has been established to review situations where a reasonable person would

consider a person acting in relation to the Corporation, such as the Manager, the Administrator, or an entity related to either of them, to have a conflict of interest in respect of its relationship to or activities in relation to the Corporation. The Conflicts Committee will review and provide input to the Corporation with respect to the written policies and procedures of the Corporation related to conflict of interest matters and will review, provide recommendations in respect of and/or approve any conflict of interest matters referred to it.

The members of the Conflicts Committee are currently Vince Tarantino and Peter K. C. Lee. Members of the Conflicts Committee are not compensated separately for their participation on this committee.

Marketing Plans

Mortgage transactions for the Corporation are sourced by the Manager. The Corporation works closely with retail mortgage brokers throughout Ontario, Manitoba, Alberta and British Columbia in order to market itself as an alternative lender of choice in the non-conforming mortgage market segment. In addition, the Manager will participate at various financial forums and seminars as well as organizing financial planning seminars to market the Corporation and its business endeavors in the mortgage lending opportunities that do not meet the criteria of the major financial institutions; as a result, the Corporation's investments in non-conforming mortgages are expected to earn a higher rate of interest than what is generally obtainable through usual mortgage lending activities.

Competition

The Corporation competes for investment capital against other alternative and exempt-market investment products, including other mortgage investment corporations. Historically, the majority of the mortgage investment corporations have been established in western Canada, and as a result, the Corporation's competition in Ontario has been limited. However, following changes in securities legislation effective January 13, 2016, issuers in Ontario are able to take advantage of a new prospectus exemption permitting for investments from a wider range of investors through the use of an offering memorandum. As a result, there is an increase of private lenders and mortgage investment corporations in Ontario which causes more competition in Ontario for the Corporation. The Corporation's ability to successful compete for investment capital depends on its ability to generate attractive, stable returns for its investors.

The Corporation competes for mortgage investment opportunities against private lenders, other MICs, mortgage syndicators, individual investors, and real estate investment trusts, both domestic and foreign, which seek mortgage investments similar to those acquired by the Corporation. Such lenders may have greater financial and technical resources than the Corporation. Although such competition, as well as any future competition, may adversely affect the Corporation's success in the marketplace, at the present time the Corporation and the Manager have no reason to believe that such competition will prevent the Corporation from successfully executing its business plan or operating profitably.

The Corporation intends to achieve capital growth occurs at a measured rate that will enable it to source and invest in prudent mortgages, in order to maximize its Preferred Shareholders' capital rate of return between 8 to 10% per year while minimizing risk.

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Policy

The Corporation has adopted an AML policy to prevent our financial services from being used to promote criminal activity. In order for the Corporation, the Manager and the Administrator to ensure ongoing compliance with all government AML regulations, from time to time they may require additional information from the Subscribers.

If the Corporation has reasonable grounds to suspect that a transaction or an attempted transaction is related to the commission or attempted commission of a money laundering offence or a terrorist activity financing offence, the Corporation is required to report to the Financial Transactions and Reports Analysis Centre of Canada (FINTRAC) and such report shall not be treated as a breach of any restriction upon the disclosure of information imposed by law or otherwise.

2.3 Development of Business

The Corporation was incorporated on November 21, 2013, and commenced raising funds pursuant to the Offering in March 2014. The Corporation has raised an aggregate of \$32.78 million, and has 321 Shareholders as of July 31, 2017.

Since March 31, 2014 the rate of return on an investment in Preferred Shares is consistently at 8% per annum. The below graph reflects the annualized rate of returns of the Corporation for the 24 months ended July 31, 2017. Readers are cautioned that past performance is not indicative of future performance, and Corporation cannot guarantee that investors in Preferred Shares will receive similar returns in the future.



The Corporation has invested primarily in second mortgages secured by residential properties located in major urban centres in Ontario, Manitoba and Alberta. Mortgage terms are ranging from 6 to 24 months, which minimizes real estate price fluctuation risk, interest rate risk and duration risk. The following outlines the regions where the Corporation's mortgages are located, the weighted average interest rate and the weight average loan-to-value:

Mortgage Amount		Weighted Average Interest Rate	Weighted Average Loan-to-Value
Ontario	\$24,918,470	11.01%	72.35%
Manitoba	\$1,780,812	12.49%	81.89%
Alberta	\$69,000	14.99%	80.00%
Total	\$26,768,282	11.12%	72.80%

The Corporation held 243 mortgages as at July 31, 2017, with a total principal outstanding of \$26,768,282. Currently, 100% of the portfolio is secured by residential mortgages. Due to our prudent and conservative lending practices, delinquency remains low and the actual write-offs have been nominal. Since inception, RESCO has sold seven properties by way of foreclosure, incurring approximately \$41,378 in losses, representing less than 0.1% of

the mortgages funded. With accumulated reserves already in place we were able to cover the write-offs without any negative impact on profitability.

<u>Trends</u>

For the past decade in Canada, private mortgage lending has been a booming business. The Corporation expects recent market changes to continue producing strong demand for private mortgage loans. This demand is due to many factors, two of which include stricter lending regulations imposed on major financial institutions in October 2016, and recent difficulties faced by Home Capital Group Inc., one of Canada's largest leading alternative lenders.

Lending rules in Canada have come under intense scrutiny in recent years. In October 2016, the federal government implemented new regulations requiring a stress test previously used for approving high-ratio mortgages to be applied to all new insured mortgages – including those where the buyer has more than 20 per cent for a down payment. The stress test is aimed at assuring the lender that the home buyer could still afford the mortgage if interest rates were to rise. In order to qualify for government-backed mortgage insurance, the home buyer would need to qualify for a loan at the negotiated rate in the mortgage contract, but also at the Bank of Canada's five-year fixed posted mortgage rate, which is an average of the posted rates of the big six banks in Canada. This rate is usually higher than what buyers can negotiate. Other aspects of the stress test require that the home buyer will be spending no more than 39% of income on home-carrying costs like mortgage payments, heat and taxes. Another measure requires that the home buyer's total debt service ratio, including both mortgage payments and all other debt payments, must not exceed 44% of total household income. To meet these stress tests, buyers must effectively have higher annual householder income or home equity. The Corporation expects that buyers who do not meet the stress test for an insured mortgage will turn to private mortgage lenders such as the Corporation.

In addition, the recent difficulties faced by Home Capital Group Inc. have also resulted in increased demand for private mortgage loans from MICs such as the Corporation. Home Capital Group Inc., one of Canada's leading non-bank mortgage lenders, serves segments of the Canadian financial services marketplace that are not the focus of the major financial institutions, such as people who are self-employed or otherwise have uneven incomes, and new immigrants who lack sufficient credit histories and verifiable incomes. Due to Home Capital Group Inc.'s present instability, borrowers seeking alternative mortgage finance are increasingly turning to MICs such as the Corporation.

Since October 2016, the two trends described above have resulted in a significant increase in applications for mortgages to the Corporation. The Corporation expects that the increased demand will enable the Corporation to make lower-risk loans (such as mortgages with lower loan-to-value ratios, and to applicants with higher credit scores) on financial terms that are more favourable to the Corporation. Increases in the average interest rate of the Corporation's portfolio of mortgage investments may result in higher returns for shareholders.

On July 12, 2017, the Bank of Canada raised its target overnight interest rate for the first time in seven years to 0.75%. On September 6, 2017, the Bank of Canada further increased its target overnight interest rate to 1.0%. Bank of Canada interest rate increases and the tightening of the lending policy result in increased mortgage costs for borrowers, and may make it more difficult for them to obtain mortgages. This may discourage some homebuyers, and may generally cool the real estate market. If demand for residential mortgage declines, the Corporation might have to offer more competitive interest rates to compete for business, which might negatively impact the rate of returns it is able to pay.

2.4 Long Term Objectives

The Corporation's business objective for the next 24 months is to raise the remainder of the Maximum Offering, being approximately \$25 million, and invest it in mortgages in accordance with the Corporation's investment policies. See "Item 2.2 – Our Business – Investment Restrictions, Policies and Guidelines".

Beyond the 24-month period referred to above, the Corporation's objective is to continue the development of its business by raising investment capital and investing substantially in mortgages secured by real property located in Canada. We hope to raise, invest, and manage total assets of \$80 million within next five years. It is expect that the Corporation's costs will be similar to the costs outlined herein, on a proportionate basis. See "Item 1 – Use of Available Funds".

We will achieve this long term growth of our earnings and assets by following our lending guidelines, minimizing both risk of our capital and the number of foreclosures. We will continue to focus on diversifying the risk while generating a yield substantially higher than an investor could achieve from traditional bank source. As a result, the Corporation intends on generating sustainable income from its investments while preserving corporate capital for re-investment.

2.5 Short Term Objectives and How We Intend to Achieve Them

The Corporation's business objectives for the next 12 months are to:

- (a) raise additional capital of \$15 million pursuant to the Offering
- (b) enhance the operating efficiency of the Corporation in conjunction with its long term objectives;
- (c) source appropriate lending opportunities by bundling our mortgages with major Canadian financial institutions; and
- (d) maintain and to deliver a target net rate of return to Shareholders of 8% per annum without substantial risk to investor's principal.

The cost to achieve the short term objective will be the costs associated with the preparation and filing of this Offering Memorandum, including professional fees, management fees, interest and bank charges, trustee fees, licensing fees and compensation paid to sellers and finders where applicable.

The following table discloses how the Corporation intends to meet the objectives:

What we must do and how we will do it	Target Completion Date/ Number of Months to Complete	Our Cost to Complete
Raise gross proceeds of up to \$15,000,000 pursuant to the Offering	12 months	\$1,125,000 ⁽¹⁾
Invest the net proceeds of the Offering in mortgage loans	12 months	\$568,750 ⁽²⁾

Notes:

⁽¹⁾ Assuming selling commissions of 7%, and offering expenses of \$75,000.

(2) There are no fixed costs associated with this objective. However, through contractual arrangements, the Corporation will pay affiliated entities to provide prescribed services in exchange for the payment of amounts based upon the book value of the assets of the Corporation. The amount of such payments for the next twelve months is approximately \$487,500 (assuming average book value of the assets of the Corporation of \$32,500,000 during such period). In addition, the Corporation expects to incur general and administrative expenses of \$81,250 during such period.

2.6 Insufficient Funds

The funds available as a result of the Offering may not be sufficient to accomplish all of the Corporation's proposed objectives and there is no assurance that alternative financing will be available.

2.7 *Material Agreements*

The Corporation is party to the following material agreements:

(a) Management Agreement dated effective November 21, 2013 with the Manager for the provision of a wide range of services including, but not limited to, mortgage brokerage services, and overseeing and managing the Corporation's investment portfolio; and

(b) Administration Agreement dated effective November 21, 2013, between the Manager, the Corporation and the Administrator, for the provision of general administration services including but not limited to generally administering mortgage loans, collecting the principal, interest and all other amounts due to the Corporation from mortgageors, and delivering same to the Corporation.

The following descriptions of the Corporation's material agreement are summaries only, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete texts of such agreements. Copies of all material agreements may be reviewed by appointment during normal business hours during the course of this Offering at the Corporation's head office located at Unit 28 - 360 Highway 7 East, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7.

Management Agreement

Pursuant to the Management Agreement, the Manager was appointed the manager of the Corporation and its investment portfolio. The Manager has the authority to direct the business, operations and affairs of, and manage the day-to-day activities of, the Corporation and, as applicable, any entity which the Corporation may control from time to time, and to source, recommend, and make available to the Corporation, for investment mortgages or interests in mortgages that meet the Corporation's investment criteria.

The duties of the Manager pursuant to the Management Agreement include:

- (a) Management of the Corporation:
 - (i) negotiation and execution of any investment related agreements, including but not limited to, term sheets, mortgage commitments, and any and all mortgage documents including postponements and discharges as may be required;
 - (ii) negotiate contractual arrangements with third-party providers of services to the Corporation, and appoint, supervise and remove such third-party service providers and any replacements upon such terms as the Manager shall think fit;
 - (iii) providing ongoing assistance and guidance to the Corporation to ensure it is compliant at all times with any and all legislation which may bind the Corporation and its business activities including but not limited to the Tax Act, Mortgage Broker Legislation, applicable securities laws, and any associated regulations and policies thereunder, it being acknowledged that the Manager, at its sole discretion, may contract this function out to a third party with the written consent of the directors of the Corporation;
 - (iv) actively and regularly evaluate the Corporation's portfolio in the context of the investment objectives specified by the Corporation, and for compliance with the investment restrictions specified by the Corporation from time to time, and monitor regularly on an ongoing basis the Corporation's compliance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements, and with the requirements under the Tax Act to qualify as a "mortgage investment corporation" thereunder;
 - supervision on an ongoing basis of all Corporation funds including, but not limited to general investments, advances, draws, interest payments, collection and disbursement of any funds payable or receivable in accordance with the requirements of the arrangements, mortgages, agreements, undertakings and contracts therefor;
 - (vi) recommend to the directors of the Corporation the amount of distributions to be made by the Corporation to its Shareholders;
 - (vii) provide support and assistance with respect to soliciting investor funds for investment in the Corporation pursuant to applicable prospectus and registration exemptions available to the Corporation, or through registered dealers;

- (viii) providing regular and continuing accounting, on the basis of generally accepted accounting practices, respecting all costs and expenses of the Corporation;
- (ix) instituting, prosecuting and defending legal actions affecting the Corporation;
- (x) maintain proper books, accounts and records of the Corporation and its mortgage portfolio, and deliver reports to the Board;
- (xi) maintain the registers of securityholders of the Corporation;
- (xii) reporting to the investors, on a minimum of an annual basis, regarding the operation of the Corporation;
- (xiii) collecting and mailing financial and other reports and all other notices required to be completed by the Corporation;
- (xiv) attending to all arrangements necessary for meetings of the Corporation;
- (xv) distributing annual tax information prepared by or for the Corporation to the investors each year for the preceding calendar year;
- (xvi) coordinate preparation and delivery to shareholders and the Canadian securities regulatory authorities of financial statements and other continuous disclosure documents and reports as are required by applicable law from time to time;
- (xvii) do all such acts, take all such proceedings, execute all such documents and exercise all such rights and privileges, although not specifically mentioned here, as the Manager may deem necessary to administer the Corporation and its affairs, and to carry out the purposes of the Corporation in order for the Corporation to seek to achieve its investment objectives or as the Corporation may from time to time reasonably request.
- (b) Portfolio Management and Mortgage Brokerage:
 - seek out and evaluate opportunities for investments by the Corporation in mortgages and refer to the Corporation any mortgage investment opportunity it directly or indirectly originates that may meet the investment restrictions specified by the Corporation from time to time;
 - (ii) perform comprehensive due diligence on the assets underlying each mortgage investment opportunity as required including, but not limited to, obtaining structural reports (where necessary), environmental reports, appraisals, quantitative surveyor or architects certificates, title insurance and, to the extent possible, audited operating statements and, when requested, provide the Corporation with all necessary information relating to such mortgage investment opportunity;
 - (iii) arrange for the investment and reinvestment of the assets of the Corporation in accordance with the investment restrictions specified by the Corporation from time to time with the goal of achieving the Corporation's investment objectives, including identification, evaluation, acquisition and disposition of mortgages, extending and/or modifying mortgage investments of the Corporation, and the enter into one or more agreements with respect to the same as agent for the Corporation;
 - (iv) processing all documentation relating to the business of the Corporation, including but not limited to, applications, appraisals, commitments, registration, funding, collection and discharge of such documents;

- (v) provide assistance to the Corporation with respect to the ongoing evaluation and, as required, adjustment of its investment objectives and restrictions;
- (vi) supervise the day-to-day affairs and administration of mortgages in the Corporation's mortgage portfolio and maintain proper books of accounts and records for the Corporation in connection with each such mortgage;
- (vii) oversee the servicing of all mortgages in the Corporation's portfolio, monitor the status of all such mortgages, and respond to any potential issues as they may arise;
- (viii) hold the assets of the Corporation in connection with the mortgages, which assets shall be held in trust by the Manager for the Corporation;
- (ix) deliver to the Corporation such reports with respect to the Portfolio as it may request and, at the Directors' request, provide a representative to attend meetings of the Directors;
- (x) as required, enter into agreements with persons licensed under Mortgage Broker Legislation or the requisite legislation to carry on the activities contemplated under the Management Agreement; and
- (xi) such other matters, services or acts as shall be reasonably necessary or ancillary to the matters set out above or as the Corporation may from time to time reasonably request.

The Manager is obligated to exercise its powers and discharge its duties under the Management Agreement honestly and in good faith and in the best interests of the Corporation. In connection therewith, the Manager must also exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in the circumstances.

The Manager shall receive compensation in respect of the Management Agreement as set out above in the section entitled "Item 2.2 – Our Business – Management Fees and Expenses".

The Corporation will pay for all fees and expenses incurred by the Manager on behalf of the Corporation in connection with its management duties, including legal, audit, travel, marketing, advertising, shareholder meeting and communication costs that relate specifically to the Corporation and its Shareholders. The Corporation will also be responsible for all taxes, commissions, brokerage commissions and other costs of securities transactions, debt service and costs relating to any credit facilities and any extraordinary expenses which it may incur or which may be incurred on its behalf from time to time, as applicable.

The Manager is responsible for all of its internal costs, including (i) all salaries, wages and other expenses of employees of the Manager, (ii) rent and office expenses, (iii) telephone and other communication costs and travel expenses unrelated to the investment activities of the Corporation and office supplies and services, and general administrative expenses and other expenses that are customarily considered to be overhead expenses; and (iv) all costs and fees associated with complying with the licensing requirements of applicable laws, including Mortgage Broker Legislation.

The term of the Management Agreement continues indefinitely until terminated in accordance with its terms, including due to: the dissolution of the Corporation; the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Manager; the Corporation or the Manager being in breach or default of the Management Agreement and such breach or default has not been cured within 30 days of notice by the non-defaulting party to the defaulting party; the resignation of the Manager or termination by the Corporation upon not less than 120 days' written notice; the Manager failing to hold the licenses, registrations or other authorizations necessary to carry out its obligations and being unable to obtain them within a reasonable period after their loss; or termination upon the mutual consent of the Corporation and the Manager.

Under the Management Agreement, the Corporation has agreed that the Manager and its directors, officers, employees and partners shall not be liable to the Corporation for any default, failure or defect in the portfolio held by the Corporation or for any act performed, or failure to act, by the Manager within the scope of the authority conferred on the Manager under the Management Agreement, unless such act or omission constitutes wilful misconduct, bad faith, negligence, breach of its standard of care or material breach or default of its obligations. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless the foregoing from any loss or claim (other than loss of profits) arising out of their activities on behalf of the Corporation or in furtherance of the interests of the Corporation provided the activity was within the scope of the authority of the Manager in accordance with the Management Agreement and was not the result of any of the foregoing's wilful misconduct, bad faith, negligence, breach of the applicable standard of care, material breach or default of its obligations or a breach of fiduciary duty. Under the Management Agreement, the Manager has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless the Corporation and its affiliates and its and their respective officers, directors, securityholders, employees and agents from any loss suffered by reason of any acts or omissions or alleged acts or omissions of the Manager that constitute wilful misconduct, bad faith, negligence, breach of its standard of care or material breach or default of its obligations.

Under the Management Agreement, the Corporation has acknowledged that the services being provided by the Manager under the Management Agreement are not exclusive and that the Manager may, from time to time, provide similar services to other persons, enter into other advisory relationships or engage in other business activities, even though such activities may be in competition with the Corporation and involve substantial time and resources of the Manager, provided that the Manager acts, at all times, in accordance with the standard of care that is contemplated by the Management Agreement and thereby allocates investment opportunities to the Corporation and to its clients on a fair and equitable basis.

Administration Agreement

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement, the Manager has appointed the Administrator to provide mortgage servicing services to the Corporation on its behalf. The duties of the Administrator pursuant to the Administration Agreement include:

- (a) instruct legal counsel to act on behalf of the Corporation, as lender, in respect of mortgage loans, the preparation of all security and other documents related thereto, the registration of security, including mortgage security, in each case in compliance with the applicable mortgage terms;
- (b) assemble gross loan amounts from the Corporation and any other participants in particular mortgages, advance same to legal counsel, in each case in compliance with the applicable mortgage terms;
- (c) advance loan amounts to borrowers pursuant to mortgages in accordance with the applicable mortgage terms;
- (d) pay expenses as required on behalf of the Corporation;
- (e) administer the mortgages, including collecting payments of principal, interest, and penalties from borrowers in accordance with the applicable mortgage terms;
- (f) promptly remit to the Corporation all payments in connection with mortgages collected by the Administrator on behalf of the Corporation, and hold all such payments in trust pending remittance to the Corporation;
- (g) discharge mortgages upon redemption;
- (h) ensure that the Corporation is registered on title for all the mortgages it holds and arrange for the safe custody of deeds if applicable;

- (i) diligently monitor the status of the mortgages, including the character of the properties mortgaged thereunder or in the amount or nature of the insurance coverage on such properties, and any change in any of the foregoing;
- (j) immediately report to the Manager and the Corporation any change in the status of any mortgage, and the character of the property mortgaged thereunder or in the amount or nature of the insurance coverage on such property, upon the Administrator becoming aware of the change;
- (k) provide to the Manager and the Corporation a report on the status of the mortgages on at least an annual basis, indicating, in respect of each mortgage, the portion of the payments applied to principal and to interest and the outstanding principal balance at the end of the statement period, and the amount of the administration fees charged by the Administrator;
- (l) cooperate with the Manager in order to ensure compliance with the Investment Objective and the investment restrictions and policies of the Corporation as the same exist from time to time, provided that these are communicated to the Administrator;
- (m) where appropriate, pursue arrears and institute and prosecute legal actions through competent counsel for the enforcement of the Corporation's contractual or other rights including as a mortgagee in a timely and professional manner (and the Corporation and the Manager hereby agree to cooperate in a timely manner in respect of same);
- (n) retain solicitors, counsel, and other experts and receivers, and advance such funds as the Administrator considers reasonable or necessary to preserve, protect, defend or improve the Corporation's interest in any mortgage or loan or real property or in any other investment;
- (o) co-ordinate and supervise the services of any person, firm or corporation (other than the Manager or third parties retained by the Manager) including, without limitation, property appraisers, engaged to provide services to the Corporation or in relation to its mortgage investments;
- (p) maintain and administer a trust account by keeping records of transactions related to the funds collected in trust pursuant to this Agreement, and prepare monthly and annual reconciliation statements for such trust account;
- (q) act as a consultant to the Corporation in matters that may arise from time to time between mortgageors and the Corporation;
- (r) such other matters, services or acts as shall be reasonably necessary or ancillary to the matters set out above or as the Corporation may from time to time reasonably request.

The Administrator is obligated to exercise its powers and discharge its duties under the Administration Agreement and in good faith and in the best interests of the Corporation. In connection therewith, the Administrator must also exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in the circumstances.

The Administrator shall receive compensation from the Manager in respect of the Administration Agreement as set out above in the section entitled "Item 2.2 – Our Business – Management Fees and Expenses".

The Corporation will pay for all fees and expenses incurred by the Administrator on behalf of the Corporation in connection with its mortgage administration duties, including third professional services providers, expenses incurred in connection with legal proceedings in which the Administrator participates on behalf of the Corporation or any other acts of the Administrator or any other agent of the Corporation in connection with the maintenance or protection of the property of the Corporation, including, without limitation, costs associated with the enforcement of mortgages, any extraordinary expenses which it may incur or which may be incurred on its behalf from time to time, as applicable.

The Administrator is responsible for all of its internal costs, including (i) all salaries, wages and other expenses of employees of the Administrator, (ii) rent and office expenses, (iii) telephone and other communication costs and travel expenses unrelated to the investment activities of the Corporation and office supplies and services, and general administrative expenses and other expenses that are customarily considered to be overhead expenses; and (iv) all costs and fees associated with complying with the licensing requirements of applicable laws, including Mortgage Broker Legislation.

The term of the Administration Agreement continues indefinitely until terminated in accordance with its terms, including due to: the dissolution of the Corporation; termination of the Management Agreement; the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Administrator; the Manager or the Administrator being in breach or default of the Management Agreement and such breach or default has not been cured within 30 days of notice by the non-defaulting party to the defaulting party; the resignation of the Administrator or termination by the Manager upon not less than 120 days' written notice; the Administrator failing to hold the licenses, registrations or other authorizations necessary to carry out its obligations and being unable to obtain them within a reasonable period after their loss; or termination upon the mutual consent of the Manager and the Administrator.

Under the Administration Agreement, the Corporation has agreed that the Administrator and its directors, officers, employees and partners shall not be liable to the Corporation for any default, failure or defect in the portfolio held by the Corporation or for any act performed, or failure to act, by the Manager within the scope of the authority conferred on the Administrator under the Administration Agreement, unless such act or omission constitutes wilful misconduct, bad faith, negligence, breach of its standard of care or material breach or default of its obligations. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless the foregoing from any loss or claim (other than loss of profits) arising out of their activities on behalf of the Corporation or in furtherance of the interests of the Corporation provided the activity was within the scope of the authority of the Administrator in accordance with the Administration Agreement and was not the result of any of the foregoing's wilful misconduct, bad faith, negligence, breach of the applicable standard of care, material breach or default of its obligations or a breach of fiduciary duty. Under the Administration Agreement, the Administrator has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless the Corporation and its affiliates and its and their respective officers, directors, securityholders, employees and agents from any loss suffered by reason of any acts or omissions or alleged acts or omissions of the Administrator that constitute wilful misconduct, bad faith, negligence, breach of its obligations.

2.8 Conflicts of Interest

The Corporation is subject to a number of actual and potential conflicts of interest because the shareholders, directors, and officers of the Manager and the Administrator are also shareholders, directors, and officers of the Corporation. As at the date hereof, (i) David Ho, the President, a director, and holder of 25% of the Common Shares, is also a director, officer, and 50% shareholder of each of the Manager and the Administrator; (ii) Will Sung, a director, officer, and holder of 25% of the Common Shares, is also a director, officer, and the Administrator; (iii) Phoebe Lam, a director, officer, and holder of 10% of the Common Shares, is also a director, officer, and 10% shareholder of each of the Manager and the Administrator; and (iv) Chris Cheng, a director, Chief Operating Officer, and holder of 15% of the Common Shares, is also a director, officer, and 15% shareholder of each of the Manager and the Administrator.

Although none of the directors or officers of the Corporation will devote all of his or her full time to the business and affairs of the Corporation, each will devote as much time as is necessary to manage or advise on the business and affairs of the Corporation.

The Board is required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Corporation, and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. Directors and officers of the Corporation must comply with the conflict of interest provisions of the CBCA in order to ensure that directors exercise independent judgment in considering transactions and agreements in respect of which a director or officer has a material interest. Any interested director would be required to declare the nature and extent of his interest and would not be entitled to vote at meetings of directors at which matters that give rise to such a conflict of interest are considered.

The Manager

The Manager renders its services to the Corporation as manager and mortgage broker on a non-exclusive basis under the Management Agreement. The Manager is required to act honestly and in good faith, and and in the best interests of the Corporation. However, the Manager, its directors and officers and its affiliates may from time to time, provide services to other persons similar to those provided to the Corporation and enter into other advisory relationships or engage in other business activities, even though such activities may be in competition with the Corporation. Pursuant to the Management Agreement, the Manager is permitted to engage in such activities, provided that it meets the standard of care provided for therein, and allocates investment opportunities to the Corporation and to its other clients on a fair and equitable basis.

The Administrator

The Administrator renders its services to the Corporation and the Manager on a non-exclusive basis under the Administration Agreement. The Administrator is required to act honestly and in good faith, and and in the best interests of the Corporation. However, the Administrator, its directors and officers and its affiliates may from time to time, provide services to other persons similar to those provided to the Corporation and the Manager, and may engage in other business activities, even though such activities may be in competition with the Corporation. Pursuant to the Administration Agreement, the Administrator is permitted to engage in such activities, provided that it meets the standard of care provided for therein.

ITEM 3 INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MANAGEMENT, PROMOTERS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS

3.1 Compensation and Securities Held

The following table sets out information about each director, officer and promoter of the Corporation and each person who directly or indirectly beneficially owns or controls 10% or more of any class of voting securities of the Corporation (a "principal holder").

Name and municipality of principal residence	Positions held (e.g., director, officer, promoter and/or principal holder) and the date of obtaining that position	Compensation paid by the Corporation or related party in the most recently completed financial year and the compensation anticipated to be paid in the current financial year	Number, type and percentage of securities of the Corporation held after completion of minimum offering	Number, type and percentage of securities of the Corporation held after completion of maximum offering
David Y. Ho Toronto, Ontario	Director, President and Promoter since November 21, 2013	$2016 - \text{Nil}^{(1)(2)(3)}$ 2017 (est.) - 200 ⁽¹⁾	250 Common Voting Shares (25%)	250 Common Shares (25%)
Franky M. C. Tse Markham, Ontario	Director and Promoter since July 20, 2015	$2016 - \text{Nil}^{(1)}$ 2017 (est.) - 200 ⁽¹⁾	250 Common Voting Shares (25%)	250 Common Shares (25%)
Will C. B. Sung Markham, Ontario	Director and Promoter since November 21, 2013	$2016 - \text{Nil}^{(1)(4)(5)}$ 2017 (est.) - 200 ⁽¹⁾	250 Common Voting Shares (25%)	250 Common Shares (25%)
Chris M. K. Cheng Toronto, Ontario	Director, Chief Operations Officer and Promoter since November 21, 2013	$2016 - 148,102^{(1)(6)(7)}$ 2017 (est.) - 173,929^{(1)(6)(7)}	150 Common Voting Shares (15%)	150 Common Shares (15%)
Phoebe M. K. Lam Richmond Hill, Ontario	Director, Managing Director, and Promoter since November 21, 2013	$2016 - 72,322^{(1)(8)(9)}$ 2017 (est.) - 116,018^{(1)(8)(9)}	100 Common Voting Shares (10%)	100 Common Shares (10%)

Name and municipality of principal residence	Positions held (e.g., director, officer, promoter and/or principal holder) and the date of obtaining that position	Compensation paid by the Corporation or related party in the most recently completed financial year and the compensation anticipated to be paid in the current financial year	Number, type and percentage of securities of the Corporation held after completion of minimum offering	Number, type and percentage of securities of the Corporation held after completion of maximum offering
Vince Tarantino Vaughan, Ontario	Director since October 1, 2016	$2016 - \text{Nil}^{(1)}$ 2017 (est.) - 200 ⁽¹⁾	Nil	Nil
Peter K. C. Lee Markham, Ontario	Director October 1, 2016	$2016 - \text{Nil}^{(1)}$ 2017 (est.) - 200 ⁽¹⁾	Nil	Nil

Notes:

- (1) Messrs. Ho, Tse, Sung, and Cheng, and Ms. Lam, did not received any compensation in their respective capacities as directors and/or officers of the Corporation in 2016. Effective as of October 1, 2017, the Corporation will pay directors a meeting attendance fee of \$200 per meeting, up to a maximum of \$3,000 per year.
- (2) Mr. Ho is a director and President of the Manager. He received no compensation from the Manager during the financial year of the Manager ended August 31, 2017, and is not anticipated to receive any such compensation in the current financial year. Mr. Ho is also a beneficial shareholder of the Manager, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Manager, including income associated with the Management Fee and Lender Fees.
- (3) Mr. Ho is a director and President of the Administrator. He received no compensation from the Administrator during the financial year of the Administrator ended August 31, 2017, and is not anticipated to receive any such compensation in the current financial year. Mr. Ho is also a beneficial shareholder of the Administrator, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Administrator, including those associated with the Administration Fee.
- (4) Mr. Sung is a director of the Manager. He received no compensation from the Manager during the financial year of the Manager ended August 31, 2017, and is not anticipated to receive any such compensation in the current financial year. Mr. Sung is also a beneficial shareholder of the Manager, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Manager, including income associated with the Management Fee and Lender Fees.
- (5) Mr. Sung is a director of the Administrator. He received no compensation from the Administrator during the financial year of the Administrator ended August 31, 2017, and is not anticipated to receive any such compensation in the current financial year. Mr. Sung is also a beneficial shareholder of the Administrator, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Administrator, including those associated with the Administration Fee.
- (6) Mr. Cheng is a director and Chief Operating Officer of the Manager. He received from the Manager compensation of \$136,802 during the financial year of the Manager ended August 31, 2017, and is anticipated to receive compensation equal to 0.6% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation, in the current financial year, calculated and paid monthly. Based on the assets of the Corporation of \$28,954,812 as at July 31, 2017, such compensation would equal \$173,729. Mr. Cheng is also a beneficial shareholder of the Manager, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Manager, including income associated with the Management Fee and Lender Fees.
- (7) Mr. Cheng is a director and Chief Operating Officer of the Administrator. He received from the Administrator compensation of \$11,300 during the financial year of the Administrator ended August 31, 2017, and is anticipated to receive \$nil compensation in the current financial year. Mr. Cheng is also a beneficial shareholder of the Administrator, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Administrator, including those associated with the Administration Fee.
- (8) Ms. Lam is a director and Principal Broker of the Manager. She received from the Manager compensation of \$66,201 during the financial year of the Manager ended August 31, 2017, and is anticipated to receive compensation equal to 0.4% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation in the current financial year, calculated and paid monthly. Based on the assets of the Corporation of \$28,954,812 as at July 31, 2017, such compensation would equal \$115,818. Ms. Lam is also a beneficial shareholder of the Manager, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Manager, including income associated with the Management Fee and Lender Fees.
- (9) Ms. Lam is a director, Secretary, and Principal Broker of the Administrator. She received from the Administrator compensation of \$6,121 during the financial year of the Administrator ended August 31, 2017, and is anticipated to receive compensation of \$nil in the current financial year. Ms. Lam is also a beneficial shareholder of the Administrator, and accordingly, will indirectly share in any income of the Administrator, including those associated with the Administration Fee.

3.2 Management Experience

The following table discloses the principal occupations and relevant experience of the Corporation's directors and executive officers over the past five years.

Name	Principal occupation and relevant experience during last 5 years
David Y. Ho, CLU, CH.F.C.	 Mr. Ho is currently President and Owner of TORCE Financial Group, a brokerage company that he started in 2000. TORCE Financial Group Inc. is in the business of marketing and distributing products in the insurance and wealth management industry, and has over 1,000 brokers associated with it in five offices located in Toronto, Vancouver and Hong Kong. Mr. Ho graduated from university in 1975 and since then has accumulated 8 years of Management Accounting experience with one of the largest companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Ho immigrated to Canada in 1984 with his family and started his financial career mainly in managing and agency building with insurance companies. Mr. Ho joined the Richmond Hill and Markham Chinese Business Association in 1999 as a director with the primary objective being to promote and explore business opportunities with the members in these areas. He was elected as the President of the Association in 2005 (for a period during the years 2005-2007). After fulfilling his two-year term as a president, he has remained on the board of directors to share his experience and wisdom with his fellow directors.
Franky M. C. Tse	 Mr. Tse is an accomplished and versatile business leader with over 20+ years of experience in comprehensive financial planning and wealth management. Since 1994, he has been President and owner of People's Insurance Company Ltd., where he currently manages a team of over 60 employees and agents. Previously, Mr. Tse worked at Air Canada and New York Life. Mr. Tse graduated at Wilfred Laurier University in 1982 and further his study at York University with a Bachelor of Business Administrative Study degree in 1985.
Will C. B. Sung	 Mr. Sung has been active in the real estate industry in Toronto since 1984. He is currently the owner and a registered real estate salesperson at Landstars 360 Realty Inc, Brokerage. Mr. Sung established the company as Landstars Realty Inc. in 1988. It was associated with Century 21 between 1992 and 2012, during which period it was awarded Century 21's Centurion Award for exceptional achievement. Mr. Sung is reputable and known within the industry for being creative and pioneering. During the recession in the early 1990's, he innovatively cultivated a Canadian Asian market along Highway 7 between Leslie Street and Bayview Avenue in Richmond Hill of Ontario. His success in launching over one million square feet of commercial condominiums to Asian entrepreneurs is well-regarded. Mr. Sung is the founding director of the Richmond Hill & Markham Chinese Business Association, and President of the Vaughan Chinese Business Association. His mission is to bring forth a closer tie between Canadian entrepreneurs and their Chinese counterparts.
Chris M. K. Cheng ⁽¹⁾	 Mr. Cheng is an entrepreneur and licensed mortgage broker in Ontario. Since 2013, he has been the Chief Operating Officer and a director of the Corporation, and a director and officer of each of the Manager and the Administrator. Between October 2011 and August 2013, he served as director of Gingko Mortgage Investment Corporation, in which capacity he was primary responsibility was in the area of risk management, which included managing the portfolio risk by developing underwriting guidelines and funding procedures, underwriting deals, managing renewals, delinquency, and other similar matters. During the same period, he also served as Vice President, Business Development of iBrokerPower Capital Inc. Between 1992 and 2011, Mr. Cheng worked at TD Canada Trust, where he held a number of senior positions within the organization such as Director of TD Mutual Funds, Personal Loan Officer, Branch Manager and District Vice-President for the

Name	Principal occupation and relevant experience during last 5 years			
	 Greater Toronto Area, managing over 16 branches and 280+ employees. Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Windsor with a Bachelor of Science degree (Biology) in 1989 and with a Bachelor of Art degree (Economics) in 1991. He obtained his mutual funds license in 1993 and completed the CSI Branch Compliance Officer course in 2002. Mr. Cheng is also a member of Private Capital Markets Association of Canada, Canadian Mortgage Brokers Association (CMBA) and Mortgage Professionals of Canada (MPC). 			
Phoebe M. K. Lam ⁽¹⁾	 Ms. Lam is registered as a mortgage broker in Ontario. She serves as the Principal Broker for the Manager and the Administrator. Upon immigrating to Canada in 2011, Ms. Lam obtained her mortgage agent license working for the Mortgage Centre and as Sales Manager at TORCE Capital Inc. She achieved the Top New Mortgage Agent Award in 2012 and has demonstrated a passion and a world of knowledge on real estate investment and mortgage financing. Previously, she worked as a Research Development Coordinator at Harborview Medical Centre in Seattle and at Rush Medical Centre in Chicago, where she developed strong analytical and project management skills. Ms. Lam is an Accredited Mortgage Professional, a member of the Canadian Mortgage Brokers Association (CMBA), and of the Mortgage Professionals of Canada (MPC). Ms. Lam earned her degrees and certifications from the University of Waterloo and the University of Washington. She successfully completed the Moody's Analytics Certification for Analyzing Commercial Real Estate course offered by the Canadian Securities Institute. Ms. Lam is an experienced land investor, actively involved in a number of land development projects in Ontario, Alberta, Florida, California and Washington. 			
Vince Tarantino ^{(1) (2)}	 Mr. Tarantino has been involved in the financial industry since 1990. He began his career with TD Canada Trust as Senior Manager within the Retail Banking Division, then promoted as Manager of Residential Mortgages shortly after. In 2009, Mr. Tarantino joined Dominion Lending Centres as a Mortgage Agent. Since 2013, he has been the Franchise Owner and Principal Broker of Dominion Lending Centres Supreme. His office funds an average of 100+ Million Dollars of mortgages per year. Mr. Tarantino is highly recognized and respected in his field, winning the Top Investors Award for Mortgage Broker of the Year in 2013 and Top Performers Award at the Dominion Lending Network in dollar volume of mortgages funded in Canada. Recently, Mr. Tarantino was inducted as a VIP Member of the DLC Elite Hall of Fame. 			
Peter K. C. Lee ⁽²⁾ CA, CPA, CFP	 Mr. Lee is a Chartered Professional Accountant (CPA), with over 16 years of public accounting experience, ten of which were gained at Big 4 firms. Since 2014, he has been the President of Peter K.C. Lee Professional Corporation, Chartered Professional Accountant. From July 2013 to April 2014, he was a Principal at WH Partners LLP, Chartered Accountants. From September 2005 through Jun 2013, Mr. Lee was a Senior Manager – Assurance, Private Mid-Market Group at EY. Mr. Lee has significant experience in providing accounting and assurance services for both public and private companies, as well as financial and tax planning advice. He brings to the Board strong financial analysis skills, as well as knowledge of ASPE, IRFS and U.S. GAAP. 			

Note:

(1) Member of the Corporation's Credit Committee.

(2) Member of the Corporation's Conflicts Committee.

3.3 Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy

No director, executive officer, control person (collectively, an "**Insider**") or any issuer of which an Insider was a director, executive officer or control person at the time, has during the last 10 years:

- (a) been subject to any penalty or sanction, or any cease trade order that has been in effect for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; or
- (b) made a declaration of bankruptcy, voluntary assignment in bankruptcy, proposal under any bankruptcy or insolvency legislation, proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or appointed a receiver, receiver-manager or trustee to hold assets.

3.4 Loans

As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, there are no debentures or loans due to or from any of the directors, management, promoters or principal holders of the Corporation.

ITEM 4 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

4.1 Share Capital

The following table sets out the capitalization of the Corporation:

Description of security	Number authorized to be issued	Price Per Security	Number outstanding as at July 31, 2017	Number outstanding after maximum offering
Common Shares ⁽¹⁾	Unlimited	\$10.00	1,000	N/A
Preferred Shares ⁽²⁾	Unlimited	\$10.00	2,923,901	5,000,000

Notes:

(1) The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares without nominal or par value. Holders of Common Shares have the right to receive notice of and to attend all meetings of Shareholders, and to one vote in respect of each Common Share held. Subject to the rights of the holders of Preferred Shares, the holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive and participate rateably in dividends declared by the Board. Subject to the rights of the holders of Preferred Shares, in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or other distribution of the assets of the Corporation among its Shareholders for the purposes of winding up its affairs, the holders of the Cormon Shares shall participate *pari passu* with the holders of the Preferred Shares in the distribution of the assets of the Corporation. The Board may not make any distribution to the holders of Common Shares if such distribution would result in the Corporation having insufficient net assets to redeem or purchase the outstanding Preferred Shares.

(2) For a description of the terms of the Preferred Shares, see "Item 5 - Securities Offered - Terms of Securities".

4.2 Long Term Debt Securities

The Corporation has no outstanding debt securities.

4.3 Prior Sales

Within the past 12 months, the Corporation has issued Preferred Shares as follows:

Date of Issuance	Type of Security	Number of securities	Price per	Total Funds
	Issued	issued	security	Received
August 1, 2016 to October 10, 2017	Preferred Shares	1,362,053	\$10.00	\$13,620,530

4.4 Redemption History

The following table summarizes the Preferred Shares redeemed by the Corporation during the last two financial years, and in the current financial year to the date of this Offering Memorandum:

	Opening balance of outstanding Received During Period		Redemption Requests Fulfilled During Period		Closing balance of	
Date	redemption requests (\$)	Value (\$)	Number of Preferred Shares	Value (\$)	Number of Preferred Shares	outstanding redemption requests (\$)
Financial year ended October 31, 2015	Nil	285,000	28,500	285,000	28,500	Nil
Financial year ended Oct. 31, 2016	Nil	1,809,190	180,919	1,809,190	180,919	Nil
Nov. 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017	Nil	3,199,460	219,946	3,199,460	219,946	Nil

ITEM 5 SECURITIES OFFERED

5.1 Terms of Securities

The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Preferred Shares, which have the following rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions;

(a) *Voting*: Except as provided by the CBCA, the holders of the Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Shareholders.

(b) *Dividends:*

- (i) To receive, in each year, out of any or all profits or surplus available for dividends, noncumulative dividends as and when declared in the discretion of the Board. Any dividend payable is payable, in the discretion of the Board at the rate set by them, and in preference and priority to any dividends on the Common Shares.
- (ii) After payment to them of their preferred dividends as set out in paragraph (b)(i), and payment of dividends in a like amount per share to holders of the Common Shares, holders of Preferred Shares have a right to participate *pari passu* with the holders of Common Shares in any further payment of dividends.

The Corporation, at the request of the Subscriber as provided for in the Subscription Agreement, is permitted to issue Preferred Shares in lieu of cash dividends.

- (c) Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding-Up: To receive, on the liquidation, dissolution, winding-up or other distribution of the assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs and before distribution of any part of the assets of the Corporation to holders of the Common Shares an amount equal to the Redemption Amount. After such amounts have been distributed to the holders of the Preferred Shares, the holders of the Preferred Shares will participate pari passu with the holders of the Common Shares in the distribution of any remaining amount available for distribution.
- (d) Redemption Amount: The redemption price for each Preferred Share shall be, at the discretion of the directors, the lesser of: (i) \$10.00 per Preferred Share plus any declared but unpaid dividends thereon; or the net realizable value attributable to each Preferred Share as determined in accordance with an internal share valuation prepared by management, calculated at the relevant time and subject to the sole and absolute discretion of the Board (both referred to as the "Redemption Amount"). A Preferred Share shall not be redeemed or purchased for an amount greater than the Redemption Amount.
(e) *Redemption:*

- (i) By resolution of the Board, the Corporation may, on giving thirty (30) days' notice of its intent provided in paragraph (e)(ii) below (the "Redemption Notice"), redeem at any time and from time to time the whole or any part of the then outstanding Preferred Shares on the date fixed by such resolution at an amount equal to the Redemption Amount.
- (ii) The Redemption Notice will:
 - i. be in writing;
 - ii. be given to each person who, at the date the Corporation gives the notice, is the registered holder of the Preferred Shares that the Corporation intends to redeem;
 - iii. be given by delivering or posting same in a postage paid envelope addressed to each holder of Preferred Shares at the last address of such holder as it appears in the Corporation's securities register, or if the shareholder's address does not appear in the Corporation's securities register, at the address of such shareholder last known to the Corporation; provided that if the Corporation accidentally fails or omit to give notice to one or more of the shareholders such failure or omission will not affect the validity of the redemption of the Preferred Shares that the Corporation intends to redeem; and
 - iv. set out the Redemption Amount and the date on which the Corporation intends to redeem the Preferred Shares (the "**Redemption Date**").

Any holder of a Preferred Share to be redeemed may waive the thirty (30) day prior notice period, the giving of notice, or both.

- (iii) Subject to paragraph (e)(iv) below, on or after the Redemption Date:
 - i. the Corporation will pay or cause to be paid the Redemption Amount to the holders of the Preferred Shares that the Corporation intends to redeem, on presentation and surrender of the certificate or certificates for the Preferred Shares called for redemption at the Corporation's registered office or any other place or places within Canada designated by the Redemption Notice; and
 - ii. such payment will be made by cheque payable at par at any branch in Canada of the Corporation's bankers.

The Preferred Shares in which the Corporation has paid the Redemption Amount in the foregoing manner will, on such payment, be considered to be redeemed. From and after the Redemption Date, the holders of Preferred Shares that the Corporation intends to redeem will not be entitled to exercise any rights of holders in respect of such shares, except to receive the Redemption Amount of those shares, unless the Corporation does not pay the redemption on the presentation of the share certificates in the foregoing manner, in which case, such holders' rights shall remain in full effect.

(iv) If upon giving notice that the Corporation intends to redeem a portion of the outstanding Preferred Shares, the Corporation receives acceptance of an aggregate number of shares greater than the number for which the Corporation is prepared to accept, then the Preferred Shares will be purchased, as nearly as may be, pro rata, to the number of Preferred Shares so offered for redemption by each of the holders of the Preferred Shares.

(f) *Retraction:*

- (i) Subject to paragraph (f)(iii), paragraph (f)(iv) and paragraph (f)(v)below, the Corporation will purchase or redeem the number of Preferred Shares described in a notice, complying with paragraph (f)(ii) below, received by the Corporation (the "Retraction Notice"):
 - i. on the date (the "Date of Retraction") that is no later than the last business day of the calendar month which is six full months following the month in which a Retraction Notice is received by the Corporation,; and
 - ii. for an amount equal to the Redemption Amount calculated as of the Date of Retraction times the number of Preferred Shares to be redeemed or purchased.
- (ii) The Retraction Notice from any holder of the Preferred Shares to the Corporation will:
 - i. be in writing;
 - ii. set out the number of Preferred Shares to be redeemed or purchased; and
 - iii. set out the chartered bank, trust company or address in the city in which the registered office of the Corporation is located to which any amount on the redemption or purchase is to be paid.
- (iii) Retraction of Preferred Shares will not be redeemed by the Corporation for which a Retraction Notice is received, if:
 - i. redemption of the aggregate number of Preferred Shares subject to the Retraction Notices would result in the Corporation having retracted a number of Preferred Shares during the period of time since the start of the most recent fiscal year which is greater than 25% of the Preferred Shares issued and outstanding (as at the beginning of the fiscal year during which the last of such Retraction Notices are given); or
 - ii. redemption of the aggregate number of Preferred Shares subject to the Retraction Notices given in a calendar month would result in the Corporation having retracted a number of Preferred Shares on the corresponding Date of Retraction which is greater than 5% of the Preferred Shares issued and outstanding (as at the beginning of the fiscal year during which such Retraction Notices are given).

Subject to the requirements of the CBCA, the Corporation may waive either or both of the aforementioned limitations for any Date of Retraction, and failing such waiver, Preferred Shares which are subject to Retraction Notices given in any one calendar month will be redeemed on a basis which is pro rata to the number of Preferred Shares subject to such Retraction Notices.

- (iv) Retraction of Preferred Shares will not be redeemed by the Corporation for which a Retraction Notice is received, if it would result in:
 - i. the Corporation having less than 20 holders of Preferred Shares;
 - ii. the Corporation failing to qualify as a "Mortgage Investment Corporation" as that term is defined in the Tax Act;
 - iii. any Preferred Shareholder becoming a Specified Shareholder as defined under the Mortgage Investment Corporation provisions of the Tax Act, as amended from time to time; or

- iv. the Corporation failing to comply with any solvency tests or be in violation of any other provision of the CBCA;
- (v) Any retraction requested by a holder of Preferred Shares pursuant to a Retraction Notice in respect of the original number of Preferred Shares subscribed for by that holder, shall be subject to a discount on the applicable Date of Retraction in accordance with the following schedule of discounts:
 - i. On Preferred Share Date of Retractions within the first 12 months after any holder of Preferred Shares becomes a shareholder 4.0% discount
 - ii. On Preferred Share Date of Retractions between 12 to 24 months after any holder of Preferred Shares becomes a shareholder 3.0% discount
 - iii. On Preferred Share Date of Retractions between 24 to 36 months after any holder of Preferred Shares becomes a shareholder 2.0% discount
 - iv. On Preferred Share Date of Retractions between 36 to 48 months after any holder of Preferred Shares becomes a shareholder 1.0% discount
 - v. On Preferred Share Date of Retractions after 48 months 0% discount

The Board may, in their sole discretion, waive the retraction discount for any particular retraction request.

(g) Redemption or Retraction Deposit: If a Retraction Notice or Redemption Notice is given in respect to any of the Preferred Shares, then an amount sufficient to redeem or purchase those Preferred Shares to be redeemed or purchased shall be deposited by the Corporation with any trust company or chartered bank or be sent to the address specified in the Retraction Notice or Redemption Notice, on or before the date so fixed for the redemption or purchase. The holder shall have no rights against the Corporation in respect to these Preferred Shares except upon surrender of certificates for Preferred Shares, to receive payment thereout of the money so deposited.

Constraints on Transferability

The Corporation intends to refuse registration of any allotment or any transfer of Preferred Shares that would result in the Corporation ceasing to meet the qualifications of a MIC. See Item 6 - "Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility – 6.1 Status of the Corporation". As the Corporation is not currently a reporting issuer in the selling jurisdictions or in any other jurisdiction, the Class B Shares are subject to resale restrictions pursuant to applicable securities laws. See Item 10 – "Resale Restrictions".

Dividend Policy and Reinvestment Plan

Subject to applicable laws, the holders of Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive, and the Corporation shall pay thereon, dividends as and when declared from time to time by the Board out of the assets of the Corporation properly applicable to the payment of dividends, in an amount determined by the Board in its absolute discretion. Dividends will be paid in cash by direct deposit, certified cheque, money order or bank draft, or at the option of Shareholder, through the issuance of additional Preferred Shares ("**Dividend Shares**").

Holders of Preferred Shares may from time to time elect to receive dividends in cash or Dividend Shares by delivering to the Corporation written notice of such election not less than 60 days before the effective date of such election. Dividend Shares will be issued at the price of \$10.00 per Dividend Share, or such other price per Dividend Share as the Board may determine upon 90 days' prior written notice to the holders of Preferred Shares. The Corporation reserves the right to amend or cancel its policy regarding the issuance of Dividend Shares.

The reinvestment of dividends does not relieve a Shareholder of liability for tax on those dividends. Shareholders who intend to receive Dividend Shares in lieu of cash should consult their tax advisers about the tax consequences that will result from their acquisition of Dividend Shares.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may, for fiscal planning or other tax efficiency reasons, in their discretion declare an additional dividend to Shareholders payable on December 31. Each such additional dividend may be satisfied by the issuance of additional shares of the Corporation, cash, or other property of the Corporation. Immediately following payment of any such additional dividend in shares, the number of shares of the applicable class outstanding after the dividend will be consolidated such that each Shareholder will hold after the consolidation the same number and class of shares as the Shareholder held before the additional dividend. In such case, each certificate representing one or more shares prior to such dividend shall be deemed to represent the same number and class of shares after such dividend and consolidation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, where tax is required to be withheld from a Shareholder's participation in the additional dividend, the consolidation will result in such Shareholder holding that number of shares equal to (a) the number and class of shares held by such Shareholder prior to the dividend plus the number and class of shares received by such Shareholder in connection with the additional dividend (net of any taxes withheld) prior to the consolidation multiplied by (b) the fraction obtained by dividing the aggregate number of shares of the applicable class outstanding prior to the dividend by the aggregate number of shares of the applicable class that would be outstanding following the additional dividend and before the consolidation if no withholding were made in respect of any part of the additional dividend payable to any Shareholder. Any such Shareholder, subject to withholding, will be required to surrender the share certificate(s), if any, representing such Shareholder's original shares in exchange for a certificate representing such Shareholder's post-consolidation shares.

There is no assurance of any return on a Shareholder's investment. The Preferred Shares are not debt instruments and there is no principal amount owing to Shareholders under the Preferred Shares. An investment in the Preferred Shares is not insured through the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation.

5.2 Subscription Procedure

This Offering is a continuation of an offering previously made pursuant to the accredited investor exemption. The Preferred Shares are offered if and when Subscription Agreements are accepted by the Corporation and subject to prior sale. The maximum offering is 5,000,000 Preferred Shares (\$50,000,000). The minimum initial subscription is 1,000 Preferred Shares (\$10,000) and the minimum subsequent investment amount is 500 Preferred Shares (\$5,000).

Subscribers who wish to purchase Preferred Shares will be required to enter into a Subscription Agreement with the Corporation by completing and delivering the Subscription Agreement and related documentation to the Corporation. The Subscription Agreement contains, among other things, representations and warranties required to be made by the purchaser that it is duly authorized to purchase the Preferred Shares, that it is purchasing the Preferred Shares for investment and not with a view for resale, and as to its corporate status or other qualifications to purchase the Preferred Shares on a "private placement" basis. For the specific terms of these representations, warranties and conditions, please refer to the Subscription Agreement and related documentation, copies of which are attached as Schedule "A" to this Offering Memorandum. All subscription documents should be reviewed by prospective subscribers and their professional advisers prior to subscribing for Preferred Shares.

A purchaser wishing to subscribe for Preferred Shares must return to RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation, Unit 28 - 360 Highway 7 East, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7, the following:

- (a) a completed Subscription Agreement in the form of Schedule "A" to this Offering Memorandum, including all applicable schedules thereto; and
- (b) payment by direct deposit, certified cheque, money order or bank draft in the amount of the aggregate Subscription Price of the Preferred Shares subscribed for, payable to "**RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation**".

Subject to applicable securities laws, and the purchaser's two-day cancellation right, a subscription for Preferred Shares, evidenced by a duly completed Subscription Agreement delivered to the Corporation shall be irrevocable by the Subscriber. See "Item 11 – Purchasers' Rights". The subscription funds delivered together with a Subscription Agreement will be held in trust until midnight of the second Business Day subsequent to the date that each Subscription notice prior to midnight of the second Business Day after the signing date, all subscription funds delivered by such Subscriber will be promptly returned without interest or deduction, plus applicable documentation.

Thereafter, subscription funds received will be held in trust by the Corporation pending closing of the Offering. Subscriptions for Preferred Shares will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part, and the right is reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. The Minimum Offering was completed in March 2014. Additional Closings will take place at such dates and times as may be determined by the Corporation in its sole discretion. Any funds for subscriptions that the Corporation does not accept will be promptly returned without interest after the Corporation has determined not to accept the subscription.

Qualified Subscribers

The Offering of Units is being made to, and subscriptions will only be accepted from, investors who are residents in Provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, Ontario, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Island and purchase the Preferred Shares pursuant to the "offering memorandum" exemption set out in Section 2.9 of NI 45-106, the "accredited investor" exemption set out in Section 2.3 of NI 45-106 and section 73.3 of the *Securities Act* (Ontario), the Minimum Amount Investment exemption set out in Section 2.10 of NI-45-106, and other applicable exemptions from the prospectus and registration requirements of applicable securities laws of the offering jurisdictions available under NI 45-106.

The foregoing exemptions relieve the Corporation from provisions of applicable securities laws that would otherwise require the Corporation to file and obtain a receipt for a prospectus, and distribute the Preferred Shares through a registered securities dealer. Accordingly, Subscribers will not receive the benefits associated with purchasing the Preferred Shares pursuant to a filed prospectus, including the review of the material by securities regulatory authorities, and may not receive the benefits associated with the involvement of registered securities dealers.

Each Subscriber is urged to consult with its own legal adviser as to the details of the statutory exemption being relied upon and the consequences of purchasing securities pursuant to such exemption.

Investment Limits

In certain jurisdictions in Canada, the "offering memorandum" exemption set out in Section 2.9 of NI 45-106 establishes certain investment limits for individual investors. The acquisition costs of all securities acquired by an individual investor under Section 2.9 of NI 45-106 in the preceding 12 months may not exceed the following amounts:

- in the case of a purchaser that is not an "eligible investor" (as such term is defined in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106), \$10,000;
- in the case of a purchaser that is an eligible investor, \$30,000; and
- in the case of a purchaser that is an eligible investor and that received advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer that the investment is suitable, \$100,000.

Each Subscriber is urged to consult with its own legal adviser as to the details of the statutory exemption being relied upon and the consequences of purchasing securities pursuant to such exemption.

By signing the Subscription Agreement, each Subscriber represent and warrant that the Subscriber meets the conditions of the applicable prospectus exemption in purchasing Preferred Shares pursuant to the Offering and is thus entitled under the prospectus exemption to purchase Preferred Shares without the benefit of a prospectus qualified under applicable securities laws.

You should carefully review the terms of the Subscription Agreement accompanying this Offering Memorandum for more detailed information concerning the rights and obligations of you and the Corporation. Execution and delivery of the subscription agreement will bind you to the terms thereof, whether executed by you or by an agent on your behalf. You should consult with your own professional advisors. See Item 8 – "Risk Factors".

ITEM 6 INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES AND RRSP ELIGIBILITY

You should consult your own professional advisers to obtain advice on the income tax consequences that apply to you.

Summary of Tax Consequences to Shareholders

In the opinion of Rosenswig McRae Thorpe, LLP, Chartered Accountants, tax advisors to the Corporation, the following constitutes a fair and adequate summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations generally applicable under the Tax Act to Shareholders that acquire Preferred Shares pursuant to this Offering Memorandum and who, at all relevant times, for the purposes of the Tax Act, hold their Preferred Shares as capital property, deal at arm's length with the Corporation, and are not affiliated with the Corporation. A Preferred Share will generally be considered to be capital property to a Shareholder unless either (i) the Shareholder holds the Preferred Share in the course of carrying on a business of buying and selling securities, or (ii) the Shareholder has acquired the Preferred Share in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure in the nature of trade.

This summary is not applicable to a Shareholder: (i) that is a "specified financial institution"; (ii) an interest in which is a "tax shelter investment"; (iii) that is a "financial institution" (as defined in the Tax Act for purposes of the mark-to-market rules); (iv) that reports its "Canadian tax results" in a currency other than Canadian currency; or (v) that enters into a "derivative forward agreement" in respect of the Shares, each as defined in the Tax Act. Such purchasers should consult their own tax advisors.

This summary was provided on October 10, 2017, and is based upon the facts set out in this Offering Memorandum, the current provisions of the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder, all specific proposals (the "Tax **Proposals**") to amend the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date hereof and the current published administrative practices of the Canada Revenue Agency. This summary assumes that any Tax Proposals will be enacted as currently proposed but does not take into account or anticipate any other changes in law whether by legislative, governmental or judicial action and does not take into account tax legislation or considerations of any province, territory or foreign jurisdiction.

The summary contained in this section is of a general nature only and is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax considerations. It is not intended to be and should not be interpreted as legal or tax advice to any particular individual. Individuals are urged to consult with their own tax adviser regarding the income tax considerations to them of acquiring, holding and disposing of Preferred Shares, including the application and effect of the income and other tax laws of any country, province, state or local tax authority.

6.1 Status of the Corporation

This summary is based on the assumption that the Corporation will at all times meet certain conditions imposed on the Corporation under the Tax Act in order to qualify as a MIC thereunder. These conditions will generally be satisfied if, throughout a taxation year of the Corporation:

(a) the Corporation was a "Canadian corporation" as defined in the Tax Act;

- (b) the Corporation's only undertaking was the investing of funds and it did not manage or develop any real or immovable property;
- (c) no debts were owing to the Corporation that were secured on real or immovable property situated outside Canada;
- (d) no debts were owing to the Corporation by non-resident persons unless such debts were secured on real or immovable property situated in Canada;
- (e) the Corporation did not own shares of non-resident corporations;
- (f) the Corporation did not hold real or immovable property, or any leasehold interest in such property, located outside of Canada;
- (g) the cost amount of the Corporation's property consisting of debts secured by mortgages, hypothecs or in any other manner on houses or on property included within a housing project (as those terms are defined in the *National Housing Act*), together with cash on hand and deposits with a bank or any other corporation whose deposits are insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation or with a credit union (collectively, the "**Qualifying Property**") was at least 50% of the cost amount to it of all of its property;
- (h) the cost amount of real or immovable property (including leasehold interests therein but excluding real or immovable property acquired as a consequence of foreclosure or defaults on a mortgage held by the Corporation) owned by the Corporation did not exceed 25% of the cost amount to it of all of its property;
- the Corporation had at least 20 shareholders and no person was a "specified shareholder", meaning that no shareholder together with persons related to the shareholder (within the meaning of the Tax Act) may hold, directly or indirectly, more than 25% of the shares of any class of the Corporation at any time in the taxation year;
- (j) holders of Preferred Shares had a right, after payment to them of their preferred dividends, and payment of dividends in a like amount per share to the holders of the Common Shares, to participate *pari passu* with the holders of Common Shares in any further payment of dividends;
- (k) where at any time in the year the cost amount to the Corporation of its Qualifying Property was less than two-thirds of the cost amount to it of all of its property, the Corporation's liabilities did not exceed three times the amount by which the cost amount to it of all of its property exceeded its liabilities; and
- (l) where the requirement in (xi) is not applicable in that the cost amount of its Qualifying Property equalled or was greater than two-thirds of the cost amount of all its property, the Corporation's liabilities did not exceed five times the amount by which the cost amount to it of all its property exceeded its liabilities.

If the Corporation were at any time to fail to qualify as a MIC, the income tax considerations would be materially different from those described below. Tax considerations applicable where the Corporation does not so qualify as a MIC at any particular time are not discussed in this summary or elsewhere in the Offering Memorandum.

6.2 Taxation of the Corporation

Provided the Corporation remains a MIC throughout the year, the Corporation will be entitled to deduct the full amount of all taxable dividends (other than capital gains dividends) which it pays during the year or within 90 days after the end of the year to the extent that such dividends were not deductible by the Corporation in computing its income for the preceding year. A MIC may declare a capital gains dividend in an amount equal to the gross amount of its capital gains if it is paid during the period commencing 91 days after the commencement of the year

and ending 90 days after the end of the year and is entitled to deduct half of such dividend from its taxable income. The combination of the Corporation's deduction for capital gains dividends and the shareholder's deemed capital gain allows the Corporation to flow capital gains through to a shareholder on a tax-efficient basis. The Corporation intends to declare dividends each year in sufficient amounts to reduce its taxable income to nil. To the extent that it does not do so, the Corporation will be taxed at the highest corporate rates.

No deduction may be made by the Corporation in respect of taxable dividends received by the Corporation from other corporations.

6.3 Taxation of Shareholders

(a) Shareholders Resident in Canada

This section of the summary applies to a Shareholder who, at all relevant times, is, or is deemed to be, resident in Canada for the purposes of the Tax Act, and any applicable income tax treaty or convention (a "**Resident Shareholder**"). This section of the summary is not applicable to a Resident Shareholder: (i) that is a "financial institution" for purposes of the mark-to-market rules in the Tax Act; (ii) that is a "specified financial institution" as defined in the Tax Act; (iii) that reports its "Canadian tax results" within the meaning of the Tax Act in a currency other than Canadian currency; or (iv) an interest in which is a "tax shelter investment" for the purposes of the Tax Act. Such Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to an investment in Preferred Shares.

A Resident Shareholder whose Preferred Shares might not otherwise qualify as capital property may be entitled to make the irrevocable election provided by subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act to have the Preferred Shares owned by such Resident Shareholder in the taxation year of the election and in all subsequent taxation years deemed to be capital property. Resident Shareholder should consult their own tax advisors for advice as to whether an election under subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act is available and/or advisable in their particular circumstances.

Provided the Corporation qualifies as a MIC under the Tax Act throughout the taxation year, any dividends, other than capital gains dividends, paid by the Corporation during a taxation year or within 90 days after the end thereafter to a Resident Shareholder will be deemed to be interest income for purposes of the Tax Act.

Any amount received by a Resident Shareholder during the period commencing 91 days after the commencement of the year and ending 90 days after the end of the year, as dividend which the MIC has declared as capital gains dividend, will be deemed to be a capital gain for the Resident Shareholder from a disposition of capital property.

Where a Resident Shareholder is a "Canadian-controlled private corporation" (as defined in the Tax Act), capital gains dividends and ordinary dividends received on the Preferred Shares will be subject to an additional tax, a portion of which is refundable.

On the disposition or deemed disposition of a Preferred Share by a Resident Shareholder, the Resident Shareholder will generally realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition in respect of such Preferred Share, net of any reasonable costs of disposition, exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base of the Preferred Share to the Resident Shareholder. A Resident Shareholder's proceeds of disposition will not include an amount payable by the Corporation on the Preferred Share that is otherwise required to be included in the Resident Shareholder's income.

One-half of the amount of any capital gain (a "**taxable capital gain**") realized by a Resident Shareholder in a taxation year must be included in computing such Resident Shareholder's income for that year, and one-half of any capital loss (an "**allowable capital loss**") realized by a Resident Shareholder in a taxation year must be deducted from any taxable capital gains realized by the Resident Shareholder in the year, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act. Allowable capital losses in excess of taxable capital gains realized in a taxation year may be carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any following taxation year against taxable capital gains realized in such years, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act.

On an acquisition of Preferred Shares by the Corporation, a Resident Shareholder generally will be deemed to have received, and the Corporation will be deemed to have paid, a dividend in an amount equal to the amount by which the price paid by the Corporation exceeds the paid-up capital of the purchased Preferred Shares. This deemed dividend will be treated in the same manner as other dividends received by the Resident Shareholder from the Corporation (i.e. as interest income or a capital gain depending on whether the Corporation elects that the entire dividend be a capital gains dividend). The balance of the purchase price, if any, will constitute proceeds of disposition of the Preferred Shares for purposes of the capital gains rules, as described above.

In general terms, capital gains dividends, paid or payable, or deemed to be paid or payable, to a Resident Shareholder who is an individual or trust (other than certain specified trusts), and capital gains realized on the disposition of Preferred Shares by such Resident Shareholder, may increase the Resident Shareholder's liability for alternative minimum tax.

(b) Shareholders not Resident in Canada

This portion of the summary is generally applicable to a Shareholder who, at all relevant times, for purposes of the Tax Act: (i) is not, and is not deemed to be, resident in Canada for the purposes of the Tax Act or any applicable income tax treaty or convention; and (ii) does not and will not use or hold, and is not and will not be deemed to hold, the Preferred Shares in connection with carrying on a business in Canada (a "**Non-Resident Shareholder**"). This portion of the summary does not apply to a Non-Resident Shareholder that carries on, or is deemed to carry on, an insurance business in Canada and elsewhere and such Non-Resident Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to an investment in Preferred Shares.

Provided the Corporation qualifies as a MIC under the Tax Act throughout the taxation year, any dividends, other than capital gains dividends, paid by the Corporation during a taxation year or within 90 days after the end thereafter to a Non-Resident Shareholder will be deemed to be payments of interest income for purposes of the Tax Act. Such deemed interest payments to a Non-Resident Shareholder may be considered to be "participating debt interest" (within the meaning of the Tax Act) and subject to Canadian withholding tax at the rate of 25% of the amount of the deemed interest payment, subject to any reduction in the rate of withholding to which the Non-Resident Shareholder is entitled under any applicable income tax treaty or convention between Canada and the country in which the Non-Resident Shareholder is resident. Accordingly, the Corporation intends to withhold and remit such tax at the rate of 25% of the amount of such deemed interest payment to a Non-Resident Shareholder, subject to any such reduction in the rate of withholding under any applicable income tax treaty or convention. Non-Resident Shareholder, subject to any such reduction in the rate of withholding under any applicable income tax treaty or convention. Non-Resident Shareholders should consult with their own tax advisors before acquiring Preferred Shares.

Capital gains dividends paid by the Corporation to a Non-Resident Shareholder should not be subject to non-resident withholding tax under the Tax Act.

On the disposition or deemed disposition of a Preferred Share by a Non-Resident Shareholder, the Non-Resident Shareholder will generally realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition in respect of such Preferred Share, net of any reasonable costs of disposition, exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base of the Preferred Share to the Non-Resident Shareholder. A Non-Resident Shareholder's proceeds of disposition will not include an amount payable by the Corporation on the Preferred Share that is otherwise required to be included in the Non-Resident Shareholder's income.

However, a Non-Resident Shareholder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act in respect of any capital gain realized by such Non-Resident Shareholder on a disposition of Preferred Shares, unless the Preferred Shares constitute "taxable Canadian property" (as defined in the Tax Act) of the Non-Resident Shareholder at the time of disposition and the Non-Resident Shareholder is not entitled to relief under an applicable income tax treaty or convention.

Preferred Shares generally will not constitute taxable Canadian property of a Non-Resident Shareholder, unless (a) at any time during the 60-month period immediately preceding the disposition or deemed disposition of the Preferred Shares more than 50% of the fair market value of the Preferred Shares was derived directly or indirectly from one or any combination of: (A) real or immovable property situated in Canada; (B) Canadian resource property (as defined in the Tax Act); (C) timber resource property (as defined in the Tax Act), or (D)

options in respect of, or interests in, or for civil law rights in, property described in any of (A) through (C) above, whether or not such property exists; or (b) the Preferred Shares are otherwise deemed under the Tax Act to be taxable Canadian property. For the purposes of the Tax Act, an interest in real property does not include an interest as security only derived by virtue of a mortgage.

If the Preferred Shares are taxable Canadian property to a Non-Resident Shareholder, any capital gain realized on the disposition or deemed disposition of such Preferred Shares may not be subject to Canadian federal income tax pursuant to the terms of an applicable income tax treaty or convention between Canada and the country of residence of a Non-Resident Shareholder.

On an acquisition of Preferred Shares by the Corporation, a Non-Resident Shareholder generally will be deemed to have received, and the Corporation will be deemed to have paid, a dividend in an amount equal to the amount by which the price paid by the Corporation exceeds the paid-up capital of the purchased Preferred Shares. This deemed dividend will be treated in the same manner as other dividends received by the Non-Resident Shareholder from the Corporation (i.e., as interest income, subject to non-resident withholding tax as described above, or a capital gain, depending on whether the Corporation elects that the entire dividend be a capital gains dividend). The balance of the purchase price, if any, will constitute proceeds of disposition of the Preferred Shares for purposes of the capital gains rules, as described above.

6.4 Taxation of Registered Plans

The Preferred Shares will be qualified investments for Deferred Plans at a particular time if the Corporation qualifies as a MIC under the Tax Act at such particular time and if throughout the calendar year in which the particular time occurs, the Corporation does not hold as part of its property any indebtedness, whether by way of mortgage or otherwise, of a person who is an annuitant, a beneficiary or a subscriber under, or a holder of, the particular Deferred Plan or of any other person who does not deal at arm's length with that person. Adverse tax consequences, not discussed herein, would generally result if the Corporation at any time fails to qualify as a MIC and the Preferred Shares otherwise fail to constitute qualified investments for Deferred Plans.

Notwithstanding that the Preferred Shares may be a qualified investment for a RRSP, RRIF or TFSA, the annuitant of an RRSP or RRIF or the holder of a TFSA, as the case may be, which acquires Preferred Shares will be subject to a penalty tax under the Tax Act if such Preferred Shares are a "prohibited investment" (within the meaning of the Tax Act) for the particular RRSP, RRIF or TFSA. Preferred Shares will generally be a prohibited investment for a RRSP, RRIF or TFSA if annuitant of the RRSP or RRIF or the holder of the TFSA, as applicable, does not deal at arm's length with the Corporation for purposes of the Tax Act or has a "significant interest" (within the meaning of the Tax Act) in the Corporation. In addition, Preferred Shares will not be prohibited investments if they are "excluded property" as defined in the Tax Act for RRSPs, RRIFs and TFSAs. Annuitants and holders should consult their own tax advisors to ensure that the Preferred Shares would not be a prohibited investment for a trust governed by a RRSP, RRIF or TFSA in their particular circumstances.

Dividends received by a Deferred Plan on Preferred Shares that are a qualified investment for such Deferred Plan will be exempt from income tax in the Deferred Plan, as will capital gains realized by the Deferred Plan on the disposition of such Preferred Shares. Withdrawals from Deferred Plans, other than a TFSA and certain withdrawals from a RDSP or RESP, are generally subject to tax under the Tax Act.

ITEM 7 COMPENSATION PAID TO SELLERS AND FINDERS

Where permitted by applicable securities laws, the Corporation may pay cash commissions or referral fees to any one of, or a combination of, Registered Dealers and qualified finders who refer Subscribers to the Corporation. The Corporation may pay a fee of up to 7% of the gross proceeds of the Offering received in connection with the sale of Preferred Shares pursuant to the Offering attributable to the applicable Registered Dealer or finder, and will be paid out of such gross proceeds of the Offering. Under no circumstances will a commission or referral fee be paid under any type of dividend reinvestment plan or periodic reinvestment plan.

ITEM 8 RISK FACTORS

This is a speculative Offering. The purchase of Preferred Shares involves a number of risk factors and is suitable only for Subscribers who are aware of the risks inherent in the real estate industry and who have the ability and willingness to accept the risk of loss of their invested capital and who have no immediate need for liquidity. There is no assurance of any return on a Subscriber's investment.

The Corporation advises that prospective Subscribers should consult with their own independent professional legal, tax, investment and financial advisors before purchasing Preferred Shares in order to determine the appropriateness of this investment in relation to their financial and investment objectives and in relation to the tax consequences of any such investment.

In addition to the factors set forth elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, prospective Subscribers should consider the following risks before purchasing Preferred Shares. Any or all of these risks, or other as yet unidentified risks, may have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, and/or the return to the Subscribers.

- (a) **Investment Risk** Risks that are specific to the Preferred Shares being offered under this Offering include the following:
 - (i) No Assurance of Achieving Investment Objectives There is no assurance that the Corporation will be able to achieve its investment objectives or be able to pay dividends at the currently anticipated levels or at all, or be able to preserve capital. The cash available for dividends to Shareholders is expected to vary according to, among other things, the interest and principal payments received in respect of the mortgage loans comprising the Corporation's mortgage portfolio, which will in turn depend on number of factors including economic conditions and prevailing interest rates, the level of risk assumed, conditions in the real estate industry, government policy and regulation. There is no assurance that the Corporation's mortgage portfolio will earn any return, or that principal amounts advanced to mortgageors will be repaid or otherwise recovered by the Corporation. An investment in the Preferred Shares is suitable for investors who can bear the risk of non-payment of dividends.
 - (ii) No Market for Preferred Shares and Resale Restrictions - There is no market through which the Preferred Shares may be sold and the Corporation does not expect that any market will develop pursuant to this Offering or in the future. The Preferred Shares are subject to a restrictions on transfer and resale imposed by applicable securities laws. Unless permitted under securities laws, no Unitholder can trade Units before the date that is four months and a day after the date the Corporation becomes a reporting issuer in any province or territory of Canada. The Corporation is not, and currently has no intention of becoming, a reporting issuer in any province or territory of Canada, and therefore all Preferred Shares will be subject to an indefinite hold period. The lack of a trading market and resale restrictions may impair an investor's ability to sell their Preferred Shares at the time they wish to sell them or at a price that they consider reasonable, and Preferred Shares may not be readily accepted as collateral for a loan. Subscribers should be prepared to hold these securities indefinitely and cannot expect to be able to liquidate their investment even in the case of an emergency. Accordingly, an investment in Preferred Shares is suitable solely for persons able to make and bear the economic risk of a long-term investment.
 - (iii) Retraction Liquidity The Preferred Shares are retractable, meaning that Subscribers have the right to require the Corporation to redeem them, upon appropriate advance notice from the Subscriber to the Corporation and pursuant to the terms contained in Item 5.1 "Securities Offered Terms of Securities". The Preferred Shares have retraction timings, as measured from the date on which the Subscriber is issued the Preferred Shares to the date on which the Subscriber is entitled to call for their redemption by the Corporation. If the Subscriber does not provide the Corporation with the appropriate

notice of retraction, the right of retraction is suspended until an additional time period has elapsed. Retractions may be suspended by the Corporation from time to time without advance notice to the Subscriber. See Item 5.1 - "Securities Offered - Terms of Securities".

The Corporation provides no assurance that any Subscriber will be able to retract any or all of their Preferred Shares at any time. Accordingly this investment is unsuitable for those prospective Subscribers who may require liquidity.

(iv) Absence of Voting Rights - The Preferred Shares being sold under this Offering do not carry voting rights, and consequently a Subscriber's investment in Preferred Shares does not carry with it any right to take part in the control or management of the Corporation's business, including the election of directors.

In assessing the risks and rewards of an investment in Preferred Shares, potential Subscribers should appreciate that they are relying solely on the good faith, judgment and ability of the Manager to make appropriate decisions with respect to the management of the Corporation, and that they will be bound by the decisions of the Corporation's and the Manager's directors, officers and employees. It would be inappropriate for Subscribers unwilling to rely on these individuals to this extent to purchase Preferred Shares.

- (v) Lack of Separate Legal Counsel The Subscribers, as a group, have not been represented by separate counsel. Neither counsel for the Corporation nor counsel for the Manager purport to have acted for the Subscribers nor to have conducted any investigation or review on their behalf.
- (vi) No Guarantees or Insurance A mortgageor's obligations to the Corporation are not guaranteed by the Government of Canada, the government of any province or any agency thereof nor are they insured under the National Housing Act (Canada). In the event that additional security is given by the borrower or a third party or that a private guarantor guarantees the mortgageor's borrower's obligations, there is no assurance that such additional security or guarantee will be sufficient to make the Corporation whole if and when resort is to be had thereto. Further, Preferred Shares are not "deposits" within the meaning of the *Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation Act* (Canada) and are not insured under the provisions of that act or any other legislation.
- (vii) **No Regulatory Review** No securities regulatory authority or regulator has assessed the merits of the Preferred Shares or reviewed this Offering Memorandum, and purchasers under the Offering will not have the benefit of a such an assessment or review.
- (viii) Non-Mortgage Investments In addition to investing in mortgages, the Corporation may invest in other investments as permitted under the Tax Act. The Tax Act requires a MIC to have at least 50% of its assets invested in houses (as defined in section 2 of the *National Housing Act*) or on property included within a housing project (as defined in that section), therefore the Corporation has discretion to invest in investments outside of mortgages, including but not limited to promissory notes, debentures or other such securities. The 'non-mortgage' investments may or may not be secured and may carry a greater risk than investing in mortgages.
- (b) **Corporation Risk** Risks that are specific to the Corporation include the following:

(i) **Qualification as a MIC.**

As a company qualified as a MIC, the Corporation may deduct taxable dividends it pays from its income, and the normal gross-up and dividend tax credit rules will not apply to dividends paid by the Corporation on the Preferred Shares. Rather, the dividends will be taxable in the hands of shareholders as if they had received an interest payment. If for any reason the Corporation ceases to qualify as a MIC, the income tax considerations describe above under the heading "Canadian Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility" would be materially and adversely different in certain respects. Among other things, if the Corporation did not qualify as a MIC through a particular taxation year, the dividends paid by the Corporation on the Preferred Shares would cease to be deductible from the income of the Corporation for that year and the dividends it pays on the Preferred Shares would be subject to the normal gross-up and dividend tax credit rules. In addition, the Preferred Shares might cease to be qualified investments for trusts governed by RRSPs, deferred profit sharing plans and registered retirement income funds, with adverse tax implications.

- (ii) Limited Operating History The Corporation was incorporated on November 21, 2013 and consequently as of the date of this Offering Memorandum it has limited history of investing in mortgages or raising funds. This limited of business history should be considered by Subscribers when purchasing Preferred Shares.
- (iii) **Key Personnel** The operations of the Corporation and the Manager are highly dependent upon the continued support and participation of their key personnel. The loss of their services may materially affect the timing or the ability of the Corporation to implement its business plan.

Since the Corporation's day-to-day activities are managed and administered exclusively by the Manager, the Corporation is exposed to adverse developments in the business and affairs of the Manager, to the Manager's management and financial strength, to the Manager's ability to operate its business profitably and to the ability of the Manager to retain any required licenses issued to it. The termination of the Management Agreement could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The management teams of the Corporation and the Manager consist of several key people. In order to manage the Corporation and the Manager successfully in the future, it may be necessary to further strengthen their management teams. The competition for such key personnel is intense, and there can be no assurance of success in attracting, retaining, or motivating such individuals. Failure in this regard would likely have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition, and results of operations.

(iv) Conflicts of Interest – The Corporation is subject to various conflicts of interest because the Manager and Administrator are owned and controlled by David Ho, Will Sung, Phoebe Lam, and Chris Cheng, who are also directors, officers, and shareholders of the Corporation. See "Item 2.8 – Conflicts of Interest". As a result of such relationships, there may be situations in which the interests of the Corporation conflict with those of Messrs. Ho, Sung, Cheng, and Ms. Lam (the "Conflicted Insiders").

Transactions among the Corporation, Manager and Administrator may be entered into without the benefit of arm's length bargaining. Consequently, the Corporation may make determinations and enter into transactions that benefit the Conflicted Insiders and other parties. Although such determinations and transactions that give rise to conflicts of interest are subject to review and approval by the independent directors of the Corporation pursuant to the CBCA, there can be no assurance that will result in the Corporation obtaining outcomes as good as it might otherwise obtain if such determinations had been made and transactions negotiated on an arm's-length basis.

The Corporation has agreed that neither the Manager nor the Administrator will be liable to the Corporation for default under the Management Agreement or Administration Agreement, respectively, due to the Manager, the Administrator, or any of their respective directors, officers, or their affiliates, engaging in business activities outside of their provision of services to the Corporation, even though such activities may be in competition with the Corporation or involve substantial time and resources, so long as they meet the standards of care respectively provided for in the Management Agreement and the Administration Agreement.

There is no assurance that any conflicts of interest that may arise will be resolved in a manner most favourable to Shareholders. Persons considering a purchase of Preferred Shares pursuant to this Offering must rely on the judgment and good faith of the directors, officers and employees of the Manager and the Corporation in resolving such conflicts of interest as may arise.

(v) Future Operations and Possible Need for Additional Funds - The Corporation requires significant funds to carry out its business plan. In the event the Corporation is unable to raise sufficient funds by this Offering and/or future and/or other debt or equity financing, the Corporation may have insufficient funds available to it to implement its business plan, and Subscribers may receive no return on their Preferred Shares. Certain uninsurable or uninsured events may also occur which can substantially reduce the ability of the Corporation to carry on business in a profitable manner, including natural or manmade disasters.

There can be no assurances, however, that the Corporation will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that it will not encounter unexpected costs in connection with implementing its business plan, and as a consequence there can be no assurances that the Corporation will not require additional financing. The Corporation has no current arrangements with respect to any other additional financing, and there can be no assurance that any such additional financing can be obtained on terms acceptable to the Corporation, or at all. Failure to obtain additional financing would likely have a substantial material adverse effect on the Corporation. Moreover, in the event the **Corporation were to obtain such additional financing, it could have a dilutive effect** on **Subscribers' participation in the revenues generated through the Corporation's** operations. Also, any security granted to a creditor by the Corporation would rank ahead of the claims of any Preferred Shareholder.

- (vi) Litigation Risk The Corporation may, from time to time, become involved in legal proceedings in the course of business. The costs of litigation and settlement can be substantial and there is no assurance that such costs will be recovered in whole or at all. During litigation, the Corporation may not receive payments of interest or principal on a mortgage loan that is the subject of litigation, which could affect cash flows. An unfavourable resolution of any legal proceedings could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation, its financial position and results of operations.
- (c) Industry Risk There are also risks faced by the Corporation because of the industry in which it operates and the current economic uncertainties. Real estate investment is subject to significant uncertainties due, among other factors, to uncertain costs of construction, development and financing, uncertainty as to the ability to obtain required licenses, permits and approvals, and fluctuating demand for developed real estate. The anticipated higher returns associated with the Corporation's mortgages reflect the greater risks involved in making these types of loans as compared to long-term conventional mortgages. Inherent in these loans are completion risks as well as financing risks. In addition, prospective Subscribers should take note of the following:
 - (i) Credit Risk The Corporation provides financing to borrowers who may not meet financing criteria for conventional mortgages from institutional sources and, as a result, these investments generally earn a higher rate of return than what institutional lenders may receive. Credit risk is the risk that the borrower will fail to discharge the obligation causing the Corporation to incur a financial loss. The Corporation will try to minimize its credit risk primarily by ensuring that the collateral value of the security fully protects both first, second and third mortgage advances, that there is a viable exist strategy for

each loan, and that loans are made to experienced developers and owners. In addition, the Corporation intends to limit the concentration of risk by diversifying its mortgage portfolio by way of locations, property type, maximum loan amount on any one property and maximum loan amount to any one borrower.

- (ii) Insurance The Corporation's mortgages will not usually be insured in whole or in part. As well, there are certain inherent risks in the real estate industry, some of which the Corporation may not be able to insure against or which the Corporation may elect not to insure due to the cost of such insurance. The effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted.
- (iii) Priority Financial charges for construction and other financing funded by conventional third party lenders may rank in priority to the mortgages registered in favour of the Corporation. In the event of default by the mortgagor under any prior financial charge, the Corporation may not recover any or all of the monies advanced under foreclosure proceedings.
- (iv) Default If there is default on a mortgage, it may be necessary for the Corporation, in order to protect the investment, to engage in foreclosure or sale proceedings and to make further outlays to complete an unfinished project or to maintain prior encumbrances in good standing. In those cases, it is possible that the total amount recovered by the Corporation may be less than the total investment, resulting in loss to the Corporation. Equity investments in real property may involve fixed costs in respect of mortgage payments, real estate taxes, and maintenance costs, which could adversely affect the Corporation's income.
- (v) Yield The yields on real estate investments, including mortgages, depend on many factors including economic conditions and prevailing interest rates, the level of risk assumed, conditions in the real estate industry, opportunities for other types of investments, legislation, governmental regulation and tax laws. The Corporation cannot predict the effect that such factors will have on its operations.
- (vi) Competition The earnings of the Corporation depend on the Corporation's ability, with the assistance of the Manager, to locate suitable opportunities for the investment and reinvestment of the Corporation's funds and on the yields available from time to time on mortgages and other investments. The investment industry in which the Corporation operates is subject to a wide variety of competition from private businesses in Canada and the United States, many of whom have greater financial and technical resources than the Corporation. Such competition, as well as any future competition, may adversely affect the Corporation's success in the marketplace. There is no assurance that the Corporation will be able to successfully maintain its business plan or operate profitably. Existing competitors may have greater financial, managerial and technical resources, and name recognition than the Corporation. Competitors may reduce the interest rates they charge, resulting in a reduction of the Corporation's share of the market, reduced interest rates on loans, and reduced profit margins.
- (vii) **Interest rates** It is anticipated that the value of the Corporation's investment portfolio at any given time may be affected by the level of interest rates prevailing at such time. The Corporation's income will consist primarily of interest payments on the mortgages comprising the Corporation's investment portfolio. If there is a decline in interest rates (as measured by the indices upon which the interest rates of the Corporation's mortgage assets are based), the Corporation may find it difficult to make a mortgage loan bearing acceptable rates. There can be no assurance that an interest rate environment in which there is a significant decline in interest rates would not adversely affect the Corporation's business, financial condition and results of operations which in turn may adversely affect the Corporation's ability to perform its obligations and its ability to maintain dividends on the Preferred Shares at a consistent and desirable level. Due to the term of the

mortgages made by the Corporation and the inability to accurately predict the extent to which the Corporation's mortgages may be prepaid, it is possible that the Corporation may not be able to sufficiently reduce interest rate risk associated with the replacement of such mortgages through new investments in mortgages.

- (viii) Property values - Even though the mortgages within the Corporation's portfolio will be secured by real property, the value of that real property may fluctuate. The value of real estate is affected by general economic conditions, local real estate markets, the attractiveness of the property to tenants where applicable, vacancy rates, operating expenses and other factors. The value of income-producing real property may also depend on the credit worthiness and financial stability of the borrowers and/or the tenants. While independent appraisals may be provided before the Corporation, on the advice of the Manager, makes a mortgage investment, the appraised values, even they are reported on an "as is" basis, are not necessarily reflective of the market value of the underlying real property, which may fluctuate. In addition, the appraised values reported in independent appraisals may be subject to certain conditions, including the completion, rehabilitation or making of leasehold improvements on the real property providing security for the loan. There can be no assurance that these conditions will be satisfied and, if and to the extent they are not satisfied, the loan amount may prove to exceed the value of the underlying real property thus resulting in a loan loss if the property must be sold to remedy a mortgage default. Even if such conditions are satisfied, the appraised value may not necessarily reflect the market value of the real property at the time the conditions are satisfied.
- (ix) Environmental liability Under various laws, the Corporation could become liable for the costs of effecting remedial work necessitated by the release, deposit or presence of certain materials, including hazardous or toxic substances and wastes, where the Corporation has exercised its right of re-entry or foreclosure or has otherwise assumed the occupation of the property. While the Corporation may obtain a Phase I environmental audit where there is a reasonable possibility of environmental contamination that might impact the value and marketability of a property, the Corporation does not systematically obtain environmental audits of all properties subject to mortgages.
- (x) Mortgage renewals There cannot be any assurances that any of the mortgages within the Corporation's portfolio from time to time can or will be renewed at the same interest rate and terms at maturity. It is possible that the mortgager, the mortgagee, or both will choose not to renew such mortgage. Even if the mortgages are renewed, the principal balance of such renewals, the interest rates, the term and conditions will be subject to negotiations between the mortgagor(s), the mortgagee, and the Manager at the time of renewal.
- (xi) Concentration / Portfolio allocation The allocation of mortgage investments in the Corporation's loan portfolio may change by geographic region, type of property and size of mortgage. This will result in the mortgage portfolio being more or less diversified from time to time. The shift of asset allocation may increase or decrease the Corporation's exposure to the constantly changing economic conditions. Also, investments in mortgages are relatively illiquid. Such illiquidity tends to limit the Company's ability to vary its Portfolio promptly in response to changing economic or investment conditions.
- (xii) **Change in Legislation** There can be no assurance that certain laws applicable to the Corporation, including Canadian federal and provincial income tax legislation, commodity and sales tax legislation, tax proposals, other governmental policies or regulations and governmental, administrative or judicial interpretation thereof, will not change in a manner that will adversely affect the Corporation or fundamentally alter the

tax consequences to Shareholders acquiring, holdings or disposing of the Preferred Shares.

ITEM 9 REPORTING OBLIGATIONS

The Corporation is not a reporting issuer for purposes of applicable securities legislation, nor will it become a reporting issuer following the completion of this Offering. As a result, the Corporation will not be subject to the continuous disclosure requirements of such securities legislation, including requirements relating to the preparation and filing of audited annual financial statements and other financial information, the dissemination of news releases disclosing material changes in the business and affairs of the Corporation, and the filing of material change reports.

Under corporate or securities legislation and the Corporation's constating documents, the Corporation is not required to send to Shareholders or make available any documents on an annual or on-going basis other than (i) audited financial statements, which will be made available on the website of the Corporation at <u>www.rescomic.com</u> within 120 days after the end of each financial year and filed on Corporation's SEDAR profile at <u>www.sedar.com</u>; and (ii) such other information as required by applicable securities laws for a non-reporting issuer that distributes securities using the offering memorandum exemption (including annual notices of use of proceeds and notices of certain key events, if and when applicable), which will be made reasonably available to Shareholders as required. Generally, disclosure documents will be considered to have been "made reasonably available" to Shareholders if the documents are mailed to Shareholders, or if Shareholders receive notice that the disclosure documents can be viewed on a public website of the Corporation or a website accessible by all Shareholders.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation will send to Shareholders a quarterly account statement showing the total number of Shares held; income earned in the preceding quarter; the amount of a Shareholder's dividend (or additional shares if dividends are reinvested). A Subscriber shall also receive a copy the Manager's market update and commentary on an annual basis together with the Corporation's annual financial statements.

ITEM 10 RESALE RESTRICTIONS

10.1 General Statement

These securities will be subject to a number of resale restrictions, including a restriction on trading. Until the restriction on trading expires, you will not be able to trade the securities unless you comply with an exemption from the prospectus and registration requirements under securities legislation.

10.2 Restricted Period – For trades in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Ontario, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, and Prince Edward Island

Unless permitted under Securities Legislation, you cannot trade the securities before the date that is four (4) months and a day after the date the Corporation becomes a reporting issuer in any province or territory of Canada.

10.3 Restricted Period – For trades in Manitoba

Unless permitted under securities legislation, you must not trade the securities without the prior written consent of the regulator in Manitoba unless:

- (a) The Corporation has filed a prospectus with the regulator in Manitoba with respect to the securities you have purchased and the regulator in Manitoba has issued a receipt for that prospectus, or
- (b) You have held the securities for at least 12 months.

The regulator in Manitoba will consent to your trade if the regulator is of the opinion that to do so is not prejudicial to the public interest.

ITEM 11 PURCHASER'S RIGHTS

If you purchase Preferred Shares you will have certain rights, some of which are described below. For information about your rights you should consult a lawyer.

The descriptions below are summaries only, and are subject to, and qualified in their entirety by, the express provisions of the securities legislation of the applicable provinces and the rules, regulations and other instruments thereunder. Reference should be made to the complete text of such provisions. Such provisions may contain limitations and statutory defenses.

The rights of action described herein are in addition to and without derogation from any other right or remedy which you may have at law.

11.1 Two Day Cancellation Right

You can cancel your agreement to purchase these Preferred Shares. To do so, you must send a notice to us by midnight on the second Business Day after you sign the agreement to buy the Preferred Shares.

11.2 Statutory Rights of Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation

Securities legislation in certain of the Canadian provinces provides certain purchasers of securities pursuant to an offering memorandum (such as this Offering Memorandum) with a remedy for damages or rescission, or both, in addition to any other rights they may have at law, where the offering memorandum and any amendment thereto and, in some cases, advertising and sales material used in connection therewith, contains a "misrepresentation", as defined in the applicable securities legislation. A "**misrepresentation**" is generally defined under applicable provincial securities laws to mean an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make any statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. These remedies, or notice with respect to these remedies, must be exercised or delivered, as the case may be, by the purchaser within the time limits prescribed by applicable securities legislation and are subject to limitations and defenses under applicable securities legislation.

The following summaries are subject to the express provisions of the securities legislation applicable in each of the provinces of Canada (except Quebec and Newfoundland and Labrador) and the regulations, rules and policy statements thereunder. Subscribers should refer to the securities legislation applicable in their province along with the regulations, rules and policy statements thereunder for the complete text of these provisions or should consult with their legal advisor.

The contractual and statutory rights of action described in this Offering Memorandum are in addition to and without derogation from any other right or remedy that subscribers may have at law.

11.3 Investors in Alberta

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 204 of the *Securities Act* (Alberta) (the "**Alberta Act**"). The Alberta Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum contains a misrepresentation, as defined in the Alberta Act, you have a statutory right to sue (a) the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, or (b) for damages against (i) the Corporation; (ii) every director of the Corporation at the date of the Offering Memorandum; and (iii) every person or company who signed the Offering Memorandum; provided, however, that if you elect to sue the Corporation to cancel your subscription, you will have no right to sue the aforementioned persons for damages. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The Alberta Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence:

(a) they prove that the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation;

- (b) they prove that the offering memorandum was sent to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of its being sent, the person or company promptly gave reasonable notice to the Executive Director (as such term is defined in the Alberta Act) and the Corporation that it was sent without the knowledge and consent of the person or company;
- (c) they prove that the person or company, on becoming aware of the misrepresentation in the offering memorandum, withdrew the person's or company's consent to the offering memorandum and gave reasonable notice to the Executive Director (as such term is defined in the Alberta Act) and the Corporation of the withdrawal and the reason for it;
- (d) if, with respect to any part of the offering memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of an expert or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, the person or company proves that the person or company did not have any reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that: (i) there had been a misrepresentation; or (ii) the relevant part of the offering memorandum: (A) did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert; or (B) was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert; or
- (e) if, with respect to any part of the document not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, after conducting a reasonable investigation, the person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe, and did not believe, that there was a misrepresentation.

In the case of an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for all or any part of the damages that the defendant proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the security as a result of the misrepresentation. In no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which the securities were offered under the offering memorandum.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 3 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.4 Investors in British Columbia

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 132.1 of the *Securities Act* (British Columbia) (the "**BC Act**"). The BC Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum contains a misrepresentation, as defined in the BC Act, you have a statutory right to sue (a) the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, or (b) for damages against (i) the Corporation; (ii) every director of the Corporation at the date of the Offering Memorandum; and (iii) every person or company who signed the Offering Memorandum; provided, however, that if you elect to sue the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, or right to sue the aforementioned persons for damages. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The BC Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence if:

- (a) if they prove that the purchaser had knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) if they prove that the offering memorandum was delivered to purchasers without the person's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of its delivery, the person gave written notice to the Corporation that it was sent without the person's knowledge or consent;

- (c) if they prove that on becoming aware of the misrepresentation in the offering memorandum, the person withdrew the person's consent to the offering memorandum and gave written notice to the Corporation of the withdrawal and the reason for it; or
- (d) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, the person or company proves that the person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that: (i) there had been a misrepresentation; or (ii) the relevant part of the offering memorandum: (A) did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert; or (B) was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert.

In addition, a person is not liable for damages with respect to any part of the offering memorandum not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person failed to conduct a reasonable investigation to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation, or believed there had been a misrepresentation.

In the case of an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for all or any part of the damages that the defendant proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the security resulting from the misrepresentation. The amount recoverable by a plaintiff in any action for misrepresentation must not exceed the price at which the securities were offered under the offering memorandum.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 3 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.5 Investors in Manitoba

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 141.1 of the *Securities Act* (Manitoba) (the "**Manitoba Act**"). The Manitoba Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum contains a misrepresentation, you have a statutory right to sue (a) the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities while you are still an owner of the securities, or (b) for damages against (i) the Corporation; (ii) every director of the Corporation at the date of the Offering Memorandum; and (iii) every person or company who signed the Offering Memorandum; provided, however, that if you elect to sue the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, you will have no right to sue the aforementioned persons for damages. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The Manitoba Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence if:

- (a) they prove that the purchaser purchased the security with knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) they prove that the offering memorandum was sent to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent, and that, after becoming aware that it was sent, the person or company promptly gave reasonable notice to the issuer that it was sent without the person's or company's knowledge and consent;
- (c) they prove that after becoming aware of the misrepresentation, the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to the offering memorandum and gave reasonable notice to the issuer of the withdrawal and the reason for it;
- (d) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of an expert or to be a copy of, or an extract from, an expert's report, opinion or statement, if the person or company proves that the person or company did not have any reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that (i) there had been a misrepresentation; or (ii) the relevant part of the offering

memorandum (A) did not fairly represent the expert's report, opinion, or statement; or (B) was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the expert's report, opinion or statement; or

(e) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum not purporting to be made on an expert's authority and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, an expert's report, opinion or statement, unless the person or company (i) did not conduct an investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation; or (ii) believed that there had been a misrepresentation.

In the case of an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for all or any part of the damages that the defendant proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the security as a result of the misrepresentation. In no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which the securities were offered under the offering memorandum.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 2 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.6 Investors in New Brunswick

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 150 of the Securities Act (New Brunswick) (the "**New Brunswick Act**"). The New Brunswick Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum contains a misrepresentation, you have a statutory right to sue: (a)(i) the Corporation or (ii) any selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made, as applicable, to cancel your agreement to buy these securities; or (b) for damages against (i) the Corporation, (ii) any selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made, (iii) every person who was a director of the Corporation at the date of the Offering Memorandum, and (iv) every person who signed the Offering Memorandum. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The New Brunswick Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence if:

- (a) they prove that the purchaser purchased the security with knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) they prove that the offering memorandum was sent to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent, and that, after becoming aware that it was sent, the person or company promptly gave written notice to the issuer that it was sent without the person's or company's knowledge and consent;
- (c) they prove that after becoming aware of the misrepresentation, the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to the offering memorandum and gave written notice to the issuer of the withdrawal and the reason for the withdrawal;
- (d) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of an expert or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, the person or company proves that the person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a misrepresentation or that the part of the offering memorandum did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert or was not a fair copy of, or extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert;
- (e) with respect to any part of an offering memorandum not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert unless the person (i) failed to conduct such reasonable investigation as to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation, or (ii) believed that there had been a misrepresentation.

In the case of an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for all or any part of the damages that the defendant proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the security as a result of the misrepresentation. In no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which the securities were offered under the offering memorandum.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 1 year after the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 6 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.7 Investors in Nova Scotia

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 138 of the Securities Act (Nova Scotia) (the "**Nova Scotia Act**"). The Nova Scotia Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum or any "advertising or sales literature" (as such term is defined in the Nova Scotia Act) contains a misrepresentation, you have a statutory right to sue (a) the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities while you are still an owner of the securities, or (b) for damages against (i) the Corporation; (ii) every Director at the date of the Offering Memorandum; and (iii) every person or company who signed the Offering Memorandum; provided, however, that if you elect to sue the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, you will have no right to sue the aforementioned persons for damages. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The Nova Scotia Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence if:

- (a) they prove that the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) they prove that the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of its delivery, the person or company gave reasonable general notice that it was delivered without the person's or company's knowledge or consent;
- (c) they prove that after delivery of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto and before the purchase of the securities by the purchaser, on becoming aware of any misrepresentation in the offering memorandum or amendment thereto the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto, and gave reasonable general notice of the withdrawal and the reason for it;
- (d) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto purporting (i) to be made on the authority of an expert; or (ii) to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, the person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that (A) there had been a misrepresentation; or (B) the relevant part of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert; or
- (e) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company (i) did not conduct an investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation; or (ii) believed there had been a misrepresentation.

In the case of an action for damages, no person will be liable for all or any portion of the damages that they prove do not represent the depreciation in value of the securities as a result of the misrepresentation. In no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which the securities were offered under the offering memorandum or amendment thereto.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within the earliest of (i) 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action, and (ii) 120 days after the date on which payment was made for the securities or after the date on which the initial payment for the securities was made where payments subsequent to the initial payment are made pursuant to a contractual commitment assumed prior to, or concurrently with, the initial payment. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 3 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.8 Investors in Ontario

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 130.1 of the Securities Act. The Securities Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum contains a misrepresentation, you have a statutory right to sue the Corporation and any selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, or for damages; provided, however, that if you elect to sue the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, you will have no right to sue the aforementioned persons for damages. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The Securities Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence if they prove that the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation.

The issuer and the selling security holders, if any, will not be liable for a misrepresentation in "forward looking information", as such term is defined under applicable Canadian securities laws, if they prove that:

- (a) the offering memorandum contains, proximate to the forward looking information, reasonable cautionary language identifying the forward looking information as such, and identifying material factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection set out in the forward looking information, and a statement of material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or projection set out in the forward looking information; and
- (b) the issuer had a reasonable basis for drawing the conclusions or making the forecasts and projections set out in the forward looking information.

The issuer and the selling security holders, if any, will not be liable for all or any portion of damages that they prove do not represent the depreciation in value of the securities as a result of the misrepresentation relied upon. In no case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the securities were offered.

The rights referred to in (a) and (b) described above do not apply where this Offering Memorandum is delivered to a prospective purchaser in connection with a distribution made in reliance on the exemption from the prospectus requirement in section 73.3 of the Securities Act (the "accredited investor exemption") if the purchaser is:

- (a) a Canadian financial institution, meaning either:
 - (i) an association governed by the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) or a central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under that Act; or
 - (ii) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services corporation, or league that, in each case, is authorized by an enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;
- (b) a Schedule III bank, meaning an authorized foreign bank named in Schedule III of the Bank Act (Canada);

- (c) the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank of Canada Act (Canada); or
- (d) a subsidiary of any of the foregoing, if the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by the directors of the subsidiary.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 3 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.9 Investors in Prince Edward Island

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 112 of the Securities Act (Prince Edward Island) (the "**PEI Act**"). The PEI Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum contains a misrepresentation, you have a statutory right to sue: (a) the Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these securities; or (b) for damages against (i) the Corporation, (ii) any selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made, (iii) every person who was a director of the Corporation at the date of the Offering Memorandum, and (iv) every person who signed the Offering Memorandum. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

The New Brunswick Act provides various defences to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defence if:

- (a) they prove that the purchaser purchased the security with knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) they prove that the offering memorandum was sent to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent, and that, after becoming aware that it was sent, the person or company promptly gave written notice to the issuer that it was sent without the person's or company's knowledge and consent;
- (c) they prove that after becoming aware of the misrepresentation, the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to the offering memorandum and gave written notice to the issuer of the withdrawal and the reason for the withdrawal;
- (d) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of an expert or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, the person or company proves that the person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a misrepresentation or that the part of the offering memorandum did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert or was not a fair copy of, or extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert;
- (e) with respect to any part of an offering memorandum not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert unless the person (i) failed to conduct such reasonable investigation as to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation, or (ii) believed that there had been a misrepresentation.

Any person, including the Corporation, will not be liable for a misrepresentation in forward-looking information (as defined in the PEI Act) if the person proves that (a) this Offering Memorandum, or any amendment thereto, contained, proximate to the forward-looking information, (i) reasonable cautionary language identifying the forward-looking information as such, and (ii) identifying material factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in the forward-looking information; and (b) a statement of the material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or projection set out in the forward-looking information; and (c) the person had a reasonable basis for drawing the conclusions or making

the forecasts or projections set out in the forward-looking information; provided, however, that the foregoing does not relieve a person of liability with respect to forward-looking information in a financial statement required to be filed under Prince Edward Island securities laws.

In the case of an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for all or any part of the damages that the defendant proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the security as a result of the misrepresentation. In no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which the securities were offered under the offering memorandum.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence your action for damages within the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) 3 years of the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

11.10 Investors in Saskatchewan

The right of action for damages or rescission described herein is conferred by section 138 of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), as amended (the "Saskatchewan Act"). The Saskatchewan Act provides, in relevant part, that if this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto, is sent or delivered to you and it contains a misrepresentation, and you purchase a security covered by this Offering Memorandum any amendment thereto:

- (a) a right of action for damages or rescission against the Corporation or the selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made;
- (b) a right of action for damages against every promoter and Director at the time the Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered;
- (c) a right of action for damages against every person or company whose consent has been filed respecting the Offering, but only with respect to reports, opinions, or statements that have been made by them;
- (d) a right of action for damages against every person or company that, in addition to the persons or companies mentioned in (a) to (c) above, signed the Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto; and
- (e) a right of action for damages against every person or company that sells securities on behalf of the Corporation under the Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto;

provided, however, that if the purchaser elects to exercise its right of rescission against the issuer or selling security holder, it shall have no right of action for damages against that party. This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.

Such rights of action for damages or rescission are subject to certain limitations including the following:

- (f) in an action for damages, a defendant will not be liable for all or any portion of the damages that he, she, or they prove do not represent the depreciation in value of the securities resulting from the misrepresentation relied on;
- (g) no person or company, other than the issuer or a selling security holder, will be liable for any part of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company failed to conduct a reasonable investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation or believed that there had been a misrepresentation,
- (h) in no case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the securities were offered; and

(i) no person or company is liable in an action for damages or rescission if that person or company proves that the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation.

In addition, no person or company, other than the issuer or selling security holder, will be liable if the person or company proves that:

- (a) the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of it being sent or delivered, that person or company gave reasonable general notice that it was so sent or delivered;
- (b) after the filing of the offering memorandum or the amendment to the offering memorandum and before the purchase of the securities by the purchaser, on becoming aware of any misrepresentation in the offering memorandum or the amendment to the offering memorandum, the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to it and gave reasonable general notice of the person's or company's withdrawal and the reason for it;
- (c) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, that person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe (i) that there had been a misrepresentation, (ii) the part of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto did not fairly represent the report, opinion, or statement of the expert; or (iii) the part of the offering memorandum or of the amendment to the offering memorandum was not a fair copy of or extract from the report, opinion or statement of the expert;
- (d) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum or of the amendment to the offering memorandum purporting to be made on the person's or company's own authority as an expert or purporting to be a copy of or an extract from the person's or company's own report, opinion or statement as an expert that contains a misrepresentation attributable to failure to represent fairly his, her or its report, opinion or statement as an expert: (i) the person or company had, after reasonable investigation, reasonable grounds to believe, and did believe, that the part of the offering memorandum or of the amendment to the offering memorandum fairly represented the person's or company's report, opinion or statement; or on becoming aware that the part of the offering memorandum or of the amendment to the offering memorandum did not fairly represent the person's or company's report, opinion or statement as an expert, the person or company immediately advised the Financial and Consumer Affairs Authority of Saskatchewan and gave reasonable general notice that such use had been made of it and that the person or company would not be responsible for that part of the offering memorandum or of the amendment to the offering memorandum.

Furthermore, no person or company, other than the Corporation, will be liable with respect to any part of the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto not purporting (a) to be made on the authority of an expert; or (b) to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company (i) failed to conduct a reasonable investigation to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation; or (ii) believed that there had been a misrepresentation. If a misrepresentation is contained in a record incorporated by reference into, or deemed incorporated by reference into, the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto, the misrepresentation is deemed to be contained in the offering memorandum or any amendment thereto.

The Saskatchewan Act also provides that where an individual makes a verbal statement to a prospective purchaser that contains a misrepresentation relating to the security purchased and the verbal statement is made either before or contemporaneously with the purchase of the security, the purchaser is deemed to have relied on the misrepresentation, if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and has a right of action for damages against the individual who made the verbal statement.

Section 141(1) of the Saskatchewan Act provides a purchaser with the right to void the purchase agreement and to recover all money and other consideration paid by the purchaser for the securities if the securities are sold in contravention of the Saskatchewan Act, the regulations to the Saskatchewan Act or a decision of the Financial and Consumer Affairs Authority of Saskatchewan.

Section 141(2) of the Saskatchewan Act also provides a right of action for damages or rescission to a purchaser of securities to whom an offering memorandum or any amendment thereto was not sent or delivered prior to or at the same time as the purchaser enters into an agreement to purchase the securities, as required by section 80.1 of the Saskatchewan Act.

If you intend to rely on the rights described above, you must do so within strict time limitations. You must commence your action for rescission within 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action. You must commence any action other than an action for rescission, within: (i) 1 year after you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or (ii) 6 years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

The Saskatchewan Act also provides a purchaser who has received an amended offering memorandum delivered in accordance with subsection 80.1(3) of the Saskatchewan Act with a right to withdraw from the agreement to purchase the securities by delivering a notice to the person who or company that is selling the securities, indicating the purchaser's intention not to be bound by the purchase agreement, provided such notice is delivered by the purchaser within two Business Days of receiving the amended offering memorandum.

ITEM 12 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Corporation dated October 31, 2016, and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Corporation for the nine month period ended July 31, 2017, are attached hereto.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank for formatting purposes.]

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2016

Index to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

AUDITOR'S REPORT	3
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Financial Position	4
Statement of Comprehensive Income	5
Statement of Changes in Equity	6
Statement of Cash Flows	7
Notes to Financial Statements	8 - 15

Rosenswig McRae Thorpe LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants Associated Worldwide with CPA Associates International, Inc.

Michael Rosenswig Jeff McRae Lori Thorpe Tony Rosso Lorraíne Varga

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the shareholders of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation,

We have audited the statement of financial position of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation as at October 31, 2016 and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year ended October 31, 2016, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation as at October 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, changes in equity and cash flows for the period ended October 31, 2016 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Rosenswig McRae Ikorpe LLP

Toronto, Ontario February 6, 2017

Chartered Professional Accountants Licensed Public Accountants

Statement of Financial Position

20,777,993

As at October 31, 2016

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
ASSETS		
Cash	1,481,858	741,930
Prepaid expenses	7,782	8,608
Accounts receivable (note 7)	788,940	462,980
Mortgages receivable (note 8)	18,499,413	7,023,178
	20,777,993	8,236,696
	20,777,993	8,236,696
LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	211,225	106,015
	211,225	106,015
SHAREHOLDERS' EG	UITY	
Share capital (page 6 and note 10)	20,502,096	8,080,930
Retained earnings (page 6)	64,672	49,751
	20,566,768	8,130,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Director

222

Director

8,236,696

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended October 31, 2016

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Revenue		
Mortgage interest	1,354,980	553,299
Other income	106,393	13,793
	1,461,373	567,092
Operating expenses		
Management fees	229,951	81,037
Professional fees	42,450	42,564
Mortgage investment loss	34,614	-
General and administrative	15,161	3,436
Insurance	14,170	6,162
Regulatory fees	8,788	6,834
Consulting fees	6,300	-
	351,434	140,033
Comprehensive income for the year	1,109,939	427,059

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Changes in Equity

Shareholders' Equity

For the year ended October 31, 2016

	Class B Preferred Shares \$	Class A Common Shares \$	Retained earnings \$	Total Equity \$
Balance, beginning of year	8,070,930	10,000	49,751	8,130,681
Proceeds from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares Class B Preferred Shares issued under dividend	14,420,330	-	-	14,420,330
reinvestment plan	308,554	-	-	308,554
Redemption of Class B Preferred Shares	(1,854,273)			(1,854,273)
Earnings and comprehensive income for the year	-	-	1,109,939	1,109,939
Dividends on Class B Preferred Shares	-		(1,095,018)	(1,095,018)
Share issuance costs during the year	(453,445)	-	-	(453,445)
Balance, end of year	20,492,096	10,000	64,672	20,566,768

For the year ended October 31, 2015

	Class B preferred shares \$	Class A Common shares \$	Retained earnings \$	Total Equity \$
Balance, beginning of year	2,666,364	10,000	8,425	2,684,789
Proceeds from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares Class B shares issued under dividend reinvestment	5,723,560	-	-	5,723,560
plan	113,772	-	-	113,772
Redemption of Class B Preferred Shares	(285,000)			(285,000)
Earnings and comprehensive income for the year	-	-	427,060	427,060
Dividends to Class B shareholders	-		(385,734)	(385,734)
Share issuance costs during the year	(147,766)		()	(147,766)
Balance, end of year	8,070,930	10,000	49,751	8,130,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended October 31, 2016

	2016 \$	2015 \$
Cash flows from operating activities		· · · · ·
Comprehensive income for the year	1,109,939	427,060
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to cash	.,,	121,000
provided by operating activities:		
Increase in mortgage interest receivable	(105,933)	(61,289)
Increase in prepaid expenses	826	(8,608)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities	105,210	53,813
Cash provided by operating activities	1,110,042	410,976
Cash flows from investing activities		
Funding of mortgage investments	(21,051,503)	(6,577,725)
Discharge of mortgage investments	9,681,201	1,763,430
Cash provided used in investing activities	(11,370,302)	(4,814,295)
Cash flows from financing activities	e e e	
Proceeds from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares	14,728,884	5,837,332
Accounts receivable from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares	(325,960)	(462,980)
Redemption of Class B Preferred Shares	(1,854,273)	(285,000)
Dividends paid	(1,095,018)	(385,734)
Share issuance costs	(453,445)	(147,766)
Cash provided by financing activities	11,000,188	4,555,852
Net increase in cash	739,928	152,533
Cash, beginning of year	741,930	589,397
Cash, end of year	1,481,858	741,930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

1. Corporate information

The financial statements of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation (the "Corporation") for the year ended October 31, 2016 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on February 6, 2017. The Corporation was incorporated under the Canadian Business Corporation Act (Federal) on November 21, 2013. The financial year end of the Corporation is October 31.

The Corporation is a Canadian mortgage investment corporation (MIC) pursuant to the Income Tax Act (Canada) Section 130.1. The objective of the Corporation is to make prudent investments in mortgages against real property located in Canada in order to generate sustainable and stable income while preserving investment capital for shareholders.

The Corporation is subject to rules under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that permit the Corporation to flowthrough its net income to its shareholders. The income of the Corporation for purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada) includes interest earned and the taxable portion of any net realizable capital gains. The Corporation, in computing its taxable income, is generally entitled to deduct the full amount of all taxable dividends (other than capital gains dividends) which it pays during the year or within 90 days after the end of the year. Dividends other than capital gains dividends, which are paid by the Corporation to shareholders, will be included in shareholders' income as interest income.

The Corporation conducts its mortgage lending activities on properties located in Canada, primarily in the Province of Ontario, Manitoba and Alberta. The registered office of the Corporation is 3601 Highway 7 East, Suite 210, Markham, Ontario L3R 0M3.

2. Basis of presentation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC").

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of the Corporation.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that are measured at fair value. The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in note 4.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may vary from these estimates.

The most significant estimates that the Corporation is required to make relate to the fair value of mortgages receivable. These estimates may include assumptions regarding local real estate market conditions, interest rates and the availability of credit, cost and terms of financing, the impact of present or future legislation or regulation, prior encumbrances and other factors affecting the investments and underlying security of the investments. These assumptions are limited by the availability of reliable comparable data, economic uncertainty, ongoing geopolitical concerns and the uncertainty of predictions concerning future events.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

2. Basis of presentation (continued)

Use of estimates and judgments (continued)

By their nature, estimates of fair value are subjective and do not necessarily result in precise determinations. Should the underlying assumptions change, the estimated fair value could vary by a material amount.

3. Significant accounting policies

Mortgages receivable

Mortgages receivable are classified as loans and receivable investments. Such instruments are recognized initially at cost plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the mortgages receivable are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Mortgages receivable are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of an asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and reflected in an allowance account against the mortgages receivable. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount if it is considered collectable. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income.

Revenue recognition

Mortgage interest is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as one of the following: (i) fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL"); (ii) loans and receivables; (iii) held-to-maturity; (iv) available-for-sale; or (v) other liabilities. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial instruments not categorized as FVTPL, any incremental direct transaction costs. Financial assets classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses recognized in income. The Corporation has classified cash and accounts receivables as FVTPL.


For the year ended October 31, 2016

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities primarily consist of accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Non-performance risk, including the Corporation's own credit risk for financial liabilities, is considered when determining the fair value of financial liabilities.

Equity instruments

Common and Preferred shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the common shares and are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Income taxes

The Corporation qualifies as a MIC under the Income Tax Act, and as such is not taxed on income provided that its taxable income is distributed to its shareholders in the form of dividends within 90 days after December 31 each year. Accordingly, no provision for current or future income taxes is required unless the Corporation elects to retain income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions and contingent liabilities are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions and contingent liabilities are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit is remote. Possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related party transactions

All related party transactions must be disclosed in the financial statements which include the amount of the transactions, the amount of outstanding balances, including terms, provisions for doubtful debts related to outstanding balances and the expense recognized during the year in respect to bad or doubtful debts from related parties.

4. Determination of fair values

Some of the Corporation's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value of financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between arm's length market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy establishes three levels to classify the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

For the year ended October 31, 2016

4. Determination of fair values (continued)

- Level 2 inputs are quoted prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data or other means.
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable and are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. The Corporation's financial assets and liabilities include cash and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and the fair value of these financial instruments are measured using Level 1 inputs. Mortgage receivable is measured at amortized cost and does not use this hierarchy.

5. Financial risk management

Overview

The Corporation's planned operations will expose it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its operating and financing activities:

- i. credit risk;
- ii. liquidity risk;
- iii. market risk;
- iv. operational risk;
- v. interest rate risk; and
- vi. capital risk.

This note presents information about the Corporation's exposure, objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing each of the above risks.

The Corporation employs risk management strategies and policies to ensure that any exposure to risk is in compliance with the Corporation's business objectives and risk tolerance levels. While the Directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Corporation's risk management framework, management has the responsibility to administer and monitor these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Corporation's mortgage receivables.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

	<u>2016</u>	<u>2015</u>
Cash	\$ 1,481,858	\$ 741,930
Accounts receivable	788,940	462,980
Mortgages receivable	18,499,413	7,023,178
	\$ 20,770,211	\$ 8,228,088

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

5. Financial risk management (continued)

Cash consists of bank deposits. The Corporation manages the credit exposure related to cash by selecting financial institutions with high credit ratings. Mortgages receivable are issued to borrowers who must pass a credit check. Given these credit ratings, management expects minimal counterparty risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they are due. Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that the projected repayments under the existing investment portfolio exceeds projected needs.

The obligations for future advances under the Corporation's investment portfolio are anticipated to be funded from existing cash, mortgage interest, borrower repayments and future issuance of preferred shares.

As at October 31, 2016, management considers that the Corporation does not have significant exposure to liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as real estate prices, will affect the Corporation's net income or the value of financial instruments. The objective of the Corporation is to manage and mitigate market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while maximizing returns.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Corporation's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. The Corporation manages its operational risk by setting appropriate policies related to human resources, IT, regulatory compliance, and other factors.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. As the Corporation does not currently have any variable interest bearing debt, the Corporation is not exposed to interest rate risk.

The Corporation had no interest rate swaps or financial contracts in place as at or during the year ended October 31, 2016.

Capital risk management

The Corporation's capital management policy is to maintain a strong capital base that optimizes the Corporation's ability to grow, maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a platform to create value for its shareholder. The Corporation intends to maintain a flexible capital structure to maximize its ability to pursue additional investment opportunities, which considers the requirement to sustain future development of the business.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

6. Related party transactions

Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc. (Radiance), a related party by virtue of common management, acts as the Mortgage Broker to the Corporation. 5C Capital Inc. (5C Capital), a related party by virtue of common management, acts as the Mortgage Administrator to the Corporation. The directors of the related parties are the same individuals as the directors of the Corporation.

The Corporation entered into a Management Services Agreement with Radiance effective November 21, 2013. The agreement provides for Radiance to provide a wide range of services including, but not limited to, overseeing and managing the Corporation's investment portfolio. Radiance receives a fee from the Corporation equal to 1.00% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation.

The Corporation entered into an Administration Agreement with 5C Capital effective November 21, 2013. The agreement provides for 5C Capital to provide mortgage administrative services including, but not limited to, the administration of mortgage loans and collecting all amounts due from borrowers of the Corporation. The terms of that agreement provide that 5C Capital will collect a fee of 0.5% of the mortgages under administration. The agreement is structured such that the fee flows through Radiance to 5C Capital.

During the year, the Corporation paid fees of \$229,951 (2015 - \$81,037) to Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc. Included in accounts payable is an amount due to Radiance Mortgage Brokerage of \$28,318 (2015 - \$11,036). These transactions were conducted by the Corporation in the normal course of business.

7. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable arise from funds receivable from new shareholders whose Class B share subscriptions closed on October 31, 2016. These funds are held in trust by a third party and becomes due to the Corporation upon the closing of the new subscriptions. The funds were disbursed to the Corporation in November 2016.

8. Mortgages receivable

The following is a breakdown of the mortgages receivable as at October 31:

	<u>2016</u>	<u>2015</u>
First mortgages	\$ 4,164,383	\$ 207,500
Non-first mortgages	14,144,004	6,730,585
Interest receivable	191,026	85,093
Total mortgages receivable	\$ 18,499,413	\$ 7,023,178

Non-first mortgages are loans with mortgage charges not registered in first priority (with loan-to-value ratios at the time of the mortgage advance not exceeding 85%). All mortgages are secured by residential properties in Canada.

The loans in the investment portfolio bear interest at the weighted average rate of 10.97% and mature in 2017 and 2018. Approximately 13.89% of the portfolio's mortgages are secured by properties located in Manitoba, Canada, 85.73% in Ontario, Canada, and 0.38% in Alberta, Canada, when measured by loan amount. There is no further commitment to fund additional mortgages as at October 31, 2016.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

8. Mortgages receivable (continued)

Principal repayments based on contractual maturity dates are as follows:

	<u>2016</u>
2017	\$ 17,139,187
2018	1,169,200
	\$ 18,308,387

During 2016, no transaction costs were incurred by the Corporation in the mortgage transactions.

9. Dividends

For the year ended October 31, 2016, the Corporation declared dividends of \$1,095,018 (2015 - \$385,734) to its shareholders.

10. Share capital

Authorized

As at October 31, 2016, the Corporation was authorized to issue the following:

Unlimited number of Class A Common Shares

Unlimited number of Class B Preferred Shares

The Corporation has an optional dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) for preferred shareholders, whereby participants may reinvest cash dividends in additional preferred shares of the Corporation at the current share price as at the date of conversion. Class B Preferred Shares issued under the DRIP are issued by the company from its treasury.

Issued and outstanding

The following Class A Common Shares were issued and outstanding as at October 31, 2016:

	Share	A	Amount
Balance, beginning of year	1,000	\$	10,000
New shares issued during the year	-		-
Balance, end of year	1,000	\$	10,000

The following Class B Preferred Shares were issued and outstanding as at October 31, 2016: (Does not include share issuance costs incurred)

	Share	Amount
Balance, beginning of year	829,500	\$ 8,295,000
New shares issued	1,442,033	14,420,330
Dividend Reinvestment Plan	30,855	308,554
Redemption of shares	(185,427)	(1,854,274)
Balance, end of year	2,116,961	\$ 21,169,610

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended October 31, 2016

10. Share capital

Share capital, as presented on the statement of financial position, is composed of:

	<u>2016</u>		<u>2015</u>
Class A Common Shares	\$ 10,000	\$	10,000
Class B Preferred Shares	21,169,610		8,295,000
Cumulative share issuance costs	(677,515))	(224,070)
	\$ 20,502,095	\$	8,080,930

11. Future accounting changes

Certain pronouncements have been issued by the IASB or IFRIC that will be effective for future accounting periods. The most significant changes are summarized below:

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments is a new standard for financial instruments scheduled to replace IAS 39 -Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The approach to classifying an asset as either amortized cost or fair value in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of its financial assets. IFRS 9 will also introduce a new impairment model that requires a more timely recognition of expected losses. The potential impact of IFRS 9 on the Corporation's financial statements have not been determined.

IFRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers specifies how and when revenue should be recognized as well as requiring more informative and relevant disclosures. This standard supersedes IAS 18 - Revenue, IAS 11 - Construction Contracts and a number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the IFRS 15 is mandatory and it applies to nearly all contracts with customers. The IASB has tentatively deferred mandatory adoption of IFRS 15 until periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. The potential impact of IFRS 15 on the Corporation's financial statements have not been determined.

12. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reorganized to conform with current year presentation.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM NOVEMBER 1, 2016 TO JULY 31, 2017

Index to Financial Statements

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

MANAGEMENT REPORT	3
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Financial Position	4
Statement of Comprehensive Income	5
Statement of Changes in Equity	6
Statement of Cash Flows	7
Notes to Financial Statements	8 - 15

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Statement of Financial Position

As at July 31, 2017

	\$
ASSETS	
Cash	1,732,270
Prepaid expenses	6,387
Accounts receivable (note 7)	330,060
Mortgages receivable (note 8)	26,886,095
	28,954,812
	28,954,812
LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	253,122
Loan payable to related party	150,000
	403,122
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	
Share capital (page 6 and note 10)	28,246,184
Retained earnings (page 6)	305,506
	28,551,690

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Director

Director

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

	\$
Revenue	
Mortgage interest	1,845,582
Other income	201,540
	2,047,122
Operating expenses	
Management fee	305,623
Audit and accounting fees	4,996
Legal fees	3,782
Regulatory fees	6,496
Insurance	9,463
Advertising and promotion	500
Bank charges	2,805
Office expenses	8,581
Loan interest	3,723
Bad debts	6,773
	352,743
Comprehensive income for the period	1,694,379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Changes in Equity

Shareholders' Equity

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

	Class B Preferred Shares \$	Class A Common Shares \$	Retained earnings \$	Total Equity \$
Balance, beginning of the period	20,492,096	10,000	64,672	20,566,768
Proceeds from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares	9,692,590	-	-	9,692,590
Class B Preferred Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan	408,426	-	-	408,426
Redemption of Class B Preferred Shares	(2,031,619)			(2,031,619)
Earnings and comprehensive income for the year	-	-	1,694,379	1,694,379
Dividends on Class B Preferred Shares	-	-	(1,453,545)	(1,453,545)
Share issuance costs	(325,309)	-	-	(325,309)
Balance, end of the period	28,236,184	10,000	305,506	28,551,690

For the year ended October 31, 2016

	Class B preferred shares \$	Class A Common shares \$	Retained earnings \$	Total Equity \$
Balance, beginning of the year	8,070,930	10,000	49,751	8,130,681
Proceeds from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares Class B shares issued under dividend reinvestment	14,420,330	-	-	14,420,330
plan	308,554	-	-	308,554
Redemption of Class B Preferred Shares	(1,854,273)	-	-	(1,854,273)
Earnings and comprehensive income for the year	-	-	1,109,939	1,109,939
Dividends to Class B shareholders	-	-	(1,095,018)	(1,095,018)
Share issuance costs	(453,445)	-	-	(453,445)
Balance, end of the year	20,492,096	10,000	64,672	20,566,768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

	\$
Cash flows from operating activities	
Comprehensive income for the period	1,694,379
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to cash	
provided by operating activities:	
Increase in mortgage interest receivable	(75,787)
Increase in prepaid expenses	1,396
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities	41,897
Increase in loan payable	150,000
Cash provided by operating activities	1,811,886
Cash flows from investing activities	
Funding of mortgage investments	(21,031,970)
Discharge of mortgage investments	12,721,075
Cash provided used in investing activities	(8,310,895)
Cash flows from financing activities	
Proceeds from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares	10,101,016
Accounts receivable from issuance of Class B Preferred Shares	458,880
Redemption of Class B Preferred Shares	(2,031,619)
Dividends paid	(1,453,545)
Share issuance costs	(325,309)
Cash provided by financing activities	6,749,423
Net increase in cash	250,412
Cash, beginning of the period	1,481,858
Cash, end of the period	1,732,270
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Notes to Financial Statements

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

1. Corporate information

The financial statements of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation (the "Corporation") for the year ended October 31, 2015 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on January XX, 2017. The Corporation was incorporated under the Canadian Business Corporation Act (Federal) on November 21, 2013. The financial year end of the Corporation is October 31.

The Corporation is a Canadian mortgage investment corporation (MIC) pursuant to the Income Tax Act (Canada) Section 130.1. The objective of the Corporation is to make prudent investments in mortgages against real property located in Canada in order to generate sustainable and stable income while preserving investment capital for shareholders.

The Corporation is subject to rules under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that permit the Corporation to flowthrough its net income to its shareholders. The income of the Corporation for purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada) includes interest earned and the taxable portion of any net realizable capital gains. The Corporation, in computing its taxable income, is generally entitled to deduct the full amount of all taxable dividends (other than capital gains dividends) which it pays during the year or within 90 days after the end of the year. Dividends other than capital gains dividends, which are paid by the Corporation to shareholders, will be included in shareholders' income as interest income.

The Corporation conducts its mortgage lending activities on properties located in Canada, primarily in the Province of Ontario, Manitoba and Alberta. The registered office of the Corporation is 360 Highway 7, Unit 28, Richmond Hill, ON, L4B 3Y7.

2. Basis of presentation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC").

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of the Corporation.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that are measured at fair value. The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in note 4.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may vary from these estimates.

The most significant estimates that the Corporation is required to make relate to the fair value of mortgages receivable. These estimates may include assumptions regarding local real estate market conditions, interest rates and the availability of credit, cost and terms of financing, the impact of present or future legislation or regulation, prior encumbrances and other factors affecting the investments and underlying security of the investments. These assumptions are limited by the availability of reliable comparable data, economic uncertainty, ongoing geopolitical concerns and the uncertainty of predictions concerning future events.

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

2. Basis of presentation (continued)

Use of estimates and judgments (continued)

By their nature, estimates of fair value are subjective and do not necessarily result in precise determinations. Should the underlying assumptions change, the estimated fair value could vary by a material amount.

3. Significant accounting policies

Mortgages receivable

Mortgages receivable are classified as loans and receivable investments. Such instruments are recognized initially at cost plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the mortgages receivable are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Mortgages receivable are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of an asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and reflected in an allowance account against the mortgages receivable. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount if it is considered collectable. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income.

Revenue recognition

Mortgage interest is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as one of the following: (i) fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL"); (ii) loans and receivables; (iii) held-to-maturity; (iv) available-for-sale; or (v) other liabilities. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial instruments not categorized as FVTPL, any incremental direct transaction costs. Financial assets classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses recognized in income. The Corporation has classified cash and accounts receivables as FVTPL.

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities primarily consist of accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Non-performance risk, including the Corporation's own credit risk for financial liabilities, is considered when determining the fair value of financial liabilities.

Equity instruments

Common and Preferred shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the common shares and are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Income taxes

The Corporation qualifies as a MIC under the Income Tax Act, and as such is not taxed on income provided that its taxable income is distributed to its shareholders in the form of dividends within 90 days after December 31 each year. Accordingly, no provision for current or future income taxes is required unless the Corporation elects to retain income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions and contingent liabilities are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions and contingent liabilities are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit is remote. Possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related party transactions

All related party transactions must be disclosed in the financial statements which include the amount of the transactions, the amount of outstanding balances, including terms, provisions for doubtful debts related to outstanding balances and the expense recognized during the year in respect to bad or doubtful debts from related parties.

4. Determination of fair values

Some of the Corporation's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value of financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between arm's length market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy establishes three levels to classify the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

4. Determination of fair values (continued)

- Level 2 inputs are quoted prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data or other means.
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable and are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. The Corporation's financial assets and liabilities include cash and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and the fair value of these financial instruments are measured using Level 1 inputs. Mortgage receivable is measured at amortized cost and does not use this hierarchy.

5. Financial risk management

Overview

The Corporation's planned operations will expose it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its operating and financing activities:

- i. credit risk;
- ii. liquidity risk;
- iii. market risk;
- iv. operational risk;
- v. interest rate risk; and
- vi. capital risk.

This note presents information about the Corporation's exposure, objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing each of the above risks.

The Corporation employs risk management strategies and policies to ensure that any exposure to risk is in compliance with the Corporation's business objectives and risk tolerance levels. While the Directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Corporation's risk management framework, management has the responsibility to administer and monitor these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Corporation's mortgage receivables.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash	\$ 1,732,270
Accounts receivable	330,060
Mortgages receivable	26,886,095
	\$ 28,948,424

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

5. Financial risk management (continued)

Cash consists of bank deposits. The Corporation manages the credit exposure related to cash by selecting financial institutions with high credit ratings. Mortgages receivable are issued to borrowers who must pass a credit check. Given these credit ratings, management expect minimal counterparty risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they are due. Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that the projected repayments under the existing investment portfolio exceeds projected needs.

The obligations for future advances under the Corporation's investment portfolio are anticipated to be funded from existing cash, mortgage interest, borrower repayments and future issuance of preferred shares.

As at July 31, 2017, management considers that the Corporation does not have significant exposure to liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as real estate prices, will affect the Corporation's net income or the value of financial instruments. The objective of the Corporation is to manage and mitigate market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while maximizing returns.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Corporation's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. The Corporation manages its operational risk by setting appropriate policies related to human resources, IT, regulatory compliance, and other factors.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. As the Corporation does not currently have any variable interest bearing debt, the Corporation is not exposed to interest rate risk.

The Corporation had no interest rate swaps or financial contracts in place as at or during the period ended July 31, 2017.

Capital risk management

The Corporation's capital management policy is to maintain a strong capital base that optimizes the Corporation's ability to grow, maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a platform to create value for its shareholder. The Corporation intends to maintain a flexible capital structure to maximize its ability to pursue additional investment opportunities, which considers the requirement to sustain future development of the business.

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

6. Related party transactions

Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc. (Radiance or the Manager), a related party by virtue of common management, acts as the Mortgage Broker to the Corporation. Radiance will, on behalf of the Corporation, originate, underwrite and adjudicate each loan. 5C Capital Inc. (5C Capital or the Administrator), a related party by virtue of common management, acts as the Mortgage Administrator, who will services and administer each loan. The directors of the related parties are the same individuals as the directors of the Corporation.

There is a Management Services Agreement dated November 21, 2013 with the Manager for the provision of a wide range of services including, but not limited to, overseeing and managing the Corporation's investment portfolio. The Manager receives a fee from the Corporation equal to 1.50% per annum of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation. The amount is calculated and paid based on the last day of the month in the amount of 1/12 of 1.5% of the book value of the total assets of the Corporation.

There is a Administration Agreement dated November 21, 2013 with the Administrator, for the provision of general administration services including but not limited to generally administering mortgage loans, collecting the principal, interest and all other amounts due by the borrower to the Corporation and distributing the same amounts to the Corporation. The Administrator agrees to provide mortgage administration services to the Corporation for an annual fee which will be collected from the Manager. The fee is calculated and paid based on one third of the management fee that the Manager collects from the Corporation so that in effect the Corporation shall pay a 1.50% management fee to the Manager and the Manager will in turn pay the Mortgage Administrator one third of 1.50% which equals a fee of 0.5% in consideration of the services described above.

During the period, the Corporation paid fees of \$305,623 to Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc.. These transactions were conducted by the Corporation in the normal course of business. As at July 31, 2017, the only related party balance is an amount due to Radiance Mortgage Brokerage of \$190,856.

7. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable consists of funds receivable from new shareholders whose Class B share subscriptions closed on July 31, 2017. These funds are held in trust by a third party and becomes due to the Corporation upon the closing of the new subscriptions. The funds were disbursed to the Corporation in August 2017.

8. Mortgages receivable

The following is a breakdown of the mortgages receivable as at July 31, 2017:

First mortgages	\$ 2,754,920
Non-first mortgages	23,864,362
Interest receivable	266,813
Total mortgages receivable	\$ 26,886,095

Non-first mortgages are loans with mortgage charges not registered in first priority with loan-to-value ratios not exceeding 85%. All mortgages are secured by residential properties in Canada.

The loans in the investment portfolio bear interest at the weighted average rate of 11.12%, mature in 2017 and 2018. Approximately 7.30% of the portfolio's mortgages are secured by properties located in Manitoba, Canada, 92.44% in Ontario, Canada, and 0.26% in Alberta, Canada, when measured by loan amount. There are no further commitment to fund additional mortgages as at July 31, 2017.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

8. Mortgages receivable (continued)

Principal repayments based on contractual maturity dates are as follows:

	<u>As at July 31,</u>
	<u>2017</u>
2017	\$ 10,110,266
2018	16,509,016
	\$ 26.619,282

During the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017, no transaction costs were incurred by the Corporation in the mortgage transactions.

9. Dividends

The Corporation intends to make dividend payments to the shareholders on a monthly basis on or about the 15th day of each month. The Corporation has the discretion to distribute to shareholders, within 90 days after the year end, the net income of the Corporation determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act (Canada), subject to certain adjustments.

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017, the Corporation declared dividends of \$1,453,545 to its shareholders.

10. Share capital

Authorized

As at July 31, 2017, the Corporation was authorized to issue the following:

Unlimited number of Class A Common Shares

Unlimited number of Class B Preferred Shares

The Corporation has an optional dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) for preferred shareholders, whereby participants may reinvest cash dividends in additional preferred shares of the Corporation at the current share price as at the date of conversion. Class B Preferred Shares issued under the DRIP are issued by the company from its treasury.

Issued and outstanding

The following Class A Common Shares were issued and outstanding as at July 31, 2017:

	Share	Æ	Amount
Balance, beginning of year	1,000	\$	10,000
New shares issued during the year	-		-
Balance, end of year	1,000	\$	10,000

The following Class B Preferred Shares were issued and outstanding as at July 31, 2017:

	Share	Amount
Balance, beginning of period	2,049,210	\$ 20,492,096
New shares issued	969,259	9,692,590
Dividend Reinvestment Plan	40,843	408,426
Redemption of shares	(203,162)	(2,031,619)
Balance, end of period	2,856,149	\$ 28,561,493

Notes to Financial Statements

For the period from November 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017

10. Share capital

Share capital, as presented on the statement of financial position, is composed of:

	<u>As at July 31,</u>
	<u>2017</u>
Class A Common Shares	\$ 10,000
Class B Preferred Shares	28,561,493
Share issuance costs	(325,309)
	\$ 28,246,184

11. Future accounting changes

Certain pronouncements have been issued by the IASB or IFRIC that will be effective for future accounting periods. The most significant changes are summarized below:

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments is a new standard for financial instruments scheduled to replace IAS 39 -Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The approach to classifying an asset as either amortized cost or fair value in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of its financial assets. IFRS 9 will also introduce a new impairment model that requires a more timely recognition of expected losses. The potential impact of IFRS 9 on the Corporation's financial statements have not been determined.

IFRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers specifies how and when revenue should be recognized as well as requiring more informative and relevant disclosures. This standard supersedes IAS 18 - Revenue, IAS 11 - Construction Contracts and a number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the IFRS 15 is mandatory and it applies to nearly all contracts with customers. The IASB has tentatively deferred mandatory adoption of IFRS 15 until periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. The potential impact of IFRS 15 on the Corporation's financial statements have not been determined.

10062473.7

ITEM 13 DATE AND CERTIFICATE

This Offering Memorandum does not contain a misrepresentation.

Dated October 10, 2017.

RESCO MORTGAGE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

(Signed) "Chris M. K. Cheng" CHRIS M. K. CHENG Chief Operating Officer

(Signed) "Phoebe M. K. Lam"

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Signed) "David Y. Ho" DAVID Y. HO Director

(Signed) "Will C. B. Sung" WILL C.B. SUNG Director

PROMOTERS

(Signed) "David Y. Ho" DAVID Y. HO

(Signed) "Franky M. C. Tse" FRANKY M. C. TSE

(Signed) "Will C. B. Sung" WILL C. B. SUNG

(Signed) "Chris M. K. Cheng" CHRIS M. K. CHENG

(Signed) "Phoebe M. K. Lam" PHOEBE M. K. LAM

PHOEBE M. K. LAM Managing Director

APPENDIX 1

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

Please see attached.

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT FOR CLASS B PREFERRED SHARES

TO: RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation (the "Corporation")

The undersigned (hereinafter referred to as the "Subscriber") hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of Class B Preferred Shares (the "Preferred Shares") of the Corporation set forth below, representing a subscription price of \$10.00 per Preferred Share, upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in "Terms and Conditions of Subscription for Preferred Shares of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation" attached hereto (the "Terms and Conditions"). This page plus the Terms and Conditions and the Exhibits attached thereto, are collectively referred to as the "Subscription Agreement". Initially capitalized terms in the Subscription Agreement and not otherwise defined have the meanings ascribed to them in the offering memorandum of the Corporation dated October 10, 2017 (the "Offering Memorandum"), unless the context otherwise requires.

	Number of Preferred Shares*:	
(Name of Subscriber – please print)		
By:	Aggregate Subscription Amount: Cdn. \$	
(Authorized Signature)	*Minimum Subscription is 1,000 Preferred Shares	
(Official Capacity or Title – if the subscriber is not an individual)	Subscription Price per Preferred Share: \$10.00	
(Please print name of individual whose signature appears above if		
different than the name of the Subscriber printed above.)	FOR ALL SUBSCRIBERS – Check all that apply:	
	I am a "registrant" 🛛 Yes 🗆 No	
(Subscriber's Address)	I am an "insider of the Corporation \Box Yes \Box No	
	I am a "promoter" of the Corporation \Box Yes \Box No	
(Telephone Number) (Email Address)	Each as defined under applicable securities laws.	
Social Insurance Number / Business Number	Payment Options	
□ JOINT SUBSCRIBERS: Check the box if Subscribers for	Please choose for your cash distribution payments:	
Preferred Shares are to be joint tenants with right of	□ Distribution reinvestment (compound interest)	
survivorship	(please see Section 2(p) and 3(z))	
	\Box Direct deposit into bank account <u>other than savings</u>	
□ I am a non-resident of Canada	(a void cheque or a copy <i>must</i> be provided)	
If not a perident of Canada, Law a perident of	□ Direct deposit into bank account on file	
If not a resident of Canada, I am a resident of and I am not a U.S. Person (as defined by Regulation S of the United	Direct deposit into savings account	
States Securities Act of 1933)	Bank Name:	
By executing this Subscription, you are consenting (on your behalf	Bank #: Transit #:	
and, if applicable, on behalf of the beneficial purchaser for whom	Account #:	
you are contracting), to the collection, use and disclosure of personal information in the manner described in the Privacy Notice on page	\Box Cheque to trustee:	
18 of this Subscription Agreement.	Specify Company:	
Register the Preferred Shares as set out below (if different from	Deliver the Preferred Shares as set out below (if different from	
Subscriber):	<u>Subscriber's address):</u>	
(Name)	(Name)	
(Account reference, if applicable)	(Account reference, if applicable)	
(Address)	(Contact Name)	
	(Address)	
FOR ALL SUBSCRIBERS – Check all that apply:		
I am a "registrant"		
I am an "insider of the Corporation □ Yes □ No I am a "promoter" of the Corporation □ Yes □ No		
Each as defined under applicable securities laws.		

PLEASE COMPLETE THE SECOND PAGE OF THIS AGREEMENT AND APPLICABLE EXHIBITS *This is the first page of an agreement comprised of 18 pages, not including Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4*

-	r Securities Exemptions: Please <u>initial</u> beside the following exemption you are relying on and complete the relevant on. By executing this Subscription Agreement you represent and warrant that the initialed statements apply to you:
(a)	I am an "accredited investor". I am subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Accredited Investor Exemption and reside in a Province of Canada. COMPLETE EXHIBIT 1 (PARTS I AND II) .
(b)	I am subscribing for Preferred Shares under section the Offering Memorandum Exemption and reside in a British Columbia or Newfoundland and Labrador. COMPLETE Exhibit 3 (Part I) .
(c)	I am subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption and reside in Manitoba or Prince Edward Island. COMPLETE EXHIBIT 2 AND Exhibit 3 (Part I) .
(d)	I am subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption and reside in Alberta, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario or Saskatchewan. COMPLETE EXHIBIT 2 AND Exhibit 3 (Part I) AND Exhibit 3 (Part II) .
(e)	I am subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption, reside in Alberta, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario or Saskatchewan, and am an "eligible investor" because I am an "accredited investor". COMPLETE Exhibit 1 (Part I), EXHIBIT 2, AND Exhibit 3 (Part I) AND Exhibit 3 (Part II).
(f)	I am resident in Canada and am purchasing pursuant to an exemption from prospectus requirements available to me under applicable securities legislation other than (a), (b), (c), (d) or (e)d above, and will provide the full particulars of such exemptions and evidence of the my qualifications thereunder.
(g)	I am resident in a jurisdiction other than Canada and the United States and I am purchasing pursuant to Section 3(o) of this Agreement. COMPLETE EXHIBIT 1.

FOR ADVISER/DEALER TO COMPLETE

By submitting this completed Subscription Agreement to the Corporation, the adviser/dealer hereby acknowledges and confirms that it has fulfilled all relevant "know-your-client", suitability and anti-money laundering obligations under applicable securities legislation or other laws. It also confirms that it (i) has taken reasonable steps to verify that the Subscriber qualifies for the prospectus exemption indicated by the Subscriber under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions" above, (ii) will retain, for a minimum of eight years, all necessary documents to demonstrate such verification, and (iii) will provide copies of such documentation to the Corporation upon request.

Name of Dealer (Firm Name)

Name and ID No. of Account Representative

Dealer Transaction Number

*Witness Attestation for Power of Attorney

The witness, by signing this document, hereby certifies that he or she was present when the document was executed by the Subscriber and has executed this document in the presence of the Subscriber on the date shown above and that he or she is not:

- (a) less than 18 years old; or
- (b) a person designated as the attorney in the power of attorney contemplated in this Subscription Agreement; or
- (c) the spouse or partner of the Subscriber or person designated as the attorney in the power of attorney contemplated in this Subscription Agreement; or
- (d) a child of the Subscriber or a person whom the Subscriber has demonstrated a settled intention to treat as the Subscriber's child; or
- (e) another family member of the Subscriber or person designated as the attorney in the power of attorney contemplated in this Subscription Agreement.

This is the second page of an agreement comprised of 18 pages, not including Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4.

Signature of Account Representative

Telephone Number of Account Representative

Email Address of Account Representative

ACCEPTANCE: The Corporation hereby accepts the above subscription on the terms and conditions contained in this Subscription Agreement.

EXECUTED this _____ day of _____, 20____.

RESCO MORTGAGE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Ву: _____

Authorized Signing Officer

Please make sure that your subscription includes:

- 1. One (1) signed copy of this Subscription Agreement.
- 2. A certified cheque or bank draft in an amount equal to the Aggregate Subscription Amount payable to "RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation" or a wire transfer to:

RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation 360 Highway 7 East, Unit 28, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7 Account Number: 0663-5262832 TD Canada Trust 3477 Sheppard Avenue East, Scarborough, Ontario M1T 3K6 Institution Number: 004 / Branch Code: 10332 / SWIFT Code: TDOMCATTTOR

Subscribers that will be subscribing through registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, registered education savings plans, registered disability savings plans, deferred profit sharing plans or tax free savings accounts will be required to provide the proceeds to the applicable plan administrator and coordinate the payment by the plan administrator to the Corporation, in order to complete the subscription.

- 3. A completed and signed copy of:
 - (a) **Exhibit 1 (Part I), and if applicable, Exhibit 1 (PART II)**, if you initialed beside (a) or (f) on the face page of this Subscription Agreement under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions";
 - (b) **Exhibit 3 (Part I) only**, if you initialled beside (b) on the face page of this Subscription Agreement under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions";
 - (c) **EXHIBIT 2 and Exhibit 3 (Part I) only**, if you initialled beside (c) on the face page of this Subscription Agreement under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions";
 - (d) **EXHIBIT 2 and Exhibit 3 (PART I and PART II)**, if you initialed beside any of (d) on the face page of this Subscription Agreement under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions"; or
 - (e) **Exhibit 1 (Part I), EXHIBIT 2 and Exhibit 3 (PART I and PART II)** if you initialed beside (e) on the face page of this Subscription Agreement under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions".

<u>Please deliver your subscription to:</u>

RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation 360 Highway 7 East, Unit 28 Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7 Fax: +1 (905) 889-4155 Email: info@rescomic.ca

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION FOR PREFERRED SHARES OF RESCO MORTGAGE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

1. Interpretation.

- (a) In this Subscription Agreement, unless stated otherwise or defined on the cover page or in Section 1(b) of this Subscription Agreement, capitalized terms used herein that are defined in the Offering Memorandum have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Offering Memorandum.
- (b) In this Subscription Agreement:
 - (i) "Accredited Investor Exemption" means the prospectus exemption described in section 2.3 of NI 45-106 and 73.3(1) of the *Securities Act* (Ontario), as applicable;
 - (ii) "Accredited Investor Risk Acknowledgement" means the Accredited Investor Risk Acknowledgement (Form 45-106F9) attached hereto as of Exhibit 1 (PART II);
 - (iii) **"business day**" means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in the City of Toronto, Ontario;
 - (iv) "Cancellation Right" means the right of the Subscriber who is subscribing under section
 2.9 [Offering memorandum] of NI 45-106 to cancel this Subscription Agreement by sending notice of cancellation by midnight on the 2nd business day after the Subscriber executes this Subscription Agreement;
 - (v) "Closing" means the completion of the subscription for any Preferred Shares pursuant to this Subscription Agreement;
 - (vi) "Closing Date" means the date of the Closing, which is expected to occur from time to time as the Corporation may determine;
 - (vii) "Closing Time" means the time on the applicable Closing Date that the Closing occurs;
 - (viii) **"Offering Memorandum**" means the Offering Memorandum of the Corporation relating to the sale of Preferred Shares, as may be amended or supplemented from time to time;
 - (ix) "Offering Memorandum Exemption" means the prospectus exemption described in Section 2.9 of NI 45-106;
 - (x) **"Offering Memorandum Risk Acknowledgement**" means the Offering Memorandum Risk Acknowledgement (Form 45-106F4) attached hereto as of Exhibit 3 (Part I);
 - (xi) **"Plan**" means the distribution reinvestment plan of the Corporation, as amended, restated, supplemented or replaced from time to time;
 - (xii) "**NI 45-106**" means National Instrument 45-106 *Prospectus Exemptions* of the Canadian Securities Administrators;
 - (xiii) **"Tax Act**" means the *Income Tax Act* (Canada), together with any and all regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended from time to time;
 - (xiv) "**United States**" means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States and the District of Columbia.

2. <u>Acknowledgements of the Subscriber</u>. The Subscriber acknowledges that:

- (a) this subscription is subject to rejection or acceptance by the Corporation in whole or in part, and is effective only upon acceptance by the Corporation;
- (b) the Preferred Shares subscribed for by it hereunder form part of a larger issuance and sale of Class B Preferred Shares by the Corporation for aggregate maximum gross proceeds of up to \$50,000,000;
- (c) the Corporation reserves the right to close the Offering in multiple tranches and the Corporation is entitled to use the subscription proceeds as soon as any Closing has occurred;
- (d) there is no government or other insurance covering the Preferred Shares;
- (e) the Corporation may appoint selling agents to offer the Preferred Shares for sale on a private placement basis and in connection therewith, the Corporation may, directly or indirectly, pay a commission of up to 5% of the gross proceeds realized on the Preferred Shares sold directly by such selling agents, and may also pay the reasonable expenses of such selling agents;
- (f) the Corporation may pay a cash finder's fee to qualified finders who refer Subscribers to the Offering of up to 5% of the gross proceeds realized on the Preferred Shares sold to subscribers referred by such finders;
- (g) the Corporation may provide information in respect of the Subscriber's investment to the adviser and dealer listed on page 2 of this Subscription Agreement;
- (h) there are restrictions on the Subscriber's ability to resell the Preferred Shares and it is the responsibility of the Subscriber to find out what those restrictions are and to comply with them before selling the Preferred Shares;
- (i) the Corporation has advised the Subscriber that the Corporation is relying on an exemption from the requirements to provide the Subscriber with a prospectus and, as a consequence of acquiring Preferred Shares pursuant to this exemption, certain protections, rights and remedies provided by the *Securities Act* (Alberta) and other applicable securities laws, including statutory rights of rescission or damages, may not be available to the Subscriber (other than the rights set forth in the Offering Memorandum applicable to Subscribers who subscribe for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption;
- (j) no prospectus has been filed by the Corporation with any securities commission or similar regulatory authority in any jurisdiction in connection with the issuance of the Preferred Shares and the issuance is exempt from the prospectus requirements available under the provisions of applicable securities laws and as a result:
 - the Subscriber is restricted from using most of the civil remedies available under applicable securities laws (other than remedies available in connection with the Offering Memorandum delivered to Subscribers who subscribe for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption;
 - (ii) the Subscriber may not receive information that would otherwise be required to be provided to it under applicable securities laws (other than the information set forth in the Offering Memorandum applicable to Subscribers who subscribe for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption; and

- (iii) the Corporation is relieved from certain obligations that would otherwise apply under applicable securities laws;
- (k) WeirFoulds LLP is acting as counsel to the Corporation and not for any Subscriber and, as such, the Subscriber is solely responsible for obtaining such legal advice as it considers appropriate in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by it of this Subscription Agreement and ownership of the Preferred Shares;
- (l) participation in the Offering is subject to acceptance of the Subscription Agreement by the Corporation, and that acceptance of this Subscription Agreement shall be effective upon the Subscriber being included on the register of holders of Preferred Shares of the Corporation (the "**Register**") designating the Subscriber as a Preferred Shareholder of the Corporation (a "**Preferred Shareholder**");
- (m) it has been furnished with and has carefully reviewed and fully understands the Offering Memorandum;
- (n) Radiance Mortgage Brokerage Inc. (the "Manager") and 5C Capital Inc. (the "Administrator") have been engaged by the Corporation to provide management and administrative services to the Corporation, and the Corporation may provide information in respect of the Subscriber and its holdings of Preferred Shares to the Manager and the Administrator from time to time in connection with the provision of such management and administrative services to the Corporation
- (o) the Manager and Administrator may, in connection with the provision of such services and the carrying out of their respective businesses, disclose and use information acquired in connection with the provision of management and administration services to the Corporation;
- (p) if it has elected, on the face page hereof, to participate in the Plan, agrees to hereby apply to enroll in and become a participant in the Plan and further directs the Corporation to apply any and all cash distributions payable in respect of all Preferred Shares registered in the Subscriber's name now or in the future towards the purchase of additional Preferred Shares, subject to proration, any applicable withholding tax and such other limitations and restrictions as are set forth in the Plan, and hereby agrees that all documents relating to the Plan and its participation therein, whenever prepared or received including, shall be prepared exclusively in the English language. The Subscriber further acknowledges that the Plan is governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein, and hereby attorns to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario with respect to proceedings involving the Plan.
- 3. <u>**Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Subscriber.**</u> By executing this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber represents, warrants and covenants to the Corporation (and acknowledges that the Corporation and its counsel is relying thereon) that:
 - (a) if the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber is of the full age of majority in the jurisdiction in which this Subscription Agreement is executed and is legally competent to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and all other agreements, instruments and other documents contemplated hereby and that it will perform all of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, undertake all actions required of the Subscriber hereunder and thereunder;
 - (b) if the Subscriber is not an individual: (i) it has been duly incorporated, formed or created and is valid and subsisting under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, formation, or creation; (ii) has the requisite power, authority, legal capacity and competence to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and all other agreements, instruments and other documents contemplated hereby and to perform all of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, and to undertake all actions required of the Subscriber hereunder and thereunder; and (iii) all necessary approvals of its

directors, partners, shareholders, trustees or otherwise with respect to such matters that have been given or obtained;

- (c) this Subscription Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by, and constitutes a legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the Subscriber;
- (d) the execution, delivery and performance by the Subscriber of this Subscription Agreement and the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and will not result in a violation of any law, regulation, order or ruling applicable to the Subscriber, and do not and will not constitute a breach of or default under any of the Subscriber's constating documents (if the Subscriber is not an individual) or any agreement to which the Subscriber is a party or by which it is bound;
- (e) the Subscriber:
 - (i) has such knowledge in financial and business affairs as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Preferred Shares;
 - (ii) is capable of assessing the proposed investment in the Preferred Shares as a result of the Subscriber's own experience or as a result of advice received from a person registered under applicable securities legislation;
 - (iii) is aware of the characteristics of the Preferred Shares and the risks relating to an investment therein; and
 - (iv) is able to bear the economic risk of loss of its investment in the Preferred Shares;
- (f) it understands that no securities commission, stock exchange, governmental agency, regulatory body or similar authority in Canada, the United States or elsewhere has made any finding or determination or expressed any opinion with respect to the merits of investing in the Preferred Shares;
- (g) it confirms that neither the Corporation nor any of its directors, employees, officers or affiliates, have made any representations (written or oral) to the Subscriber:
 - (i) regarding the future value of the Preferred Shares;
 - (ii) that any person will resell or repurchase the Preferred Shares;
 - (iii) that any person will refund the purchase price of the Preferred Shares (other than in connection with the Cancellation Right); or
 - (iv) that the Preferred Shares will be listed and posted for trading on a stock exchange or that application has been made to list and post the Preferred Shares for trading on a stock exchange;
- (h) the Subscriber has been advised to consult its own legal, tax and financial advisers with respect to the suitability of the Preferred Shares as an investment for the Subscriber and the resale restrictions and "hold periods" to which the Preferred Shares are subject under applicable securities legislation, it has been independently advised as to the meanings of all terms contained herein relevant to it for purposes of the representations, warranties, undertakings and covenants contained in this Subscription Agreement, and has not relied upon any statements made by or purporting to have been made on behalf of the Corporation in deciding to subscribe for Preferred Shares hereunder;

- (i) it has not become aware of, and it has not entered into this Subscription Agreement as a result of:
 (i) any advertisement in printed media of general and regular paid circulation (or other printed public media), radio, television or telecommunications or other form of advertisement (including electronic display such as the internet) with respect to the Corporation, the Offering or the distribution of the Preferred Shares; or (ii) any general solicitation or general advertising;
- (j) except in the case of a Subscriber who is subscribing under the Offering Memorandum Exemption, the Subscriber has not received, requested and does not have any need to receive, any offering memorandum, or any other document describing the business and affairs of the Corporation which has been prepared for delivery to and review by, prospective subscribers in order to assist it in making an investment decision in respect of the Preferred Shares;
- (k) in the case of a Subscriber who is subscribing under the offering memorandum exemption in section 2.9 of NI 45-106, the Subscriber has received, reviewed and fully understands the Offering Memorandum and has had an opportunity to ask and have answered any and all questions which it wished to raise with respect to the business and affairs of the Corporation, the nature of its activities, the proposed use of proceeds, the Preferred Shares, and this Subscription Agreement;
- except in the case of a Subscriber who is subscribing under the Offering Memorandum Exemption, the Subscriber acknowledges that certain protections, rights and remedies provided by an offering memorandum and other applicable securities laws, including statutory rights of rescission or damages, may not be available to the Subscriber;
- (m) the Subscriber confirms that it is, or is deemed to be, purchasing the Preferred Shares as principal for its own account, not for the benefit of any other person, and for investment purposes only and not with a view to the resale or distribution of all or any of the Preferred Shares, it is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber's Address" on the face page hereof, and it fully complies with one or more of the criteria set forth below:
 - (i) it is resident in or otherwise subject to applicable securities laws of a province of Canada, it is an "accredited investor", as such term is defined in NI 45-106 or, where applicable, section 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), it was not created and is not used solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor as described in paragraph (m) of the definition of "accredited investor" in NI 45-106, and has duly completed and executed Exhibit 1 (and particularly, if the Subscriber is an individual who has initialed category (j), (k) or (l) of the definition of "accredited investor" in Exhibit 1 (Part I), he or she has duly completed and executed two (2) copies of the Accredited Investor Risk Acknowledgement, one copy for each of the Corporation and the Subscriber); or
 - (ii) it is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities laws of British Columbia or Newfoundland and Labrador, it has received or been provided with a copy of the Offering Memorandum and has duly completed and executed two (2) copies of Exhibit 3 (Part I) – Offering Memorandum Risk Acknowledgement (one copy for each of the Corporation and the Subscriber); or
 - (iii) it is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities laws of Alberta, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario or Saskatchewan, it has received or been provided with a copy of the Offering Memorandum and has duly completed and executed two (2) copies of the Exhibit 3 (Part I) Offering Memorandum Risk Acknowledgement (one copy for each of the Corporation and the Subscriber), Exhibit 1 (PART II) and:

- (A) if the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber:
 - (1) is not an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106 and the acquisition cost of all securities acquired by the Subscriber under the Offering Memorandum Exemption in the preceding 12 months (including the Preferred Shares to be acquired hereunder) does not exceed \$10,000,
 - (2) is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106 and the acquisition cost of all securities acquired by the Subscriber under the Offering Memorandum Exemption in the preceding 12 months (including the Preferred Shares to be acquired hereunder) does not exceed \$30,000,
 - (3) is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106, has received advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer that the investment is suitable and the acquisition cost of all securities acquired by the Subscriber under the Offering Memorandum Exemption in the preceding 12 months (including the Preferred Shares to be acquired hereunder) does not exceed \$100,000, or
 - (4) is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106 because it is an "accredited investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106 or, where applicable, section 73.3(1) of the *Securities Act* (Ontario) and the Subscriber has duly completed and executed Exhibit 1; or
 - (5) is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106 because it is:
 - a director, executive officer or control person of the issuer, or of an affiliate of the issuer (as such term is defined in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit 1 (Part I)) of the Corporation, or an affiliate of the Corporation;
 - (II) a spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of a director, executive officer, or control person (as such term is defined in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit 1 (Part I)) of the Corporation, or an affiliate of the Corporation; or
 - (III) a parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of the spouse of a director, executive officer, or control person (as such term is defined in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit 1 (Part I)) of the Corporation, or an affiliate of the Corporation; or
 - (IV) a close personal friend of a director, executive officer or control person of the Corporation, or an affiliate of the Corporation; or
 - a close business associate of a director, executive officer or control person of the Corporation, or an affiliate of the Corporation; or

- (VI) a founder of the Corporation or a spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child, grandchild, close personal friend or close business associate of a founder of the Trust; or
- (VII) a parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of a spouse of a founder of the Corporation; or
- (VIII) a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by, or a majority of the directors are, persons described in paragraphs (I) to (VII); or
- (IX) a trust or estate of which all the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees or executors are persons described in paragraphs (I) to (VII); and
- (B) if the Subscriber is not an individual, it was not created, and is not used, solely to purchase or hold securities in reliance on the Offering Memorandum Exemption;
- (iv) it is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities laws of Manitoba or Prince Edward Island, it has received or been provided with a copy of the Offering Memorandum and has duly completed and executed EXHIBIT 2 and two (2) copies of Exhibit 3 (Part I) – Offering Memorandum Risk Acknowledgement (one copy for each of the Corporation and the Subscriber), and
 - (A) is not an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106 and the acquisition cost of the Preferred Shares does not exceed \$10,000, or
 - (B) is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106; and
 - (C) if the Subscriber is not an individual, it was not created, and is not used, solely to purchase or hold securities in reliance on the Offering Memorandum Exemption;
- (n) if it is a resident of any jurisdiction referred to in the preceding paragraph 3(m) but not purchasing thereunder, it is purchasing pursuant to an exemption from prospectus requirements (particulars of which are enclosed herewith) available to it under applicable securities legislation and shall deliver to the Corporation such further particulars of the exemption(s) and the Subscriber's qualifications thereunder as the Corporation or its counsel may request;
- (o) if the Subscriber initialed line (g) on the face page hereof under the heading "Qualifications for Securities Exemptions", the Subscriber is a resident of a country other than Canada or the United States (an "International Jurisdiction"), then in addition to the other representations and warranties contained in this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber represents and warrants that:
 - (i) the Subscriber is knowledgeable of, or has been independently advised as to, the applicable securities laws of the International Jurisdiction which would apply to this Subscription Agreement, if any;
 - (ii) the Subscriber is purchasing the Preferred Shares hereunder pursuant to exemptions from the prospectus and registration requirements under the applicable securities laws of that International Jurisdiction or, if such is not applicable, the Subscriber is permitted to purchase the Preferred Shares under the applicable securities laws of the International Jurisdiction without the need to rely on an exemption;

- (iii) the applicable securities laws of the International Jurisdiction do not require the Corporation to file a prospectus or similar document or to register the Preferred Shares purchased hereunder or to make any filings or seek any approvals of any kind whatsoever from any regulatory authority of any kind whatsoever in the International Jurisdiction;
- (iv) the delivery of this Subscription Agreement, the acceptance of it by the Corporation and the issuance of the Preferred Shares to the Subscriber comply with all applicable laws of the Subscriber's International Jurisdiction of residence or domicile and all other applicable laws and will not cause the Corporation to become subject to or comply with any disclosure, prospectus or reporting requirements under any such applicable laws; and
- (v) the Subscriber will, if requested by the Corporation, deliver to the Corporation a certificate or opinion of local counsel from the International Jurisdiction which will confirm the matters referred to herein to the satisfaction of the Corporation;
- (p) it understands and acknowledges that: (i) there is no market for the Preferred Shares and there is no assurance that a market will develop in the future and confirms that no representation has been made to it by or on behalf of the Corporation with respect thereto; (ii) it is aware of the characteristics of the Preferred Shares; (iii) it is aware of the risks relating to an investment therein; and (iv) the Corporation is not a "reporting issuer" under the securities laws of any province or territory in Canada, and as a result of the Corporation not being a reporting issuer the Preferred Shares will be subject to an indefinite "hold period" or "restricted period" under applicable Canadian securities laws of 4 months and a day from the later of the Closing Date and the date the Corporation becomes a reporting issuer under the securities laws of any province or territory of Canada, during which time the Subscriber may not trade the Preferred Shares without filing a prospectus or being able to rely on one of the limited exemptions from the requirement to file a prospectus under applicable securities laws, and that the Subscriber is solely responsible for (and the Corporation is not in any way responsible for) the Subscriber's compliance with applicable resale restrictions. The Subscriber further acknowledges that the Corporation may never become a reporting issuer, and therefore, the hold period or restricted period may never expire and that it has been advised to consult legal counsel in the jurisdiction in which it resides or is deemed to reside for full particulars of resale restrictions and hold periods to which the Preferred Shares are subject under applicable securities laws;
- (q) it understands that the transfer of the Preferred Shares is restricted pursuant to and applicable securities laws and that any certificates representing the Preferred Shares will bear a legend, or legends, indicating that the resale of such securities is restricted;
- (r) it will not resell any of the Preferred Shares, except in accordance with the provisions of applicable securities legislation and regulatory policy;
- (s) it is aware that the Preferred Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "U.S. Securities Act") or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the United States without registration under the U.S. Securities Act or compliance with requirements of an exemption from registration and the applicable laws of all applicable states or an exemption from such registration requirements is available and it acknowledges that the Corporation has no present intention of filing a registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act in respect of the Preferred Shares;
- (t) it is not a "U.S. Person" (as that term is defined by Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, which definition includes, but is not limited to, an individual resident in the United States, an estate or trust of which any executor or administrator or trustee, respectively, is a U.S. Person and any partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws of the United States) and is not acquiring the Preferred Shares for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States;

- (u) It is not a U.S. Person for U.S. tax purposes (interpreted in accordance with the U.S. *Internal Revenue Code*, which without limitation includes a U.S. resident or a U.S. citizen, even if that individual resides outside of the U.S. and is also a citizen or resident of another jurisdiction for tax purposes) and is not acquiring the Preferred Shares for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person;
- (v) the Preferred Shares have not been offered to the Subscriber in the United States, and the individuals making the order to purchase the Preferred Shares and executing and delivering this Subscription Agreement on behalf of the Subscriber were not in the United States when the order was placed and this Subscription Agreement was executed and delivered;
- (w) it has relied solely upon the information in the Offering Memorandum and publicly available information relating to the Corporation and not upon any verbal or written representation as to fact or otherwise made by or on behalf of the Corporation, and acknowledges that the Corporation's counsel acts as counsel to the Corporation, and not as counsel to the Subscriber;
- (x) it understands that it and the Corporation may be required to provide securities regulatory authorities or stock exchanges with information concerning the identities of the purchasers of the Preferred Shares and, if required by applicable securities legislation or regulatory policy or by any securities regulatory authority or stock exchange, the Subscriber will execute, deliver, file and otherwise assist the Corporation in filing such reports, undertakings and other documents with respect to the issue of the Preferred Shares as may be required;
- (y) it will ensure that its status as described above in sections 3(t) and (u) will not be modified and he or she will not transfer his or her Preferred Shares in whole or in part to any person who would be unable to make such representations and warranties without the express written consent of the Corporation; and
- (z) if it has elected, on the face page hereof, to participate in the Plan, it is not, and when the Preferred Shares are purchased for its account will not be, a "non-resident" of Canada within the meaning of the *Tax Act* and, to the extent that it holds Preferred Shares on behalf of a beneficial owner of Preferred Shares, such beneficial owner is not, and when the Preferred Shares are purchased for its account such beneficial owner will not be, a "non-resident" of Canada within the meaning of the *Tax Act*.
- 4. <u>**Timeliness of Representations, etc.**</u> The Subscriber agrees that the representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber herein (including the Exhibits attached hereto) will be true and correct both as of the execution of this Subscription Agreement and as of the Closing Time (as defined herein), and will survive the completion of the distribution of the Preferred Shares and any subsequent disposition by the Subscriber of the Preferred Shares.
- 5. **Statutory and Contractual Rights.** In the event that a holder of a Preferred Share is or becomes entitled under applicable securities legislation to the remedy of rescission by reason of the Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto containing a misrepresentation, such holder shall, subject to available defences and any limitation period under applicable securities legislation, be entitled to rescission of the private placement transaction pursuant to which the Preferred Share was initially acquired, and shall be entitled in connection with such rescission to a full refund of all consideration paid to the Corporation on the acquisition of the Preferred Share. In the event such holder is a permitted assignee of the interest of the original subscriber, such permitted assignee shall be entitled to exercise the rights of rescission and refund granted hereunder as if such permitted assignee was such original subscriber. The foregoing is in addition to any other right or remedy available to a holder of the Preferred Share under section 130.1 of the *Securities Act* (Ontario), section 204 of the *Securities Act* (Alberta), equivalent provisions of securities laws in the other provinces where Preferred Shares are being offered or otherwise at law.
- 6. <u>Indemnity</u>. The Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation is relying upon the representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber set forth herein in determining the eligibility (from a securities
law perspective) of the Subscriber to purchase Preferred Shares under the Offering, and hereby agrees to indemnify the Corporation against all losses, claims, costs, expenses, damages or liabilities that it may suffer or incur as a result of or in connection with its reliance on such representations, warranties and covenants. The Subscriber undertakes to immediately notify the Corporation at 360 Highway 7 East, Unit 28, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7, Attention: Chief Operating Officer, Fax: +1 (905) 305-8122, Email: info@rescomic.ca, of any change in any statement or other information relating to the Subscriber set forth herein that occurs prior to the Closing Time.

- 7. **Deliveries by Subscriber prior to Closing.** The Subscriber agrees to deliver to the Corporation, or as the Corporation may direct, not later than 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on the business day preceding the applicable Closing Date, (or one business day before any applicable Closing Date of which the Subscriber receives notice):
 - (a) one copy of this duly completed and executed Subscription Agreement;
 - (b) a certified cheque, money order, or bank draft made payable to "RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation" in an amount equal to the Aggregate Subscription Amount, or payment of the same amount by way of a wire transfer to RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation. Subscribers that will be subscribing through registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, registered education savings plans, registered disability savings plans, deferred profit sharing plans or tax free savings accounts will be required to provide the proceeds to the applicable plan administrator and coordinate the payment by the plan administrator to the Corporation, in order to the complete the subscription;
 - (c) if subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Accredited Investor Exemption, a duly completed and executed Exhibit 1 (and particularly, if the Subscriber is an individual who has initialed category (j), (k) or (l) of the definition of "accredited investor" in Part I of Exhibit 1, he or she has duly completed and executed two (2) copies of the Accredited Investor Risk Acknowledgement, one copy for each of the Corporation and the Subscriber);
 - (d) if subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption,
 - (i) a duly completed and executed Exhibit 3 (Part I); and
 - (ii) if the Subscriber resides in a province other than British Columbia or Newfoundland and Labrador, a duly completed and executed EXHIBIT 2; and
 - (iii) if the Subscriber resides in Manitoba or Prince Edward Island, is an individual, and is an "eligible investor" as a person described in section 2.5 [*Family, friends and business associates*] of NI 45-106, a duly completed and executed Exhibit 3 (Part II), Schedule 1; and
 - (iv) if the Subscriber resides in Alberta, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario or Saskatchewan, a duly completed and executed Exhibit 3 (Part II), including Schedules 1 and 2 thereto; and
 - (e) such other documents as may be requested by the Corporation.
- 8. **Partial Acceptance or Rejection of Subscription.** The Corporation may, in its absolute discretion, accept or reject the Subscriber's subscription for Preferred Shares as set forth in this Subscription Agreement, in whole or in part, and the Corporation reserves the right to sell to the Subscriber less than the amount of Preferred Shares subscribed for under this Subscription Agreement. If this Subscription Agreement is rejected in whole, any certified cheque(s), bank draft(s) or wire(s) delivered by the Subscriber to the Corporation on account of the subscription price for the Preferred Shares subscribed for will be promptly

returned to the Subscriber without interest. If this Subscription Agreement is accepted only in part, a cheque representing the amount by which the payment delivered by the Subscriber to the Corporation exceeds the subscription price of the number of Preferred Shares sold to the Subscriber pursuant to a partial acceptance of this Subscription Agreement, will be promptly delivered to the Subscriber without interest.

- 9. <u>**Time and Place of Closing.</u>** The sale of the Preferred Shares will be completed at the offices of RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation, 360 Highway 7 East, Unit 28, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7 at the Closing Time. The Corporation reserves the right to close the Offering in multiple tranches, in one or more Closings.</u>
- 10. <u>Money Laundering</u>. The Subscriber represents and warrants that the funds representing the Aggregate Subscription Amount which will be advanced by the Subscriber to the Corporation hereunder will not represent proceeds of crime for the purposes of the *Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act* (Canada) (the "**PCMLTFA**") and the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation may in the future be required by law to disclose the Subscriber's name and other information relating to this Subscription Agreement and the Subscriber's subscription hereunder, on a confidential basis, pursuant to the PCMLTFA. To the best of the Subscriber's knowledge: (a) none of the subscription funds to be provided by the Subscriber: (i) have been or will be derived from or related to any activity that is deemed criminal under the laws of Canada, the United States of America, or any other jurisdiction; or (ii) are being tendered on behalf of a person or entity who has not been identified to the Subscriber; and (b) it shall promptly notify the Corporation with appropriate information in connection therewith.
- 11. <u>Expenses</u>. The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all costs incurred by the Subscriber (including any fees and disbursements of any counsel retained by the Subscriber) relating to the sale of the Preferred Shares to the Subscriber shall be borne by the Subscriber.
- 12. <u>Governing Law</u>. The contract arising out of acceptance of this Subscription Agreement by the Corporation, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. The parties irrevocably attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario.
- 13. **Language.** The parties hereto expressly request and require that this document, including without limitation the text of the Plan attached hereto, be drawn up in English. Les parties aux présentes conviennent et exigent que cette entente et tous les documents qui s'y rattachent, incluant, sans limitation, le texte complet du régime joint à ce formulaire, soient rédigés en anglais.
- 14. <u>**Time of Essence.**</u> Time shall be of the essence of this Subscription Agreement.
- 15. <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Subscription Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof, and there are no representations, covenants or other agreements relating to the subject matter hereof except as stated or referred to herein.
- 16. **Facsimile Copies.** The Corporation shall be entitled to rely on delivery of a facsimile or electronic copy of executed subscriptions, and acceptance by the Corporation of such facsimile subscriptions shall be legally effective to create a valid and binding agreement between the Subscriber and the Corporation in accordance with the terms hereof.
- 17. <u>Severability</u>. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Subscription Agreement shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other provision hereof.
- 18. <u>Survival</u>. The covenants, representations and warranties contained in this Subscription Agreement shall survive the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby, and shall be binding upon and enure to the

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

- 19. <u>Interpretation</u>. The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Subscription Agreement or any provision hereof. In this Subscription Agreement, all references to money amounts are to Canadian dollars.
- 20. <u>Amendment</u>. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Subscription Agreement may only be amended by the parties hereto in writing.
- 21. <u>Assignment</u>. Neither party may assign all or part of its interest in or to this Subscription Agreement without the consent of the other party in writing.
- 22. **Power of Attorney.** Each Preferred Shareholder hereby grants to the Corporation and each of its successors and assigns, a power of attorney constituting the Corporation with full power of substitution, as his true and lawful attorney to act on his behalf, with full power and authority in his name, place and stead, to execute, under seal or otherwise, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, make, file or record (and to take all requisite actions in connection with such matters), when, as and where required:
 - (a) any instrument required or desirable to qualify, continue and keep in good standing the Corporation as a "mortgage investment corporation" in all jurisdictions that the Corporation deems appropriate;
 - (b) any instrument, deed, agreement or document in connection with carrying on the affairs of the Corporation as authorized in the Corporation Indenture, including all conveyances, transfers and other documents required to facilitate any sale of Preferred Shares or in connection with any disposition of Preferred Shares required under the Corporation's articles and bylaws;
 - (c) all conveyances, transfers and other documents required in connection with the dissolution, liquidation or termination of the Corporation in accordance with the terms of the Corporation's articles and bylaws; and
 - (d) any and all elections, determinations or designations whether jointly with third parties or otherwise, under the Tax Act or any other taxation or other legislation or similar laws of Canada or of any other jurisdiction in respect of the affairs of the Corporation or of the Subscriber's interest in the Corporation.
- 23. The power of attorney granted herein is, to the extent permitted by applicable law, irrevocable, is a power coupled with an interest, and shall survive the death, mental incompetence, disability and any subsequent legal incapacity of the Preferred Shareholder and shall survive the assignment by the Preferred Shareholder of all or part of the Preferred Shareholder's interest in the Corporation and will extend to and bind the heirs, executors, administrators and other legal representatives and successors and assigns of the Preferred Shareholder. Without limiting any other manner in which this power of attorney may be exercised by the Corporation on behalf of one or more Preferred Shareholders, the Corporation, in executing any instrument on behalf of all Preferred Shareholders collectively, executes such instrument with a single signature and indicating such execution is as attorney and agent for all of such Preferred Shareholders. Each Preferred Shareholder agrees to be bound by any representations or actions made or taken by the Corporation pursuant to this power of attorney and hereby waives any and all defences which may be available to contest, negate or disaffirm any actions taken by the Corporation in good faith under this power of attorney.

24. <u>Electronic Delivery</u>. Unless the Subscriber notifies the Corporation otherwise, the Subscriber is deemed to have consented to the delivery by the Corporation to the Subscriber of certain documents, including this Subscription Agreement, the Offering Memorandum and any updates or amendments to the Offering Memorandum, by way of facsimile or email and that delivery of such documents in accordance with Exhibit 4 of this Subscription Agreement shall constitute valid and effective delivery of such documents unless the Corporation receives actual notice that such electronic delivery failed. Unless the Corporation receives actual notice that such electronic delivery failed to assume that the facsimile or email and the attached documents were actually received by the Subscriber and the Corporation will have no obligation to verify actual receipt of such electronic delivery by the Subscriber.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]

PRIVACY NOTICE

This Subscription Agreement and the Exhibits hereto require the Subscriber to provide certain personal information (respecting the Subscriber and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) to the Corporation. Such information is being collected by the Corporation for the purposes of completing the Offering, which includes, without limitation, determining the eligibility of the Subscriber or, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting, to purchase the Preferred Shares under applicable securities laws, preparing and registering certificates representing the Preferred Shares to be issued hereunder and completing filings required under applicable securities legislation, regulations, rules, policies or orders or by any stock exchange or securities regulatory authority or taxation authority.

In addition, such personal information may be used or disclosed by the Corporation for the purpose of administering the Corporation's relationship with the Subscriber (including the provision of information to the Subscriber's adviser and dealer listed on page 2 of this Subscription Agreement) or, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting. For example, such personal information may be used by the Corporation to communicate with the Subscriber or, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting (such as by providing annual or quarterly reports), to prepare tax filings and forms or to comply with its obligations under taxation, securities and other laws (such as maintaining a list of holders of Preferred Shares).

In connection with the foregoing, the personal information of the Subscriber or, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting, may be disclosed by the Corporation to: (i) stock exchanges or securities regulatory or taxation authorities, (ii) any registrar and transfer agent appointed by the Corporation, (iii) the Canada Revenue Agency; (iv) any of the other persons involved in the Offering, including legal counsel, and may be included in record books prepared in respect of the Offering.

By executing this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the beneficial purchaser for whom it is contracting) hereby consents to the collection, use and disclosure of such personal information. The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the beneficial purchaser for whom it is contracting) also consents to the filing of copies or originals of any of the documents provided to the Corporation by or on behalf of the Subscriber with any securities regulatory authority in relation to the transactions contemplated by this Subscription.

If it is a resident of or otherwise subject to applicable securities laws of Ontario, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the beneficial purchaser for whom it is contracting), by executing this Subscription Agreement, hereby acknowledges that it has been notified by the Corporation (a) of the delivery to the Ontario Securities Commission (the "**OSC**") of the full name, residential address and telephone number of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting), the number and type of securities purchased, the total purchase price, the exemption relied upon and the date of distribution; (b) that this information is being collected indirectly by the OSC under the authority granted to it in securities legislation and that the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom it is contracting) has authorized the indirect collection of the information by the OSC; (c) that this information is being collected for the purposes of the administration and enforcement of the securities legislation of Ontario; and (d) that the Administrative Assistant to the Director of Corporate Finance can be contacted at 20 Queen Street West, 19th Floor, Box 55, Toronto, Ontario M5H 3S8 or at (416) 593-8086 regarding any questions about the OSC's indirect collection of this information.

If it is a resident of or otherwise subject to applicable securities laws of British Columbia, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the beneficial purchaser for whom it is contracting), by executing this Subscription Agreement, hereby acknowledges that it has been notified by the Corporation that the following information concerning the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) required to be delivered to the British Columbia Securities Commission (the "**BCSC**") will be made public: (i) if the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) is an individual, the full name of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting), whether or not the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) is an individual, the full name of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) is an individual, the full name of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) is an individual, the full name of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the total purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting) is not an individual, the full name, address and telephone number of a contact person of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting), whether or not the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is contracting), whether or not the Subscriber (and, if applicable,

If it is a resident of or otherwise subject to applicable securities laws of any other province of Canada, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the beneficial purchaser for whom it is contracting) may contact the applicable securities regulator regarding any questions about the indirect collection of personal information by such securities regulators at the respective address and telephone numbers provided in Exhibit 3 (Part I)

E1-1

EXHIBIT 1 (PART I)

ACCREDITED INVESTOR EXEMPTION REPRESENTATION LETTER

INSTRUCTION: Must be completed by: (1) all subscribers for Preferred Shares under the Accredited Investor Exemption; AND (2) all subscribers for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption who are "eligible investors" as persons described in the Accredited Investor Exemption.

TO: RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation

(Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Exhibit have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription Agreement to which this Exhibit is attached)

In connection with the execution by the undersigned subscriber (the "**Subscriber**") of the Subscription Agreement which this Exhibit forms a part of, the Subscriber hereby represents, warrants, covenants and certifies that:

- 1. the Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber's Address" on the face page of the Subscription Agreement;
- 2. the Subscriber is either: (i) purchasing the Preferred Shares as principal for its own account, or (ii) is deemed to be purchasing the Preferred Shares as principal in accordance with subsection 2.3(2) or (4) of NI 45-106;
- 3. the Subscriber was not created, and is not used, solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor as described in paragraph (m) of the definition of "accredited investor" in NI 45-106;
- 4. the Subscriber is an "accredited investor" within the meaning of NI 45-106 or the *Securities Act* (Ontario), where applicable, by virtue of satisfying the indicated criterion set out below:

[Instruction: Initial beside the applicable description]

(a)

(c)

- (i) except in Ontario, a Canadian financial institution or a Schedule III bank; or
 - (ii) in Ontario, (A) a bank listed in Schedule I, II or III to the *Bank Act* (Canada);
 (B) an association to which the *Cooperative Credit Association Act* (Canada) applies or a central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under subsection 473(1) of that Act; or (C) a loan corporation, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services cooperative or credit union league or federation that is authorized by a statute of Canada or Ontario to carry on business in Canada or Ontario, as the case may be;
- (b) the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the *Business Development Bank of Canada Act* (Canada);
 - except in Ontario, a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a)(i) or (b), if the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors of that subsidiary;
 - (ii) in Ontario, a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a)(ii) or (b), if the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors of that subsidiary;

- (d) a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or dealer;
- (e) an individual registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a representative of a person referred to in paragraph (d);
 - (e.1) an individual formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada, other than an individual formerly registered solely as a representative of a limited market dealer under one or both of the *Securities Act* (Ontario) or the *Securities Act* (Newfoundland and Labrador);
 - (f) the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;
 - (g) a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan community, school board, the *Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de l'île de Montréal* or an intermunicipal management board in Québec;
- (h) any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government;
 - (i) a pension fund that is regulated by the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada), a pension commission or similar regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada;
- (j) an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, beneficially owns financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes, but net of any related liabilities, exceeds \$1,000,000; [Instruction: If you select this paragraph (j), complete the Risk Acknowledgement in Exhibit 1 (PART II)];
 - (j.1) an individual who beneficially owns financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds \$5,000,000;
 - (k) an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded \$200,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years or whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse exceeded \$300,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years and who, in either case, reasonably expects to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year; [Instruction: If you select this paragraph (k), complete the Accredited Investor Risk Acknowledgement in Exhibit 1 (PART II)];
 - (l) an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, has net assets of at least \$5,000,000;
 [Instruction: If you select this paragraph (l), complete the Risk Acknowledgement in Exhibit 1 (PART II)];

(Note: if individual accredited investors wish to purchase through wholly-owned holding companies or similar entities, such purchasing entities must qualify under section (t) below, which must be initialed.)

- (m) a person, other than an individual or investment fund, that has net assets of at least \$5,000,000 as shown on its most recently prepared financial statements;
- (n) an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to:
 - (i) a person that is or was an accredited investor at the time of the distribution,
 - (ii) a person that acquires or acquired securities in the circumstances referred to in Sections 2.10 [*Minimum amount investment*] or 2.19 [*Additional investment in*

investment funds] of NI 45-106, or;

- (iii) a person described in paragraph (i) or (ii) that acquires or acquired securities under Section 2.18 [*Investment fund reinvestment*] of NI 45-106;
- (o) an investment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a jurisdiction of Canada for which the regulator, or in Québec, the securities regulatory authority, has issued a receipt;
- (p) a trust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the *Trust and Loan Companies Act* (Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by the trust company or trust corporation, as the case may be;
- (q) a person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that person, if that person is registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction;
- (r) a registered charity under the *Tax Act* that, in regard to the trade, has obtained advice from an eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of the registered charity to give advice on the securities being traded;
 - (s) an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in paragraphs (a) to (d) or paragraph (i) in form and function;
- (t) a person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors, are persons that are accredited investors;
- (u) an investment fund that is advised by a person registered as an adviser or a person that is exempt from registration as an adviser;
 - (i) a person that is recognized or designated by the securities regulatory authority or, except in Ontario and Québec, the regulator as an accredited investor;
 - (ii) in Ontario, a person that is recognized or designated by the Ontario Securities Commission as an accredited investor; or
 - (w) a trust established by an accredited investor for the benefit of the accredited investor's family members of which a majority of the Trustees are accredited investors and all of the beneficiaries are the accredited investor's spouse, a former spouse of the accredited investor or a parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of that accredited investor, of that accredited investor's spouse or of that accredited investor's former spouse.

For the purposes hereof, the following definitions are included for convenience:

- (a) "affiliate" means an issuer connected with another issuer because
 - (i) one of them is the subsidiary of the other, or
 - (ii) each of them is controlled by the same person;
- (b) "**bank**" means a bank named in Schedule I or II of the *Bank Act* (Canada);

(v)

(c) **"beneficial ownership**" of securities by a person occurs

- for the purposes of British Columbia, Manitoba, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Newfoundland and Labrador, Ontario and Saskatchewan securities law, when such securities are beneficially owned by
 - (A) an issuer controlled by that person; or
 - (B) an affiliate of that person or an affiliate of an issuer controlled by that person;
- (ii) for the purposes of Alberta securities law, when such securities are beneficially owned by
 - (A) an issuer controlled by that person or an affiliate of that issuer;
 - (B) an affiliate of that person; or
 - (C) through a trustee, legal representative, agent or other intermediary of that person;

(d) "Canadian financial institution" means

- (i) an association governed by the *Cooperative Credit Associations Act* (Canada) or a central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under section 473(1) of that Act, or
- (ii) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services cooperative, or league that, in each case, is authorized by an enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;
- (e) "**consultant**" means, for an issuer, a person, other than an employee, executive officer, or director of the issuer or of a related entity of the issuer, that
 - (i) is engaged to provide services to the issuer or a related entity of the issuer, other than services provided in relation to a distribution,
 - (ii) provides the services under a written contract with the issuer or a related entity of the issuer, and
 - (iii) spends or will spend a significant amount of time and attention on the affairs and business of the issuer or a related entity of the issuer

and includes

- (iv) for an individual consultant, a corporation of which the individual consultant is an employee or shareholder, and a partnership of which the individual consultant is an employee or partner; and
- (v) for a consultant that is not an individual, an employee, executive officer, or director of the consultant, provided that the individual employee, executive officer, or director spends or will spend a significant amount of time and attention on the affairs and business of the issuer or a related entity of the issuer.
- (f) "control" or "controlled" means
 - (i) for the purposes of Alberta securities law, a person or company is considered to control another person or company if the person or company, directly or indirectly, has the power to direct the management and policies of the other person or company by virtue of

- (A) the ownership or direction of voting securities of the other person or company,
- (B) a written agreement or trust instrument,
- (C) being the general partner or controlling the general partner of the other person or company, or
- (D) being the trustee of the other person or company;
- (ii) and, for the purposes of British Columbia, Manitoba, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Newfoundland and Labrador, Ontario and Saskatchewan securities law, an issuer is deemed to be controlled by another person or company or by two or more companies where:
 - (A) voting securities of the issuer carrying more than 50% of the votes for the election of directors are held, other than by way of security only, by or for the benefit of the other person or company or by or for the benefit of the other companies; and
 - (B) the votes carried by those securities are entitled, if exercised, to elect a majority of the board of directors of the issuer;
- (g) "**control person**" has the same meaning as in securities legislation except in Manitoba, Newfoundland and Labrador, Northwest Territories, Nova Scotia, Nunavut, Ontario, Prince Edward Island and Québec, where control person means any person that holds or is one of a combination of person that holds
 - (i) a sufficient number of any of the securities of an issuer so as to affect materially the control of the issuer, or
 - (ii) more than 20% of the outstanding voting securities of an issuer except where there is evidence showing that the holding of those securities does not affect materially the control of the issuer;

(h) "**director**" means

- (i) a member of the board of directors of a company or an individual who performs similar functions for a company, and
- (ii) with respect to a person that is not a company, an individual who performs functions similar to those of a director of a company;

(i) "eligibility adviser" means

- (i) a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an equivalent category of registration under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of a purchaser and authorized to give advice with respect to the type of security being distributed, and
- (ii) in Saskatchewan or Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law society of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an institute or association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant must not
 - (A) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors, executive officers, founders, or control persons, and
 - (B) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director, associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer

or any of its directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months;

- (j) "executive officer" means, for an issuer, an individual who is
 - (i) a chair, vice-chair or president,
 - (ii) a vice-president in charge of a principal business unit, division or function including sales, finance or production, or
 - (iii) performing a policy-making function in respect of the issuer;
- (k) "financial assets" means
 - (i) cash,
 - (ii) securities, or
 - (iii) a contract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is not a security for the purposes of securities legislation;
- (l) **"foreign jurisdiction**" means a country other than Canada or a politician subdivision of a country other than Canada;
- (m) "founder", means, in respect of an issuer, a person who,
 - (i) acting alone, in conjunction, or in concert with one or more persons, directly or indirectly, takes the initiative in founding, organizing or substantially reorganizing the business of the issuer, and
 - (ii) at the time of the trade is actively involved in the business of the issuer;
- (n) "**fully managed account**" means an account of a client for which a person makes the investment decisions if that person has full discretion to trade in securities for the account without requiring the client's express consent to a transaction;
- (o) "individual" means a natural person, but does not include
 - (i) a partnership, unincorporated association, unincorporated syndicate, unincorporated organization or a trust, or
 - (ii) a natural person in the person's capacity as trustee, executor, administrator or other legal representative;
- (p) "investment fund" means a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund, and, for greater certainty in British Columbia, includes an employee venture capital corporation that does not have a restricted constitution and is registered under Part 2 of the *Employee Investment Act* (British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c. 112, and whose business objective is making multiple investments and a venture capital corporation registered under Part 1 of the *Small Business Venture Capital Act* (British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c.429 whose business objective is making multiple investments and in Québec any reporting issuer referred to in subsection 1.2(4) of Regulation 81-106 respecting investment fund continuous disclosure adopted under the *Securities Act* (Québec);
- (q) "jurisdiction" means a province or territory of Canada except when used in the term "foreign jurisdiction";
- (r) "**local jurisdiction**" means the jurisdiction in which the applicable securities regulatory authority is situate;

(s) **"mutual fund**" means:

- (i) for the purposes of Alberta, Manitoba, Newfoundland and Labrador, Nova Scotia, Ontario, Prince Edward Island and Saskatchewan securities law, an issuer of securities that entitles the holder to receive on demand, or within a specified period after demand, an amount computed by reference to the value of a proportionate interest in the whole or in part of the net assets, including a separate fund or trust account, of the issuer of the securities;
- (ii) and, for the purposes of British Columbia securities law, also includes
 - (A) an issuer described in an order that the British Columbia Securities Commission may make pursuant to section 3.2 of the *Securities Act* (British Columbia); and
 - (B) an issuer that is in a class of prescribed issuers,

but does not include an issuer, or a class of issuers, described in an order that the British Columbia Securities Commission may make under section 3.1 of the *Securities Act* (British Columbia);

- (iii) and, for the purposes of New Brunswick securities law, also includes
 - (A) an issuer that is deemed to be a mutual fund in an order made by the Commission under subsection 1.1(2) of the *Securities Act* (New Brunswick); and
 - (B) an issuer or a class of issuers prescribed by regulation,

but does not include an issuer, or a class of issuers, described in an order that the New Brunswick Securities Commission may make under subsection 1.1(1) of the *Securities Act* (New Brunswick) or by regulation;

- (t) "non-redeemable investment fund" means an issuer,
 - (i) whose primary purpose is to invest money provided by its securityholders,
 - (ii) that does not invest,
 - (A) for the purpose of exercising or seeking to exercise control of an issuer, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, or
 - (B) for the purpose of being actively involved in the management of any issuer in which it invests, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, and
 - (iii) that is not a mutual fund;
- (u) "**permitted assign**" means, for a person that is an employee, executive officer, director or consultant of an issuer or of a related entity of the issuer,
 - (i) a trustee, custodian, or administrator acting on behalf of, or for the benefit of the person,
 - (ii) a holding entity of the person,
 - (iii) an RRSP or a RRIF of the person,
 - (iv) a spouse of the person,

- (v) a trustee, custodian, or administrator acting on behalf of, or for the benefit of the spouse of the person,
- (vi) a holding entity of the spouse of the person, or
- (vii) an RRSP or a RRIF of the spouse of the person;
- (v) "**person**" includes
 - (i) an individual,
 - (ii) a corporation,
 - (iii) a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons, whether incorporated or not, and
 - (iv) an individual or other person in that person's capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other legal representative;
- (w) **"regulator**" means:
 - (i) the Executive Director, as defined under section 1 of the *Securities Act* (Alberta);
 - (ii) the Executive Director, as defined under section 1 of the Securities Act (British Columbia); and
 - (iii) such other person as is referred to in Appendix D of National Instrument 14-101 Definitions;
- (x) "**related entity**" means, for an issuer, a person that controls or is controlled by the issuer or that is controlled by the same person that controls the issuer;
- (y) "related liabilities" means
 - (i) liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of financial assets, or
 - (ii) liabilities that are secured by financial assets;
- (z) "Schedule III bank" means an authorized foreign bank named in Schedule III of the *Bank Act* (Canada);

(aa) "securities legislation" means:

- (i) for Alberta, the *Securities Act* (Alberta) and the regulations and rules under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the Alberta Securities Commission; and
- (ii) for other Canadian jurisdictions, such other statutes and instruments as are listed in Appendix B of National Instrument 14-101 Definitions;

(bb) "securities regulatory authority" means:

- (i) the Alberta Securities Commission;
- (ii) in respect of any local jurisdiction other than Alberta, means the securities commission or similar regulatory authority listed in Appendix C of National Instrument 14-101 Definitions;
- (cc) "**spouse**" means, an individual who,

- (i) is married to another individual and is not living separate and apart within the meaning of the *Divorce Act* (Canada), from the other individual,
- (ii) is living with another individual in a marriage-like relationship, including a marriage-like relationship between individuals of the same gender, or
- (iii) in Alberta, is an individual referred to in paragraph (i) or (ii), or is an adult interdependent partner within the meaning of the *Adult Interdependent Relationships Act* (Alberta);
- (dd) "**subsidiary**" means an issuer that is controlled directly or indirectly by another issuer and includes a subsidiary of that subsidiary;
- (ee) a person (first person) is considered to "control" another person (second person) if:
 - (i) the first person, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over securities of the second person carrying votes which, if exercised, would entitle the first person to elect a majority of the directors of the second person, unless that first person holds the voting securities only to secure an obligation;
 - (ii) the second person is a partnership, other than a limited partnership, and the first person holds more than 50% of the interests of the partnership; or
 - (iii) the second person is a limited partnership and the general partner of the limited partnership is the first person.

Upon execution by the Subscriber, this Accredited Investor Exemption Representation Letter shall be incorporated into and form a part of the Subscription Agreement to which it is attached.

EXECUTED by the Subscriber this _____ day of _____, 20___.

Full Legal Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Signature of Subscriber or its Authorized Representative

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of signatory (please print name of individual whose signature appears above if different than name of Subscriber)

EXHIBIT 1 (PART II)

ACCREDITED INVESTOR RISK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

INSTRUCTION: must be completed by <u>all individual subscribers</u> subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Accredited Investor Exemption, who fall under subsections (J), (K) or (L) of the definition of "accredited investor" as set out in EXHIBIT 1 (PART I).

WARNING!

This investment is risky. Don't invest unless you can afford to lose all the money you pay for this investment.

SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITYHOLDER					
1. About yo	our investment				
Type of secu	irities:	Class B Preferred Shares	Issuer:	RESCO Mortgage Investme	nt Corporation
Purchased fi	rom:	RESCO Mortgage Investment Corp	poration		
SECTION	2 TO 4 TO E	BE COMPLETED BY PURCHA	ASER		
2. Risk ack	nowledgement				_
The investm	ent is risky. Init	ial that you understand that:			Your Initials
	– You could lo nt of the investn	ose your entire investment of \$. [Instructions: Insert the total	
Liquidity ri	sk – You may r	ot be able to sell your investment qu	ickly – or at	all.	
Lack of info	ormation – You	may receive little or no information	about your i	nvestment.	
Lack of advice – You will not receive advice from the salesperson about whether this investment is suitable for you unless the salesperson is registered. The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information to you, about making this investment. To check whether the salesperson is registered, go to www.aretheyregistered.ca					
3. Accredited investor status					
You must meet at least one of the following criteria to be able to make this investment. Initial the statement that applies to you. (You may initial more than one statement.) The person identified in section 6 is responsible for ensuring that you meet the definition of accredited investor. That person, or the salesperson identified in section 5, can help you if you have questions about whether you meet these criteria. Your Initial Your Initial You You Initial You				Your Initials	
• Your net income before taxes was more than \$200,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect it to be more than \$200,000 in the current calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on your personal income tax return.)					
• Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse's was more than \$300,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income before taxes to be more than \$300,000 in the current calendar year.					
• Either alone or with your spouse, you own more than \$1 million in cash and securities, after subtracting any debt related to the cash and securities.					
• Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than \$5 million. (Your net assets are your total assets (including real estate) minus your total debt.)					

E1-12

4. Your name and signature					
By signing this form, you confirm that you have read this form and you understand the risks of making this investment as identified in this form.					
First and last name (please print):					
Signature:	Date:				
SECTION 5 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SALESP	ERSON				
5. Salesperson information					
[Instruction: The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information to, the purchaser with respect to making this investment. That could include a representative of the issuer or selling security holder, a registrant, or a person who is exempt from the registration requirement.]					
First and last name of salesperson (please print):					
Telephone:	Email:				
Name of firm (if registered):					
SECTION 6 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITYHOLDER					
6. For more information about this investment					
RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation	Telephone:	+1 (905) 886-8786			
360 Highway 7 East, Unit 28,	Fax:	+1 (905) 889-4155			
Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3Y7	Email:	info@rescomic.ca			
Attention: Chris M. K. Cheng, Chief Operating Officer	Website:	http://www.rescomic.ca/			

For more information about prospectus exemptions, contact your local securities regulator. You can find contact information at <u>www.securities-administrators.ca</u>.

Form instructions:

- 1. This form does not mandate the use of a specific font size or style but the font must be legible.
- 2. The information in sections 1, 5 and 6 must be completed before the purchaser completes and signs the form.
- 3. The purchaser must sign this form. <u>Each of the purchaser and the issuer or selling security holder must receive a copy of</u> <u>this form signed by the purchaser</u>. The issuer or selling security holder is required to keep a copy of this form for 8 years after the distribution.

EXHIBIT 2

OFFERING MEMORANDUM EXEMPTION REPRESENTATION LETTER

INSTRUCTION: Must be completed by all subscribers residing outside of British Columbia or Newfoundland and Labrador subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption.

TO: RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation

(Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Exhibit have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription Agreement to which this Exhibit is attached.)

In connection with the execution by the undersigned subscriber (the "**Subscriber**") of the Subscription Agreement which this Exhibit forms a part of, the Subscriber hereby represents, warrants, covenants and certifies that:

- 1. The Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber's Address" on the face page of the Subscription Agreement.
- 2. The Subscriber is either: (i) purchasing the Preferred Shares as principal for its own account, or (ii) is deemed to be purchasing the Preferred Shares as principal in accordance with subsection 2.3(2) or (4) of NI 45-106.
- 3. The Subscriber was not created, and is not used, solely to purchase or hold securities in reliance on the exemption from the prospectus requirements set out in Section 2.9 of NI 45-106.
- 4. If the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber is: [Instruction: Initial beside the applicable description]
 - (a) is not an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106; or
 - (b) is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106.
- 5. If the Subscriber has indicated that it is an "eligible investor" in 4(b) above, the Subscriber is an "eligible investor" by virtue of being: [Instruction: Initial beside the applicable description]
 - (a) a person whose:
 - (i) net assets, alone or with a spouse, in the case of an individual, exceed \$400,000;
 - (ii) net income before taxes exceeded \$75,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who reasonably expects to exceed that income level in the current calendar year; or
 - (iii) net income before taxes, alone or with a spouse, in the case of an individual, exceeded \$125,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who reasonably expects to exceed that income level in the current calendar year;
 - (b) a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by eligible investors or a majority of the directors are eligible investors;
 - (c) a general partnership of which all of the partners are eligible investors;
 - (d) a limited partnership of which the majority of the general partners are eligible investors;

- (e) a trust or estate of which all of the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees or executors are eligible investors;
- (f) an accredited investor (as such term is defined in NI 45-106 or, where applicable, section 73.3(1) of the *Securities Act* (Ontario)). [Instruction: If you select this paragraph (f), complete Exhibit 1]
- (g) a person described under section 2.9 [Family, friends and business associates] of NI 45-106; [Instruction: If you select this paragraph (g), complete Exhibit 3 (Part II) – Schedule 1, Section D (Friends, Family and Business Associates)], or
- (h) in Manitoba, Northwest Territories, Nunavut, Prince Edward Island and Yukon, a person that has obtained advice regarding the suitability of the investment and, if the person is resident in a jurisdiction of Canada, that advice has been obtained from an eligibility adviser.

"eligibility adviser" means:

- (a) a person or company that is registered as an investment dealer and authorized to give advice with respect to the type of security being distributed, and;
- (b) in Manitoba, a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law society of a jurisdiction of Canada or public accountant who is a member in good standing of an institute or association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant must not:
 - (i) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors, executive officers, founders or control persons; and
 - (ii) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director, associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer or any of its directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months.

For the purposes hereof, the following definitions are included for convenience:

- (a) "**person**" includes: (i) an individual; (ii) a corporation; (iii) a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons, whether incorporated or not; and (iv) an individual or other person in that person's capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other legal representative; and
- (b) "**spouse**" means, an individual who: (i) is married to another individual and is not living separate and apart within the meaning of the *Divorce Act* (Canada), from the other individual; (ii) is living with another individual in a marriage-like relationship, including a marriage-like relationship between individuals of the same gender; or (iii) in Alberta, is an individual referred to in paragraph (i) or (ii) above, or is an adult interdependent partner within the meaning of the *Adult Interdependent Relationships Act* (Alberta).

Upon execution by the Subscriber, this Offering Memorandum Exemption Representation Letter shall be incorporated into and form a part of the Subscription Agreement to which it is attached.

EXECUTED by the Subscriber this _____ day of _____, 20___.

Full Legal Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Signature of Subscriber or its Authorized Representative

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose signature appears above if different than name of Subscriber)

EXHIBIT 3 (PART I)

OFFERING MEMORANDUM RISK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

INSTRUCTION: Must be completed by <u>all subscribers</u> subscribing for Preferred Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption.

RISK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT				
•	I acknowledge that this is a risky investment.			
•	I am investing entirely at my own risk.			
•	No securities regulatory authority has evaluated or endorsed the merits of these securities or the disclosure in the offering memorandum.			
•	The securities are redeemable, but I may only be able to redeem them in limited circumstances.			
•	I will not be able to sell these securities except in very limited circumstances. I may never be able to sell these securities.	$\mathbf{>}$		
•	I could lose all the money I invest.			
I am investing \$ [total consideration] in total; this includes any amount I am obliged to pay in future. RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation will pay \$ [amount of fee or commission] of this to [name of dealership selling the securities] and \$ [amount of fee or commission] to [name of person selling the securities] as a fee or commission. I acknowledge that this is a risky investment and that I could lose all the money I invest.				
	Date Signature of Subscriber			
	Print name of Subscriber			
Sign 2 copies of this document. Keep one copy for your records.				

You have 2 business days to cancel your purchase.

To do so, send a notice to the Corporation stating that you want to cancel your purchase. You must send the notice before midnight on the 2^{nd} business day after you sign the agreement to purchase the securities. You can send the notice by fax or email or deliver it in person to the Corporation at its business address. Keep a copy of the notice for your records.

Issuer Name and Address:	RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation 601 Highway 7 East, Suite 210 Markham, Ontario L3R 0M3
Fax: +1 (905) 305-8122	Email: info@rescomic.ca

You are buying Exempt Market Securities

They are called *exempt market securities* because two parts of securities law do not apply to them. If an issuer wants to sell *exempt market securities* to you:

- the issuer does not have to give you a prospectus (a document that describes the investment in detail and gives you some legal protections); and
- the securities do not have to be sold by an investment dealer registered with a securities regulatory authority or regulator.

There are restrictions on your ability to resell *exempt market securities*. *Exempt market securities* are more risky than other securities.

You will receive an offering memorandum. Read the offering memorandum carefully because it has important information about the issuer and its securities. Keep the offering memorandum because you have rights based on it. Talk to a lawyer for details about these rights.

The securities you are buying are not listed. The securities you are buying are not listed on any stock exchange, and they may never be listed. You may never be able to sell these securities.

The issuer of your securities is a non-reporting issuer. A *non-reporting issuer* does not have to publish financial information or notify the public of changes in its business. You may not receive ongoing information about this issuer.

For more information on the exempt market, call your local securities regulatory authority.

British Columbia Securities Commission

P.O. Box 10142, Pacific Centre
701 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, British Columbia V7Y 1L2
Telephone: (604) 899-6500
Toll free in British Columbia and Alberta 1-800-373-6393
Facsimile: (604) 899-6506

Alberta Securities Commission

Suite 600, 250-5th Street SW Calgary, AB T2P 0R4 Telephone: (403) 297-6454 Facsimile: (403) 297-6156

Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission

Suite 601-1919 Saskatchewan Drive Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 4H2 Telephone: (306) 787-5879 Facsimile: (306) 787-5899

The Manitoba Securities Commission

500 - 400 St. Mary Avenue Winnipeg, Manitoba R3C 4K5 Telephone: (204) 945-2548 Toll free in Manitoba 1-800-655-5244 Facsimile: (204) 945-0330

Ontario Securities Commission

Suite 1903, Box 55 20 Queen Street West Toronto, Ontario M5H 3S8 Telephone: (416) 593-8314 Toll free in Canada 1-877-785-1555 Facsimile: (416) 593-8122 Public official contact regarding indirect collection of information: Administrative Support Clerk Telephone (416) 593-3684

Autorité des marchés financiers

800, Square Victoria, 22e étage C.P. 246, Tour de la Bourse Montréal, Québec H4Z 1G3 Telephone: (514) 395-0337 Or 1-877-525-0337 Facsimile: (514) 873-6155 (For filing purposes only) Facsimile: (514) 864-6381 (For privacy requests only)

New Brunswick Financial and Consumer Services Commission

85 Charlotte Street, Suite 300 Saint John, New Brunswick E2L 2J2 Telephone: (506) 658-3060 Toll Free in New Brunswick 1-866-933-2222 Facsimile: (506) 658-3059

Nova Scotia Securities Commission

Suite 400, 5251 Duke Street Halifax, Nova Scotia B3J 1P3 Telephone: (902) 424-7768 Facsimile: (902) 424-4625

Government of Newfoundland and Labrador

Financial Services Regulation Division P.O. Box 8700 Confederation Building 2nd Floor, West Block Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NFLD A1B 4J6 Attention: Director of Securities Telephone: (709) 729-4189 Facsimile: (709) 729-6187

Government of Yukon

Office of the Yukon Superintendent of Securities 307 Black Street, 1st Floor P.O. Box 2703 (C-6) Whitehorse, YT Y1A 2C6 Telephone: (867) 667-5466 Facsimile: (867) 393-6251

Government of Northwest Territories

Office of the Superintendent of Securities Deputy Superintendent, Legal & Enforcement 1st Floor, Stuart M. Hodgson Building 5009 – 49th Street P.O. Box 1320 Yellowknife, NT X1A 2L9 Telephone: (867) 920-8984 Facsimile: (867) 873-0243

Government of Nunavut

Department of Justice Legal Registries Division P.O. Box 1000, Station 570 1st Floor, Brown Building Iqaluit, Nunavut X0A 0H0 Telephone: (867) 975-6590 Facsimile: (867) 975-6594

Instruction: The purchaser must sign 2 copies of this form. The purchaser and the issuer must each receive a signed copy.

EXHIBIT 3 (PART II) SCHEDULE 1

CLASSIFICATION OF INVESTORS UNDER THE OFFERING MEMORANDUM EXEMPTION

INSTRUCTIONS: This schedule must be completed together with the Offering Memorandum Exemption Risk Acknowledgment Form (above) and Schedule 2 (see next page) by <u>individuals</u> purchasing securities under the Offering Memorandum Exemption in Alberta, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario or Saskatchewan.

This schedule must be completed together with the Offering Memorandum Exemption Risk Acknowledgment Form (above) by persons purchasing securities under the Offering Memorandum Exemption in Manitoba or Prince Edward Island who are "eligible investors" as persons described in section 2.5 [Family, friends and business associates] of NI 45-106.

How you qualify to buy securities under the offering memorandum exemption:

Initial the statement under A, B, C or D containing the criteria that applies to you. (You may initial more than one statement.) If you initial a statement under B or C, you are not required to complete A.

A. You are	A. You are an eligible investor because:		
STOR	Your net income before taxes was more than \$75,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect it to be more than \$75,000 in this calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on your personal income tax return.)		
ELIGIBLE INVESTOR	Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse's was more than \$125,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income to be more than \$125,000 in this calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on your personal income tax return.)		
ELIGI	Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than \$400,000. (Your net assets are your total assets, including real estate, minus your total debt including any mortgage on your property.)		

в.	B. You are an eligible investor, as a person described in section 2.3 [Accredited investor] of NI 45-106 or, as applicable in Ontario, subsection 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), because:		
	ESTOR	Your net income before taxes was more than \$200,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect it to be more than \$200,000 in this calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on your personal income tax return.)	
ACCREDITED INVESTOR	ED INVI	Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse's was more than \$300,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income before taxes to be more than \$300,000 in the current calendar year.	
	REDIT	Either alone or with your spouse, you own more than \$1 million in cash and securities, after subtracting any debt related to the cash and securities.	
	ACC	Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than \$5 million. (Your net assets are your total assets, including real estate, minus your total debt.)	

	u are an eligible investor, as a person described in section 2.5 [Family, friends and business ociates] of NI 45-106, because:	Your Initials
	You are:	
	1) [check all applicable boxes]	
	a director of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer	
	an executive officer of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer	
	a control person of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer	
	□ a founder of the issuer	
	OR	
ES	2) [check all applicable boxes]	
ASSOCIAT	a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by, or a majority of the directors are, (i) individuals listed in (1) above and/or (ii) family members, close personal friends or close business associates of individuals listed in (1) above	
SINESS /	a trust or estate of which all of the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees or executors are (i) individuals listed in (1) above and/or (ii) family members, close personal friends or close business associates of individuals listed in (1) above	
AND BUS	You are a family member of [Instruction: Insert the name of the person who is your relative either directly or through his or her spouse], who holds the following position at the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer:	
FAMILY, FRIENDS AND BUSINESS ASSOCIATES	You are the of that person or that person's spouse. [Instruction: To qualify for this investment, you must be (a) the spouse of the person listed above or (b) the parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of that person or that person's spouse.]	
FAMILY	You are a close personal friend of [Instruction: Insert the name of your close personal friend], who holds the following position at the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer:	
	You have known this person for years.	
	You are a close business associate of [Instruction: Insert the name of your close business associate], who holds the following position at the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer:	
	You have known this person for years.	

D. You are not an eligible investor.		
NOT AN ELIGIBLE INVESTOR	You acknowledge that you are not an eligible investor.	

EXHIBIT 3 (PART II) SCHEDULE 2

INVESTMENT LIMITS FOR INVESTORS UNDER THE OFFERING MEMORANDUM EXEMPTION

INSTRUCTIONS: This schedule must be completed together with the Offering Memorandum Exemption Risk Acknowledgment Form (above) and Exhibit 3 (Part II)

Schedule 1 (see previous page) by <u>individuals</u> purchasing securities under the exemption (the offering memorandum exemption) in section 2.9 of NI 45-106 in Alberta, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario or Saskatchewan.

SECTION 1 – TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PURCHASER

1. Investment limits you are subject to when purchasing securities under the offering memorandum exemption.

You may be subject to annual investment limits that apply to all securities acquired under the offering memorandum exemption in a 12 month period, depending on the criteria under which you qualify as identified in Exhibit 3 (Part II) Schedule 1. Initial the statement that applies to you.

Your Initials

A. You are an eligible investor.

As an eligible investor that is an individual, you cannot invest more than **\$30,000** in all offering memorandum exemption investments made in the previous 12 months, unless you have received advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer, as identified in section 2 of this schedule, that your investment is suitable.

Initial one of the following statements:

You confirm that, after taking into account your investment of \$_____today in this issuer, you have not exceeded your investment limit of \$30,000 in all offering memorandum exemption investments made in the previous 12 months. You confirm that you received advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer, as identified in section 2 of this schedule that the following investment is suitable. You confirm that, after taking into account your investment of \$_____ today in this issuer, you have not exceeded your investment limit in all offering memorandum exemption investments made in the previous 12 months of \$100,000.

B. You are an eligible investor, as a person described in section 2.3 [<i>Accredited investor</i>] of NI 45-106 or, as applicable in Ontario, subsection 73.3(1) of the <i>Securities Act</i> (Ontario).		
ACCREDITED	You acknowledge that, by qualifying as an eligible investor as a person described in section 2.3 [<i>Accredited investor</i>] of NI 45-106 or, as applicable in Ontario, subsection 73.3(1) of the <i>Securities Act</i> (Ontario), you are not subject to investment limits.	

	te an eligible investor, as a person described in section 2.5 [Family, friends and business tes] of NI 45-106.	Your Initials
FAMILY, FRIENDS AND BUSINESS ASSOCIATES	You acknowledge that, by qualifying as an eligible investor as a person described in section 2.5 <i>[Family, friends and business associates]</i> , you are not subject to investment limits.	

D. You are not an eligible investor				
NOT AN ELIGIBLE INVESTOR	You acknowledge that you cannot invest more than \$10,000 in all offering memorandum exemption investments made in the previous 12 months. You confirm that, after taking into account your investment of \$ today in this issuer, you have not exceeded your investment limit of \$10,000 in all offering memorandum exemption investments made in the previous 12 months.			
SECTION 2 – TO BE COMPLETED BY THE REGISTRANT				
2. Registrant information				

[Instruction: This section must only be completed if an investor has received advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer concerning his or her investment.]

First and last name of registrant (please print):

Registered as:

[Instruction: Indicate whether registered as a dealing representative or advising representative.]

Telephone:

Email:

Name of Firm:

[Instruction: Indicate whether registered as an exempt market dealer, investment dealer or portfolio manager.] Date:

EXHIBIT 4

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS

The following are the terms of electronic delivery of the documents and/or types of documents listed below that the Corporation may elect to deliver by electronic means unless the Subscriber provides notice that they do not wish to receive documents by such means of delivery. The Subscriber agrees to provide a facsimile number and/or email address on request. For purposes hereof, "deliverer" means the Corporation or its representatives responsible for delivering documents to the Subscriber, as appropriate.

- 1. The documents and/or types of documents which are covered by this consent to electronic delivery include notices, reports, financial statements, tax information, general correspondence and other documentation or information related to the Corporation, including the following:
 - Subscription documents;
 - Offering Memorandum, including all updates and/or amendments to the Offering Memorandum;
 - Periodic financial statements, including annual audited financial statements;
 - Tax information, including annual tax slips; and
 - Amendments of any such documents and/or types of documents.
- 2. In the event the deliverer receives notice that a facsimile or email sent to the Subscriber was not received by the Subscriber, a paper copy of the relevant documents will be sent by regular mail. In the event the deliverer does not receive any notice that a facsimile or email sent to the Subscriber was not received by the Subscriber, the deliverer shall be entitled to assume the facsimile or email and the attached documents were actually received by the Subscriber.
- 3. All the Subscribers who consent to email delivery of documents will be required to have a computer with Internet access, a working email account and the ability to read Microsoft Word and Excel files and Adobe Acrobat files. The Adobe Acrobat Reader can be obtained free of charge at the Adobe website at http://www.adobe.com. All documents delivered by email will be readable and may be viewed by using one or more of the above programs.
- 4. Documents sent in the following formats will be readable and may be viewed using the following programs:

File Type	Program
PDF file	Adobe Acrobat Reader
Excel file	Microsoft Excel
Word file	Microsoft Word
Jpeg file	Any internet browser
Html file	Any internet browser

At any time, the Subscriber may elect to receive paper copies of documents instead of or in addition to the electronic copies at no cost and the Subscriber may change the facsimile number or email address to which documents are delivered. The Subscriber may make such changes by providing notice of the same in writing by regular mail, fax or email to RESCO Mortgage Investment Corporation, 3601 Highway 7 East, Suite 210, Markham, Ontario L3R 0M3, Attention: Chief Operations Officer (fax no.: +1 (905) 305-8122, email: info@rescomic.ca) or such other address, fax number or email address as the Corporation may advise from time to time.